
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 2 December 2019. 
 01476 406080

Paul Thomas, Interim Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Tuesday, 10 December 2019 at 4.00 pm
Witham Room - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 

Grantham. NG31 6PZ

Cabinet 
Members:

Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council (Chairman)
Councillor Barry Dobson, The Deputy Leader of the Council (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Helen Goral, Cabinet Member for Growth
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations
Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for Communities and HR
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Planning
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for Culture

Agenda
1.  Apologies

2.  Minutes of the previous meeting
Minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2019.

(Pages 3 - 6)

3.  Disclosure of Interests (if any)

4.  Council Tax Base for the financial year 2020/21 (Budget Framework)
Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance to recommend the Council Tax base 
for the 2020/21 financial year.

(Pages 7 - 12)

Cabinet

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


5.  Finance update report - Quarter 2 2019/20
Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance informing Cabinet of the Council’s 
forecast 2019/20 financial position as at the end of September 2019.

(Pages 13 - 37)

6.  Tenancy Agreement (Key Decision)
Report of the Deputy Leader of the Council on the South Kesteven District 
Council Tenancy Agreement.

(Pages 39 - 107)

7.  Matters Referred to Cabinet by the Council or Overview & Scrutiny 
Committees
Report of the Leader of the Council presenting any recommendations that have 
been made to Cabinet by the Council and overview and scrutiny committees.

(Pages 109 - 124)

8.  Items raised by Cabinet Members including reports on Key and Non Key 
Decisions taken under Delegated Powers.
Report of the Leader of the Council on decisions taken by individual Cabinet 
Members.

(Pages 125 - 148)

9.  Representations and questions from Non Cabinet Members

10.  Cabinet Forward Plan
Report of the Leader of the Council on the Cabinet’s Forward Plan.

(Pages 149 - 158)

11.  Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent

Exclusion of the press and public
It is likely that the press and public will be excluded during discussion of the following agenda item 
because of the likelihood that information that is exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) would be disclosed to them.

12.  Leisure Service – Future Management Options (Key Decision)
Report of the Cabinet Member for Growth on enhancing leisure opportunities 
for everyone.

(Pages 159 - 174)



Minutes
Cabinet
Tuesday, 12 November 2019

The Leader: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council (Chairman)

Cabinet Members present

Councillor Helen Goral, Cabinet Member for Growth
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations
Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for Communities and HR
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Planning
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for Culture
Councillor Hannah Westropp, Cabinet Member for Communications and 
Engagement

Non-Cabinet Members present

Councillor Graham Jeal
Councillor Charmaine Morgan

Officers

Interim Chief Executive (Paul Thomas)
Interim Director of Finance (Richard Wyles)
Interim Head of Legal (Shahin Ismail)
Strategic Director, Commercial & Operations (Gary Smith)
Strategic Director, Transformation & Change (Lee Sirdifield)
Assistant Chief Executive, Housing Delivery (Ken Lyon)
Assistant Director, Commercial & Operations (Ian Yates)
Assistant Director, Housing (Harry Rai)
Grounds Maintenance Coordinator (Lynne Lord)
Democratic Officer (Naomi Page)

Change of Cabinet membership

The Leader of the Council announced a change in membership of Cabinet. Councillor 
Hannah Westropp would no longer be a Cabinet Member effective from the date of 
Council on 28 November 2019. The Leader wished to thank Councillor Westropp for 
the work undertaken during the six months since she had been appointed to the role 
of Cabinet Member for Communications and Engagement. 

3

Agenda Item 2



36. Apologies

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Dobson. 

37. Minutes of the previous meeting

The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 10 September 2019 were proposed, 
seconded and agreed as a correct record. 

38. Disclosure of Interests (if any)

No interests were disclosed. 

39. Review of Gambling Statement of Principles (Policy Framework 
Proposal)

The Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations presented his report relating to 
the Gambling Statement of Principles. The draft Statement had been considered by 
the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 17 September 
2019 and the Committee had recommended that the Statement be presented to 
Council for adoption. The amendments made to the Statement had been minor; 
correctly updating the number of licenced premises and permits in the District and 
including more robust local risk assessment requirements. 

The recommendations in the report were proposed, seconded and AGREED:

1. Cabinet recommends to Council that the amended South Kesteven District 
Council Gambling Statement of Principles is suitable to be considered for 
adoption. 

40. Local Government Charter for Trees, Woods and People: Principles (Key 
Decision)

The Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations presented the Tree Guidelines 
report, which provided an overview of the Council’s approach to trees within South 
Kesteven. Appended to the report was the draft ‘Local Government Charter for 
Trees, Woods and People: Principles’. This document had been developed in 
collaboration with the Woodland Trust following a motion presented to Council on 27 
June 2019 which, although not carried, had sparked a helpful debate with regards to 
the Council’s approach to trees and tree management. 

The draft ‘Local Government Charter for Trees, Woods and People: Principles’ was a 
modified version of the Woodland Trust’s ‘Charter for Trees’, allowing the Council to 
balance its commitment to trees and tree management with its wider requirements as 
a local authority. It was hoped that this document could act as a blueprint to be 
adopted by other local authorities. Members noted the importance of the role of the 

4



Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee going forward, in order for work 
undertaken in relation to tree management to be provided with sufficient scrutiny to 
ensure the Charter’s implementation.    

A non-Cabinet member asked if planting more trees would be an action as a result of 
the Charter being endorsed, to support the Council’s carbon emissions goals. The 
Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations explained that replanting trees was 
an intended action, but that this and other potential actions would be considered by 
the Climate Change Action Task and Finish Group as set out in its Terms of 
Reference. The Cabinet Member for Planning added that the potential was currently 
being investigated of extending the time period by which developers were required to 
replace any trees or plants provided as part of the approved soft landscaping scheme 
in instances of death or serious damage. This would improve the potential for trees 
and plants to become well established, thereby increasing their sustainability moving 
forward. 

The recommendations in the report were proposed, seconded and AGREED:

1. Endorse the draft ‘Local Government Charter for Trees, Woods and 
People: Principles’

41. Matters Referred to Cabinet by the Council or Overview & Scrutiny 
Committees

Members noted the report of the Leader of the Council outlining matters referred to 
Cabinet by the Council and Overview and Scrutiny Committees since its last meeting. 

42. Representations and questions from Non Cabinet Members

A non-Cabinet member asked a question regarding the availability of defibrillators in 
Grantham town centre. She re-iterated her previously expressed concern that there 
were no defibrillators in non-parish funded areas, aside from the two donated ones 
which were located at the business centre in Wyndham Park and outside the George 
Shopping Centre. The Councillor referred to her conversation earlier in the year with 
the previous Leader of the Council and Chief Executive, and asked how this issue 
could be moved forward. The Leader of the Council suggested that the defibrillator 
currently located within the South Kesteven District Council offices could be relocated 
externally in order to be accessible to members of the public. A conversation would 
be arranged between the Cabinet Member for Communities and HR, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance and the Interim Director of Finance in order to further consider 
future options for the provision of defibrillators.       

43. Cabinet Forward Plan

Cabinet Members noted the Forward Plan, which had been distributed prior to the 
meeting. The Forward Plan gave an indication of the items that would be presented 
to Cabinet over the following twelve-month period. The Cabinet Member for Finance 

5



informed Members that the draft budget proposals for 2020/21 would no longer be 
considered at the December meeting of Cabinet; this item would be postponed until 
the January meeting. 

44. Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent

No further business was discussed.

Cabinet agreed to exclude the press and public at this point in the meeting, to ensure 
that information in the following item exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) was not disclosed during discussion. 

45. Items raised by Cabinet Members including reports on Key and Non Key 
Decisions taken under Delegated Powers.

The Leader of the Council presented his report giving an overview of decisions taken 
by individual Cabinet Members since the last meeting of Cabinet. A non-Cabinet 
member asked about the future plans for the building referred to in appendix 1 of the 
report. The Assistant Director, Housing confirmed the Council’s intentions for the 
property purchased, as outlined in exempt appendix A.  

46. Close of meeting

The meeting was closed at 16:20.

6



Cabinet
10th December 2019 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes

Cabinet Member for Finance

        

Council Tax base for the financial year 2020/21

Report Author

Gillian Goddard, Senior Financial Accountant

 Tel: 01476 406080

 t.goddard@southkeseteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 19 November 2019

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 26 November 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 29 November 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. Cabinet is asked to recommend the Council Tax base for the forthcoming financial year 
equating to 47,918.40 in accordance with the relevant legislation. This will form the basis 
upon which the Council will estimate Council Tax income for the 2020/21 budget.

7

Agenda Item 4

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 The Local Government Finance Act 1992 amended by s84 of the Local Government Act 

2003 set out the requirements allowing each local authority to make its arrangements for 
adopting the Council Tax base. The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) 
(England) Regulations 2012 (SI 2012:2914) provides amended statutory guidance to 
incorporate the changes resulting from the introduction of the Local Council Tax Support 
Scheme (LCTSS).

1.2 The Council Tax varies between the different bands according to proportions laid down in 
legislation.  These proportions are based around Band D and are fixed so that the bill for a 
dwelling in Band A will be a third of the bill for a dwelling in Band H.  Applying the relevant 
proportion to each band’s net property base produces the number of ‘band D equivalent 
properties for the area.

1.3 In determining the Council Tax Base for 2020/21 the following factors have been taken 
into consideration:

 The tax base for parish purposes is based on the number of properties as at 9th 
September 2019 and the discounts and exemptions applicable on 1st October 2019, as 
prescribed by legislation.

 Adjustments have been made for the reductions in the tax base as a result of the LCTSS.

1.4 The table below summarises the position showing the proposed tax base for South 
Kesteven 2020/21 is 47,918.4 Band D equivalents.  This is an increase of 1.6% on the 
previous financial year 2019/20.  Appendix A analyses these figures at a Parish level.

Table 1: Tax Base – Band D Equivalents

2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17

Total Band D 
Equivalents

51,757.0 51,061.9 50,575.5 50,306.5 49,779.57

Impact of LCTSS 
Discounts and 
Work Incentive

(3,838.2) (3,936.2) (4,056.2) (4,187.1) (4,344.87)

Total Band D 
Equivalent 
properties – with 
LCTS Scheme

47,918.4 47,125.7 46,519.3 46,119.4 45,434.7

Tax Base Growth 1.68% 1.30% 0.87% 1.49% 1.54%

1.5 As set out in Table 1, the LCTSS reduces the tax base and therefore the Council Tax 
income collected by individual precepting bodies. Alongside this, it also impacts on the 
local precepting authorities’ (Parish and Town Councils) ability to raise their own precepts 
which, based on a standstill position, would be lower.  The local tax base information has 

8



already been supplied to all town and parish councils in order for them to factor it into their 
local precept setting considerations.

1.6 The setting of a realistic and prudent collection rate for Council Tax in 2020/21 is an 
essential component of the overall budget strategy. It is anticipated that a collection rate of 
98.80% will be achieved in 2019/20 and this will form the basis of the collection rate for 
2020/21.  The Council takes a prudent approach and does not project future growth over 
the year so consequently does not adjust the tax base for any non-collection.  The 
following table shows both the current and historic collection rates the council has 
achieved over the past four years.

Table 2: Collection Rates

2020/21 2019/20

(forecast)

2018/19 2017/18 2016/17

Council Tax Collection 
Rate

98.80% 98.80% 98.77% 98.81% 98.80%

1.7 When compared to authorities that are of a similar size and are demographically 
comparable, South Kesteven has the third highest collection rate for 2018/19.

North
 Keste

ve
n

Amber V
all

ey

So
uth Keste

ve
n

Lic
hfie

ld

Broxto
we

Gedlin
g

High
 Peak

Sta
ffo

rd

Brai
ntre

e

Chorle
y

Ash
ford

East
 St

aff
ordsh

ire

Mendip

Newark
 an

d Sh
erw

ood

So
uth Ribble

96.8

97.0

97.2

97.4

97.6

97.8

98.0

98.2

98.4

98.6

98.8

99.0

99.2

Council tax Collection rate 2018/19

2 Financial Implications 
2.1 These are contained within the report.

9



Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance

3 Legal and Governance Implications 
3.1 The approval of the council tax base detailed in this report is required in accordance with 

the legislation referred to. S67 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 sets out the 
requirements for council tax setting which can be discharged by full Council.  The 
proposals in this report will be considered by Council at its budget setting meeting.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Head of Legal Services

4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
4.1 None

5 Risk and Mitigation
5.1 N/A

6 Community Safety Implications 
6.1 None

7 Other Implications (where significant) 
7.1 None

8 Background Papers
8.1 None

9 Appendices
9.1 Appendix A – 2020/21 Council Tax base by Parish

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

1 February 2019

Previously Considered by: Council 1 March 2019

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  10 December 2019

10



Total Band D
Equivalents

2020/21

Impact of LCTSS
(Localised Council

Tax support
scheme)

Adjusted Band D
Equivalents

2020/21
Grantham combined 12,492.10 (1,377.00) 11,115.10
Stamford combined 7,836.70 (584.30) 7,252.40
Bourne Combined 6,156.50 (395.20) 5,761.30
Allington 373.40 (26.00) 347.40
Ancaster 614.20 (43.60) 570.60
Aslackby 117.00 (7.00) 110.00
Barholm & Stowe 36.00 (2.60) 33.40
Barkston and Syston combined 272.30 (23.00) 249.30
Barrowby 770.80 (42.50) 728.30
Baston 625.80 (24.50) 601.30
Belton & Manthorpe 207.60 (4.30) 203.30
Billingborough 526.90 (46.20) 480.70
Bitchfield 60.60 (7.20) 53.40
Boothby Pagnell 67.30 (2.50) 64.80
Braceborough & Wilsthorpe 144.20 (1.00) 143.20
Braceby, Humby, Ropsely, Sapperton combined 348.00 (26.50) 321.50
Burton Coggles 40.80 (1.30) 39.50
Careby 74.50 (0.40) 74.10
Carlby 215.80 (8.50) 207.30
Carlton Scroop and Normanton combined 131.10 (7.00) 124.10
Castle Bytham 319.90 (16.90) 303.00
Caythorpe & Frieston 556.50 (33.80) 522.70
Claypole 538.20 (24.30) 513.90
Colsterwoth, Gunby & Stainby, North Witham combined 808.60 (57.20) 751.40
Corby Glen & Birkholme 433.60 (26.20) 407.40
Counthorpe & Creeton 32.80 (6.20) 26.60
Deeping St James 2,597.90 (138.00) 2,459.90
Denton 132.50 (8.70) 123.80
Dowsby 61.40 (7.30) 54.10
Dunsby 54.10 (3.10) 51.00
Easton and Stoke Rochford combined 95.80 (9.50) 86.30
Edenham 119.10 (7.00) 112.10
Fenton 61.00 (0.70) 60.30
Folkingham 302.80 (23.00) 279.80
Foston 229.20 (7.40) 221.80
Fulbeck 234.40 (16.80) 217.60
Greatford 131.00 (1.60) 129.40
Great Gonerby 838.70 (91.60) 747.10
Great Ponton 144.00 (19.70) 124.30
Haconby & Stainfield 199.00 (11.00) 188.00
Harlaxton 354.50 (8.00) 346.50
Heydour 160.50 (3.50) 157.00
Honington 66.90 (5.20) 61.70
Horbling 177.20 (16.20) 161.00
Hougham 90.70 (5.00) 85.70
Hough-on-the-Hill 174.90 (6.30) 168.60

11

Appendix A



Ingoldsby 123.50 (2.90) 120.60
Irnham 108.50 (1.00) 107.50
Kirkby Underwood 85.50 (4.80) 80.70
Langtoft 784.30 (25.40) 758.90
Lenton 67.40 (2.20) 65.20
Little Bytham 121.70 (8.60) 113.10
Little Ponton & Stroxton 71.40 (4.40) 67.00
Londonthorpe & Harrowby without combined 1,745.70 (75.70) 1,670.00
Long Bennington 974.80 (40.60) 934.20
Market Deeping 2,399.80 (183.00) 2,216.80
Marston 158.90 (6.60) 152.30
Morton & Hanthorpe 892.20 (57.50) 834.70
Old Somerby 96.20 (4.70) 91.50
Pickworth 78.60 (2.60) 76.00
Pointon 209.50 (14.40) 195.10
Rippingale 369.00 (19.50) 349.50
Sedgebrook 149.50 (1.30) 148.20
Skillington 139.10 (9.50) 129.60
South Witham 522.20 (53.30) 468.90
Stubton 81.10 (3.40) 77.70
Swayfield 150.60 (4.70) 145.90
Swinstead 96.80 (19.00) 77.80
Tallington 344.00 (17.30) 326.70
Thurlby 850.60 (40.20) 810.40
Toft Lound & Manthorpe 141.80 (2.20) 139.60
Uffington 319.90 (9.10) 310.80
Welby 81.80 (1.50) 80.30
Westborough & Dry Doddington 156.80 (8.70) 148.10
West Deeping 125.00 (8.10) 116.90
Witham-on-the-Hill 101.90 (3.40) 98.50
Woolsthorpe 162.30 (18.20) 144.10
Wyville cum Hungerton 19.80 0.00 19.80
Total by Billing Area 51,757.00 (3,838.60) 47,918.40

12



Cabinet 

10 December 2019

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes

Cabinet Member for Finance

        

Finance update report - Quarter 2 2019/20

To inform Cabinet of the Council’s forecast 2019/20 financial position as at the end of September 
2019. The report covers the following areas:

 General Fund Revenue Budget (including savings and income generation)

 Housing Revenue Account Budget

 Capital Programmes – General Fund and HRA 

Report Author

Claire Morgan, Senior Management Accountant

01476 406051

claire.morgan@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 4 November 2019

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 22 November 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 26 November 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. The Cabinet is asked to:
 Review and approve the forecast 2019/20 outturn positions for Revenue, 

Savings and Income Generation and Capital as at the end of September 2019 
and identify any variances that require further action.

13

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 Key Messages
1.1 The headline messages at the end of quarter 2 for 2019/20 are:

Revenue Budget – General Fund
i) Expenditure from the general fund revenue budget is forecast to exceed 

budget by £388k

ii) This projected outturn position will result in an additional contribution from 
reserves unless additional savings can be identified during quarters 3 and 4.

Revenue Budget – HRA
iii) The projected surplus from the HRA revenue budget has reduced by £283k 

which will reduce the transfer to reserve to fund future investment in the 
housing stock.

Capital Budget – General Fund
iv) Expenditure from the general fund capital budget is forecast to underspend 

by £9.047m.

v) This underspend primarily relates to the Commercial Investment and 
Regeneration scheme as spend is dependent upon schemes being 
identified.  

Capital Budget – HRA
vi) Expenditure from the HRA capital budget is forecast to underspend by 

£6.198m.

Earmarked Reserves
vii)  The budgeted use of both the General Fund and the HRA Reserves has 

increased to reflect the revenue and capital budget amendments detailed 
throughout this report.

2 Revenue Budget 2019/20 – General Fund 
2.1 The budget set by Budget Council on 1 March 2019 was £17.917m

The Revenue Budget is £19.846m as at the end of September 2019 with detail of the 
changes shown in the table below.

Date of Approval Revenue Budget amendment £’000
17,917

June 2019 2018/19 Budget carry forwards 704
June 2019 2018/19 Grants received 411
June 2019 Invest to Save – Online forms package 11
June 2019 Invest to Save - Finance review /advertising 

sponsorship/internet of things
62

June 2019 Leisure Centre Programme and Town Centre 
Management

441

June 2019 Crowdfunding 100
June 2019 Feasibility provision in respect of the Property 

Investment Policy
150

September 2019 Climate Change 50
TOTAL 19,846

14



2.2 The following table shows the forecast position as at 30 September 2019 of £388k.  
There has been a positive reduction movement since quarter 1 (the forecast at that 
time was stated at £461k) due to a review of anticipated expenditure up to 31 March 
2020, positive cost avoidance initiatives and a prudent forecast of the anticipated 
Business Rates pooling gain.  Having implemented positive steps to reduce the 
forecast it is important to ensure there is maintained focus to further reduce the 
forecast down to the approved budgets.  The details are shown below and at Appendix 
A, B and C.

2019/20 
Original 
Budget

2019/20 
Current 
Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend 

2019/20
Forecast 

spend 
Forecast 
Variance 

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget

Description

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %
Commercial & Operations 5,457 7,250 2,268 7,349 99 1.4%

Growth 7,108 6,595 2,953 6,777 182 2.8%

Finance, Legal & Democratic 7,822 4,770 3,448 5,034 264 5.5%

Transformation & Change  3,701 2,434 3,958 257 6.9%

HRA Recharge (2,470) (2,470) (1,235) (2,470) 0 0.0%

Net Cost of Service 17,917 19,846 9,868 20,648 802 4.0%
Interest Payable and 
Receivable 100 100 (278) (378) ** 

Minimum Revenue Provision 308 308 308 0  

Depreciation (3,619) (3,619) (3,619) 0  

Net Budget Requirement 14,706 16,635 17,059 424  

Funding (16,389) (16,389) (16,639) (250)  
Transfers to/(from) earmarked 
reserves 1,683 (246) (32) 214  

Net Budget (Surplus)/Deficit 0 0 388 388  

2.3 The most significant variances to the budget are detailed below: There are several 
known Budget Pressures in 2019/20 included, some of which are continuing pressures 
from 2018/19

Brief Explanation of Significant Variances £'000

The Council has a workforce efficiency* target which is calculated at 3.5% of the pay 
budgets on the general fund of £483k. This budget is forecast to zero and managed as 
part of the salary monitoring of vacancies within each service area. As at 30 September 
2019, the forecast underspend on salaries in the general fund is £371k

112

Car Parks - Annual assumed budget increases in income have not been matched by 
demand resulting in a forecast variance of £18k. Includes Wharf Road, Grantham £8k, 
Guildhall Street £2k, Watergate £3k and North Street £5k.

18

Markets - Tolls income forecast reduction of £30k is in line with current trader levels at 
Stamford market - circa 90% capacity (115 stalls), with Bourne (16 stalls), Grantham (40 

30

15



stalls) and the newly set up Market Deeping (15 stalls) markets all circa 80% capacity. 
This is 12% of the overall income budget.
HRA asset transfer – Transfer of HRA shops and garages to the general fund forecast to 
zero as sites will be developed as part of the new build programme £25k.

25

Development Management – The level of planning applications has reduced this year 
resulting in income from fees & charges underachieving. This has partially been mitigated 
by additional new income from Planning Performance Agreements.

50

Procurement savings – Savings of £50k are expected to be achieved by the end of 
2019/20. There has been positive work by the newly appointed Procurement Lead officer 
to review the current position and introduce positive steps to ensure that contractual 
arrangements are robust and that value for money is being achieved.  However, given the 
limited time remaining in the financial year, it is prudent to reduce the forecast savings. 

250

Transformation savings – Process automation schemes have been identified and are 
currently being progressed with a reduced forecast saving of £100k against the £200k 
target.  This is to reflect the part-year implementation of the savings with full year 
realisation anticipated from April 2020.

100

Channel Shift savings – Whist work is being progressed in this area, no savings will be 
realised during this financial year. A Customer Experience Strategy will be presented to 
Rural and Communities OSC which will set out the vision for customer engagement.

70

2.4 Appendix B provides detail of the current Revenue position for each Directorate.

Savings and Income Generation Update 2019/20
2.5 The savings and income generation target for 2019/20 is £1.921m

Savings and income generation of £1.275m is on target to be achieved and £646k is 
expected not to be achieved. This includes additional savings from in year service 
reviews of £99k which were not budgeted but will positively contribute towards the 
savings.

2.6 See Appendix C for the financial detail of Savings proposals.

3 Revenue Budget 2019/20 – Housing Revenue Account
3.1 The budget set by Council on 1 March 2019 was a surplus of £5.726m.  The surplus is 

fully utilised to fund future investment in stock growth and property maintenance.

3.2 The most significant variances to the budget are detailed below: 

Brief Explanation of Significant Variances £'000

Dwelling rents – As at 1 April 2019 the opening stock figure was lower than anticipated as a result of the 
increase in right to buy sales during 2018/19 (65 were sold compared to a budgeted figure of 39). During 
this financial year, sales are in accordance with budgeted levels (23 as at quarter 2).  Void rates have 
been budgeted at 1.5% but are currently averaging 1.8% resulting in a shortfall in collectible rent.

300

Total Expenditure – workforce efficiency* target forecast to zero creating a budget forecast overspend 158

Total Expenditure - Employee savings from various in year vacancies and reduced hours.  Current 
vacancies are 4.0 FTE

(129)

Repairs & Maintenance – Expected increase in salaries recharged to capital projects (£60k) and repairs 
works rechargeable in nature (£40k)

(100)

Repairs & Maintenance – Premises maintenance costs expected to increase by 3%, work is reactive in 
nature and spend dependant on the repairs required.

30

16



Supervision and management Special – Increase in service charge of Tunstall system.  This is being 
appraised as part of a full sheltered housing review. 

20

Supervision and management General – Increase in legal costs due to use of external legal services and 
ongoing complex case.

23

Supervision and management Special – savings in grounds maintenance costs for the garden 
maintenance scheme

(50)

TOTAL 252

3.3 Appendix D provides detail of the current HRA revenue position.

4 Capital Programmes 2019/20
General Fund Programme

4.1 The current 2019/20 General Fund Capital Budget is £18.116m. The table below 
shows a summary of the movements:

Date of Approval Revenue Budget amendment £’000
14,269

June 2019 2018/19 Budget carry forwards 3,847
TOTAL 18,116

The most significant variances to the budget are detailed below:

Scheme Brief Explanation of Significant Variances £'000

LED TV screen Scheme is no longer progressing as it is not deemed to be economically viable (103)

Pool Car Keyless 
Entry

Scheme is no longer progressing as it is not deemed to be economically viable, 
alternative options are being explored to utilise this budget in the service area (14)

Payment 
Receipting System

The replacement payment receipting system includes the opportunity to provide 
customers with modern self-serve terminals in each of the area offices.  This 
supports self-serve and improves the customer offer.   The additional spend will be 
offset by future efficiency savings.

14

Wyndham Park 
Improvements 
(HLF)

Retention costs will be payable in 19/20. £36K of this cost will be funded from HLF 
grant and the remaining £6k will be funded from the Grantham SEA reserve. 42

Vehicle 
Replacement 
Programme

Due to the extension of the successful food waste service, a value for money 
review has confirmed that procuring 2 food waste vehicles (£34k) is more cost 
effective than hiring.  The funding is to be met from the approved external funding.

34

Public Realm

Variations to the original tender contract - final value now agreed (infrastructure, 
materials and design and necessary unforeseen costs relating to foundation 
works), Separation and associated works to the Civic Suite including replacement 
of boiler system.

260

Commercial 
Investment & 
Regeneration

A number of sites have been identified for potential regeneration and investment 
some of which have been commissioned to feasibility. To date one acquisition has 
been completed.

(9,350)

 Other variances 70
TOTAL  (9,047)

HRA Capital Programme
4.2 The current 2019/20 HRA Capital Budget is £16.579m. The table below shows a 

summary of the movements:

Date of Approval Revenue Budget amendment £’000
16,489

June 2019 2018/19 Budget carry forward 90
TOTAL 16,579

17



4.3 The most significant variances to the budget are detailed below:

Scheme Brief Explanation of Significant Variances £'000
New Build Properties Forecast spend has been re-profiled to reflect the commencement dates of the 

various schemes with 4 specific schemes expected to complete this financial 
year.

(3,300)

Stock Growth & 
Acquisitions

Forecast spend has been profiled based on current identified properties and 
sites.  Spend is dependant to suitable sites being available.

(2,730)

Housing System 
Enhancements (ICT)

The residual budget of £100k is likely to be incurred in 2020/21 due to ongoing 
dialogue with prospective suppliers.  The request for slippage will be presented 
as part of the budget setting proposals.

(150)

Sewage Maintenance Estimated cost of works expected to be lower than anticipated resulting in a 
forecast saving.

(25)

 Other variances 7
TOTAL  (6,198)

4.4 Appendix E provides detail of the current Capital programmes.

5 Reserves
5.1 The use of General Fund and HRA reserves for the revenue and capital budgets were 

approved by Council on 1 March 2019, the total use of reserves has been amended 
during the year following the approval of the budget carry forwards amendments and 
the current budget forecast.

5.2 The approved movement on the HRA reserves was £8.511m.  As shown at Appendix 
G the in-year use of reserves has reduced to £2.437m.  This movement is mainly due 
to the approved capital budget amendment of £90k detailed in paragraph 4.2, the 
£6.198m underspend on the HRA capital programme shown at Appendix F.

5.3 The approved movement on the General Fund reserves was £2.231m.  As shown at 
Appendix H the in-year use of reserves has increased to £7.790m.  This increase is 
mainly due to the approved revenue budget amendments of £1.929m detailed in 
paragraph 2.1 and the approved capital budget amendments of £3.847m detailed in 
paragraph 4.1.  These are offset by the forecast underspend on the use of reserves 
detailed at Appendix A of £214k, an underspend of £300k in reserve funded interest 
payable as the Council has not been required to undertake additional external 
borrowing and an overspend in capital expenditure of £276k which will be funded from 
reserves.

6 Looking Ahead
6.1 The budgetary plans for next financial year and the medium term are underway but are 

being prepared against an uncertain backdrop of the funding levels likely to be 
allocated to the Council by the Government.  The fair funding and business rates reset 
has been deferred by a further year with an expected implementation date of April 
2021 but next year’s provisional settlement figures have also been deferred until after 
the General Election.  It is hoped that announcements will be made soon after the 
Election in order to enable Councils to set robust budgets.  For the present time the 
budget proposals are being based on previously announced assumed funding levels in 

18



the absence of alternative information being available.  Cabinet will be kept informed 
of changes to the financial landscape over the coming weeks.

The Council has been a member of the Lincolnshire rating pool for a number of years 
(in 2018/19 it became a 100% business rates pilot for one year only) and financially 
has positively benefited from being a member.  The current indications are that the 
pool will continue in 2020/21 and the financial modelling indicates the Council will 
continue to benefit from being a pool member.  Again, Cabinet will be kept informed of 
developments and progress on this matter.  

7 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
7.1 Cabinet should be kept updated on the financial position of the authority, as effective 

budget management is critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the 
budget and are targeted towards the Council's priorities. Monitoring enables the early 
identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action.

7.2 This report provides an overview of the forecast 2019/20 financial position for the 
Council and focuses on the position as at the end of September 2019.

8 Financial Implications 
8.1 These are included in the report.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance

9 Legal and Governance Implications 
9.1 As part of good governance, it is important members are kept updated in respect of 

the financial position of the Council expenditure during the course of the year.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Interim Head of Legal

10 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
10.1 Not applicable.

11 Risk and Mitigation
11.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks have been 

identified.

12 Community Safety Implications 
12.1 Not applicable

13 Other Implications (where significant) 
13.1 Not applicable

14 Background Papers
14.1 Determination of Budget 2019/20 and indicative budgets to 21/22 – General Fund, 

Housing Revenue Account and associated Capital Programmes Report 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22386/2019-
20%20Budget%20report.pdf

14.2 Outturn Position 2018/19 report 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23133/Outturn%20Report%2020
18-19%20Final.pdf

19

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23133/Outturn%20Report%202018-19%20Final.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23133/Outturn%20Report%202018-19%20Final.pdf


14.3 Finance Update Report – Quarter 1 2019/20

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23807/Budget%20Monitoring%20
Qtr%201%20Report%20-%20FORMATTED.pdf

14.4 Finance Update Report – Quarter 2 2019/20

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24305/Budget%20Monitoring%20
Qtr%202%20Report%20FINAL.pdf

15 Appendices
15.1 Appendix A – General Fund Forecast Position 2019/20 - Quarter 2

15.2 Appendix B – General Fund Revenue Variance Analysis

15.3 Appendix C – 2019/20 Savings & Income Generation – Quarter 2

15.4 Appendix D – HRA Forecast Position 2019/20 – Quarter 2

15.5 Appendix E – General Fund Capital Programme 2019/20 – Quarter 2

15.6 Appendix F – HRA Capital Programme 2019/20 – Quarter 2

15.7 Appendix G – HRA Reserves Statement - Forecast

15.8 Appendix H – General Fund Reserves Statement - Forecast

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by: Growth 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Not applicable

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  Not applicable

20

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23807/Budget%20Monitoring%20Qtr%201%20Report%20-%20FORMATTED.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23807/Budget%20Monitoring%20Qtr%201%20Report%20-%20FORMATTED.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank 

21



APPENDIX A

GENERAL FUND REVENUE SUMMARY 2019/20 
CURRENT POSITION AS AT SEPTEMBER 2019

2019/20 
Original 
Budget

2019/20 
Current 
Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend 

2019/20
Forecast 

spend 
Forecast 
Variance 

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget

Description

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %
Commercial & Operations 5,457 7,250 2,268 7,349 99 1.4%

Growth 7,108 6,595 2,953 6,777 182 2.8%

Finance, Legal & Democratic 7,822 4,770 3,448 5,034 264 5.5%

Transformation & Change  3,701 2,434 3,958 257 6.9%

HRA Recharge (2,470) (2,470) (1,235) (2,470) 0 0.0%

Net Cost of Service 17,917 19,846 9,868 20,648 802 4.0%
Interest Payable and 
Receivable 100 100 (278) (378) ** 

Minimum Revenue Provision 308 308 308 0  

Depreciation (3,619) (3,619) (3,619) 0  

Net Budget Requirement 14,706 16,635 17,059 424  

Funding and Resources:      

Council Tax (7,475) (7,475) (7,475) 0  

Section Grants (118) (118) (118) 0  
Retained Business Rates, s31 
Grant & Pooling Gain (5,154) (5,154) (5,404) (250)  

New Homes Bonus (1,957) (1,957) (1,957) 0  

Rural Grant (295) (295) (295) 0  
Collection Fund 
(Surplus)/Deficit (1,390) (1,390) (1,390) 0  

Total Funding (16,389) (16,389) (16,639) (250)  
Transfers to/(from) earmarked 
reserves 1,683 (246) (32) 214  

Net Budget (Surplus)/Deficit 0 0 388 388  

** Forecast updated due to the profiling of borrowing requirements

22



This page is intentionally left blank

23



APPENDIX B

General Fund Revenue Significant Variance Analysis as at September 2019

COMMERCIAL & OPERATIONS

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Net Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend

2019/20
Forecast 

spend

Forecast 
VarianceService Area RAG 

rating

£'000 £'000 £'000 £’000 £'000 £'000 %

Building Control Green 872,400 (794,750) 77,650 (132,284) 51,100 (26,550) -34.2%
Commercial & 
Operations Management Amber 212,800  212,800 114,913 229,000 16,200 7.6%

Community Resilience Amber 432,850 (38,400) 394,450 218,339 391,500 (2,950) -0.7%

Corporate Operations Green 3,403,650 (1,735,000) 1,668,650 1,336,708 1,670,600 1,950 0.1%

Environmental Amber 1,103,600 (233,000) 870,600 (409,390) 841,000 (29,600) -3.4%

Licensing   Amber 135,950 (294,800) (158,850) (213,846) (154,700) 4,150 -2.6%

Street Scene   Amber 5,963,691 (1,779,041) 4,184,650 1,353,196 4,320,200 135,550 3.2%

TOTAL  12,124,941 (4,874,991) 7,249,950 2,267,636 7,348,700 98,750 1.4%

Brief Explanation of Significant Variances                            £'000

Workforce Efficiency* 186

Environmental – Disabled Facilities Grants -  capitalisation of salaries (58)

Environmental – Programme of flood prevention works for 2019/20 has resulted in a forecast underspend (14)

Environmental - Fewer Fixed Penalty Notices than originally anticipated being issued.  Car parking enforcement moved in house 
for October 2019 which will offset the cost of staffing across the enforcement service as a whole and represents a savings against 
the previous enforcement contract

36

Corporate Operations – Car Parks - Annual assumed budget increases in income have not been matched by demand. 18

Corporate Operations - Bourne Cicle festival expenditure forecast overspend increased to £87k, offset by sponsorship of (£26k), 
£10k of remaining reserve funding and a contribution from Invest SK of £50k.

0

Corporate Operations – Lease renewal at Council offices resulting in additional unbudgeted income (34)

Street Scene – Pool Cars- The capital scheme for a keyless entry system is no longer proceeding. The in year revenue budget is 
therefore not required although alternative options are being explored to utilise this budget in the service area

(26)

TOTAL 108

GROWTH

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Net Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend

2019/20
Forecast 

spend

Forecast 
VarianceService Area RAG 

rating

£'000 £'000 £'000 £’000 £'000 £'000 %

24



Arts Centres Amber 2,467,550 (1,166,750) 1,300,800 237,564 1,335,800 35,000 2.7%

Deliver SK Green 59,000  59,000 39,250 59,000 0 0%
Development 
Management Red 1,348,450 (1,407,100) (58,650) 169,536 87,200 145,850 -248.7%

Growth Management Amber 272,950  272,950 142,178 280,400 7,450 2.7%

Housing Amber 920,750 (310,250) 610,500 178,286 661,437 50,937 8.3%

Invest SK Green 1,714,750 (303,200) 1,411,550 1,470,692 1,411,550 0 0%

Leisure Centres Amber 2,440,550 (147,150) 2,293,400 387,044 2,310,400 17,000 0.7%

Markets Red 293,950 (273,700) 20,250 60,613 49,050 28,800 142.2%

Planning Policy Green 663,250 (40,000) 623,250 366,286 564,000 (59,250) -9.5%

Property Development Green 1,251,750 (1,189,650) 62,100 (98,941) 18,300 (43,800) -70.5%

TOTAL  11,432,950 (4,837,800) 6,595,150 2,952,508 6,777,137 181,987 2.8%

Brief Explanation of Significant Variances                                                                                                                                                      £'000

Workforce Efficiency target * 107

Arts Centres - Changes to the catering provision at Stamford Arts Centre has reduced the forecast by £15k whilst lease 
negotiations are undertaken.

15

Land Charges – Reduced forecast of search fees in relation to information obtained by LCC and the current level of searches. (29)

Land Charges – Reduced number of searches being undertaken compared to previous year resulting in under achieved income. 20

Markets - Tolls income forecast is in line with continued capacity levels at Stamford market - circa 90%, with Bourne, Grantham 
and the newly set up Market Deeping markets all circa 80%.

30

Development Management – The level of planning applications has reduced this year resulting in income from fees & charges 
underachieving. This has partially been mitigated by additional new income from Planning Performance Agreement 

50

Development Management – Due to a number of additional vacancies during the year, further agency costs will be incurred to 
undertake specific project work. These are to be funded from grant monies received in previous years

90

Planning Policy - Vacant Neighbourhood Planning Officer 0.8 FTE and Senior Planning Policy Officer 1 FTE (59)

Property Development – Transfer of HRA shops and garages to the general fund forecast to zero as sites will be developed as part 
of the new build programme

25

Property Development – A 1 FTE surveyor role has recently been appointed to following a 6-month vacancy having resulted in an   
underspend of (£21k)

(21)

Property Development – The feasibility costs forecast has been reduced whilst further potential acquisitions are investigated. The 
approved reserve movement will also be reduced.

(90)

Property Development – Review being undertaken on future use of recent site acquisition. Currently there are increased security 
costs and no source of income

77

TOTAL 215

FINANCE, LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Net 
Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend

2019/20
Forecast 

spend

Forecast 
VarianceService Area RAG 

rating

£'000 £'000 £'000 £’000 £'000 £'000 %

Finance Green 2,223,985 (507,700) 1,716,285 1,322,770 1,677,959 (38,326) -2.2%

25



Benefits Green 28,662,917 (28,886,600) (223,683) (63,016) (316,127) (92,444) -41.3%

Corporate Red 1,623,350 (98,550) 1,524,800 945,738 1,923,842 399,042 26.2%

Legal & Democratic Green 1,905,950 (268,200) 1,637,750 949,735 1,636,448 (1,302) -0.1%

Revenue Services Green 650,999 (536,400) 114,599 292,775 111,877 (2,722) -2.4%

TOTAL  35,067,201 (30,297,450) 4,769,751 3,448,002 5,033,999 264,248 5.5%

Brief Explanation of Significant Variance                                                                                                                                                        £ '000

Workforce Efficiency target * 108

Finance – In year service review savings (50)

Benefits – Admin subsidy grant income being received at an increased level to the budget (45)

Benefits – In year benefit assessor vacancies – 4 FTE.  These posts will be reviewed following the implementation of the virtual 
worker process automation

(81)

Corporate – Agency spend efficiency saving to be monitored with the workforce efficiency target 75

Corporate – Procurement Savings of £50k are expected to be achieved by the end of 2019/20. This is against the target of £300k 250

Corporate – Shared services forecast reduced following cessation of secondments 34

Corporate – No further subscription savings are due to be realised during the year. 35

TOTAL 326

TRANSFORMATION & CHANGE

Forecast 
Variance 
against 
Current 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Net 
Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend

2019/20
Forecast 

spend

Forecast 
VarianceService Area RAG rating

£'000 £'000 £'000 £’000 £'000 £'000 %

Customer Services Amber 632,400 (59,850) 572,550 264,448 622,250 49,700 8.7%

ICT Services Amber 1,569,199 (91,200) 1,477,999 1,154,983 1,537,863 59,864 4.1%
Organisational 
Development Amber 445,550 (19,200) 426,350 226,921 454,550 28,200 6.6%

Reputation, Consultation & 
Communications Amber 644,600 (7,500) 637,100 302,618 682,300 45,200 7.1%

Transformation Amber 579,150 (10,000) 587,150 485,071 661,000 73,850 12.6%

TOTAL  3,888,899 (187,750) 3,701,149 2,434,041 3,957,963 256,814 6.9%

Brief Explanation of Major Variances                                                                                                                                                                                           £'000

Workforce efficiency target * 88

Reputation, Consultation & Communications – Print room efficiency savings -The authority will retain some print capability. However, the amount of 
space required for this has been reduced and opportunities are being explored to reutilise the space and either reduce operating overheads or 
generate a commercial income 

40

ICT Services – In year vacancies including an internal secondment has resulted in an under spend of (£55k) (55)

ICT Services - Corporate licence fees which were not budgeted 72

ICT Services – Efficiency savings in respect of printers will not be realised in 2019/20 due to the number of printers still required although usage levels 
are being reviewed with service areas 

20

26



Transformation – Process automation schemes have been identified and are currently being progressed with a reduced forecast saving of £100k 
against the £200k target

100

Transformation – Channel Shift savings - Whist work is being progressed in this area, no savings will be realised during this financial year 70

Transformation – Business Support Team inception has created in year savings of (£49k) (49)

TOTAL 286

27



This page is intentionally left blank

28



APPENDIX C
SAVINGS AND INCOME GENERATION SUMMARY AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

DETAILS 19/20 
BUDGET FORECAST FORECAST 

VARIANCE RAG STATUS*

 £’000 £'000 £'000 19/20
GREEN WASTE COLLECTION CHARGE (58) (58) 0 Green
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH INCREASES (6) (6) 0 Green
COMMERCIAL WASTE (net) (77) (23) 54 Red
HRA - TRANSFER OF NON HOUSING ASSETS (25) 0 25 Red
VALUATION ADVICE - RECOVERY OF ANNUAL COST (15) (15) 0 Amber
PLANNING POLICY & HERITAGE SUPPORT ADVICE TO PARTNERS (18) (18) 0 Green
PLANNING FEES INCREASE (176) (156) 20 Amber
IDOX SHARED SERVICES (40) (40) 0 Green
LOCAL LOTTERY IN LIEU OF EXISTING GRANTS (10) (10) 0 Amber
SHARED SERVICE OPPORTUNITIES (50) (16) 34 Red
LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC STAFF REDUCTION (37) (37) 0 Green
RESTRUCTURE SAVINGS (300) (300) 0 Green
REDUCTION OF MULTI-FUNCTIONAL DEVICES (20) 0 20 Red
CORPORATE PROCUREMENT SAVINGS (300) (50) 250 Red
CORPORATE USE OF AGENCY STAFF (75) 0 75 Red
CORPORATE SUBSCRIPTIONS (50) (15) 35 Red
CUSTOMER SERVICES COST REDUCTION (60) (60) 0 Green
ICT STAFF REDUCTION (40) (40) 0 Green
ICT LICENCE SAVINGS (20) 0 20 Red
CORPORATE INCREASE OF VACANCY FACTOR (60) (60) 0 Green
REMOVAL OF ADMIN SUPPORT (72) (32) 40 Amber
COMMUNICATIONS ADMIN ASSISTANT (10) (10) 0 Green
TRANSFORMATION PROCESS AUTOMATION (200) (100) 100 Red
CHANNEL SHIFT SAVINGS (70) 0 70 Red
MEDICAL INSURANCE SAVINGS (20) (18) 2 Green
CORPORATE PROCUREMENT - LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT (70) (70) 0 Green
COMMUNICATIONS REDUCTION IN SUPPLIES & SERVICES BUDGETS (32) (32) 0 Green
COMMUNICATIONS SAVINGS CENTRALISATION (10) (10) 0 Amber
SERVICE REVIEWS IN YEAR (99) (99) Green

(1,921) (1,275) 646

*RAG status
Red - unlikely to achieve budget
Amber - showing signs of being unlikely to achieve budget but under review
Green – on target to achieve budget

29



This page is intentionally left blank

30



APPENDIX D

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT SUMMARY 2019/20 
CURRENT POSITION AS AT SEPTEMBER 2019

Description
2019/20 
Original 
Budget

2019/20 
Current 
Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend

2019/20
Forecast 

spend
Forecast 
Variance

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
INCOME      
Dwelling Rents (24,408) (24,408) (11,863) (24,108) 300
Non-Dwelling Rents (319) (319) (156) (323) (4)
Charges for Services and 
Facilities (662) (662) (339) (685) (23)

Other Income (66) (66) (33) (66) 0
TOTAL INCOME (25,455) (25,455) (12,391) (25,182) 273
      
EXPENDITURE      
Repairs and Maintenance 8,110 8,110 3,133 8,037 (73)
Supervision and Management - 
General

3,201 3,207 848 3,294 87

Supervision and Management - 
Special

1,326 1,321 444 1,323 2

HRA share of Corporate and 
Democratic Costs

421 421 0 421 0

Depreciation and Impairment of 
Fixed Assets 3,620 3,620 0 3,620 0

Debt Management Expenses 35 35 0 35 0
Provision for bad debts 245 245 0 245 0
Other Expenditure (Pension 
Deficit) 272 272 97 266 (6)

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 17,230 17,230 4,522 17,241 10
      
NET COST OF HRA SERVICES (8,225) (8,225) (7,869) (7,941) 283
Interest Payable and Similar 
Charges 2,718 2,718 1,371 2,718 0

Interest and Investment Income (219) (219) 0 (219) 0
      
DEFICIT (SURPLUS) FOR THE 
YEAR ON THE HRA (5,726) (5,726) (6,498) (5,442) 283

31



This page is intentionally left blank 

32



APPENDIX E

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY 2019/20 
CURRENT POSITION AS AT SEPTEMBER 2019

Capital Scheme
2019/20 
Original 
Budget

2019/20 
Current 
Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend

2019/20
Forecast 

spend
Forecast 
Variance

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
COMMERCIAL      
Wheelie Bin Replacements 100 100 57 100 0
Pool Vehicles 0 12 10 10 (2)
Disabled Facilities Grant 797 797 461 800 3
Street Scene Vehicle Procurement 310 310 82 310 0
Vehicle Electric Charging Points 0 39 0 39 0
Vehicle Replacement Programme 705 705 739 739 34
CCTV Matrix 23 23 22 23 0
Pool Car Keyless Entry 14 14 0 0 (14)
Trade Waste Bins 24 24 27 32 8
GROWTH      
Grantham Christmas Lights - SEA 40 40 0 40 0
Car Parking Infrastructure 50 50 0 50 0
Market Stall Covers 29 29 0 29 0
Tourism Signage 50 100 48 100 0
QE Park Car Park 30 31 32 31 0
Shop Front Scheme 130 130 141 141 11
St Peter's Hill Development 0 1,436 1,419 1,470 34
Wyndham Park Improvements (HLF) 0 0 42 42 42
Local Authority Controlled Company 1,400 1,680 0 1,680 0
Public Realm 0 1,315 1,356 1,575 260
LED TV Screen 103 103 0 0 (103)
Guildhall Arts Centre - Projector 15 15 14 15 0
Meres - Gas Boiler 65 65 0 65 0
Dysart Park Improvements 55 55 52 52 (3)
Invest & Regeneration 10,000 10,000 428 660 (9,340)
Wyndham Park Car Park 29 28 23 28 0
University Fit-Out 0 680 31 680 0
Property Acquisition 0 0 6 6 6
RESOURCES      
Payment Receipting System 40 40 54 54 14
Financial System Upgrade 0 0 3 3 3
TRANSFORMATION & CHANGE      
Uninterruptible Power Supply Replacement 0 15 0 15 0
ICT Infrastructure 65 85 5 85 0
Server & Storage Infrastructure 115 115 0 115 0
Digital Services Compliance 80 80 0 80 0
      
TOTAL 14,269 18,116 5,052 9,069 (9,047)

33



This page is intentionally left blank 

34



APPENDIX F

HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME SUMMARY 2019/20 
CURRENT POSITION AS AT SEPTEMBER 2019

Capital Scheme
2019/20 
Original 
Budget

2019/20 
Current 
Budget

Actuals & 
Committed 

spend

2019/20
Forecast 

spend
Forecast 
Variance

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
New Build Properties 6,800 6,800 26 3,500 (3,300)
Stock Growth & Acquisitions 5,000 5,000 304 2,270 (2,730)
Kitchens & Bathrooms Programme 1,000 1,000 937 1,000 0
Roofing 1,200 1,200 1,262 1,200 0
Electrical Rewires 300 300 216 300 0
Replacement Door Programme 100 100 43 100 0
External Wall Insulation 0 0 5 5 5
Communal Rooms 70 70 62 70 0
Sewage Maintenance 100 100 37 75 (25)
Heating and Ventilation 1,514 1,514 1,132 1,514 0
Repairs Vehicles 155 245 265 247 2
Housing System Enhancements 250 250 0 100 (150)
      
TOTAL 16,489 16,579 4,289 10,381 (6,198)

35



APPENDIX G

2019/20 HRA Reserves Forecast Statement

Balance as at
31 March 2019

£000

Movement Balance as at
31 March 2020

£000
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
Revenue Reserves:
Insurance Reserve 200 0 200
Service Specific Funds (Pension) 436 (283) 153
HRA Improvement Reserve 656 (100) 556
Loan Repayment Reserve 1,350 0 1,350
Property Development Reserve 14,723 (2,270) 12,453
Residents Involvement 30 0 30
Working Balance 2,007 242 2,249
Total HRA Revenue Reserves 19,402 (2,411) 16,991

HRA Capital Reserve
HRA Capital Receipts Reserve 6,660 (602) 6,058
Major Repairs Reserve 12,659 576 13,235
Total HRA Capital Reserves 19,319 (26) 19,293

Total HRA Reserves 38,721 (2,437) 36,284

36



APPENDIX H

2019/20 General Fund Forecast Statement

Balance as at
31 March 2019

£000

Movement Balance as at
31 March 2020

£000
General Fund
Discretionary Reserves:
Training and Development 15 (11) 4
Events and Festivals 117 (117) 0
Street Scene 76 0 76
ICT Reserve 320 (227) 93
Economic Development & Growth 128 (79) 49
Community Fund 78 (78) 0
Local Priorities Reserve 9,680 (4,225) 5,455
Invest to Save 1,000 139 1,139
Housing Delivery 912 0 912
Property Maintenance Reserve 110 0 110
Regeneration 1,213 522 1,735
Food Waste 45 (45) 0

13,694 (4,121) 9,573

Governance
Insurance Reserve 308 0 308
Pension Reserve – Former Employees 421 (48) 373
Pension Reserve – Current Employees 1,011 (953) 58
Budget Stabilisation 1,507 1,336 2,843
Building Control 30 8 38
Football 3G Pitch 50 25 75
Special Expense Area Reserve 214 (56) 158

3,541 312 3,853

Total General Revenue Reserves 17,235 (3,809) 13,426

Government Grants 1,667 (731) 936

Working Balance 2,835 (669) 2,166

Total General Fund Revenue Reserves 21,737 (5,209) 16,528

Capital Reserves:
LAMS Reserve 18 0 18
St Peters Hill Development 1,959 (1,470) 489
General Fund Capital Reserve 1,775 (852) 923
Capital Receipts Reserve 2,587 (259) 2,328
Total General Fund Capital Reserves 6,339 (2,581) 3,758

Total General Fund Reserves 28,076 (7,790) 20,286

37



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet
10th December 2019

Report of: Cllr Barry Dobson

Council Member for Housing
Deputy Leader of the Council

        

South Kesteven District Council Tenancy Agreement

Report Author

Celia Bown, Senior Housing Policy and Housing Strategy Officer

 01476 406063

 c.bown@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Growth Key All Wards

Reviewed by: Helen Clarke, Head of Housing Services 25 November 2019

Approved by: Harry Rai, Assistant Director - Housing 26 November 2019

Signed off by: Cllr Barry Dobson, Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Deputy Leader of the Council 27 November 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. Approves the proposed Tenancy Agreement, as appended (Appendix 1) to this 
report, and for it to be sent as a ‘notice of variation’ to all tenants of South 
Kesteven District Council (“the Council”) in accordance with Section 103 of the 
Housing Act 1985.

39

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 South Kesteven District Council’s current Secure Tenancy Agreement was adopted in 

2002 and no longer reflects the current needs of the housing services or the context in 
which social housing now operates. The revised agreement presented has been drafted to 
address this.

1.2 The new Tenancy Agreement will replace the current Tenancy Agreement and all tenants 
will receive a copy of this varied Tenancy Agreement (existing tenants do not need to sign 
this new varied tenancy agreement).  Section 103 of the Housing Act, 1985 states that the 
notice of variation shall specify:

(a) the variation effected by it, and

(b) the date on which it takes effect;

the period between the date on which it is served and the date on which it takes effect 
must be at least four weeks or the rental period, whichever is the longer. 

The notice of variation, when served, shall be accompanied by such information as the 
landlord considers necessary to inform the tenant of the nature and effect of the variation.

1.3 The proposed draft Tenancy Agreement has been written using references from our 
current Secure Tenancy Agreement and other examples of good practice from various 
Local Authorities and Registered Providers. Officers representing the various landlord 
services, who use the Tenancy Agreement as part of their day to day work were also 
consulted in the drafting of this document.

1.4 Although most of the proposed changes have been made to improve the clarity and 
understanding of the Tenancy Agreement, some have also been made to enhance the 
ability to enforce the terms and conditions of the agreement, there are a number of 
significant changes as outlined below.

Single Tenancy Agreement

The proposed Tenancy 
Agreement covers both 
Introductory and Secure 
Tenancy Agreements as one 
single Tenancy Agreement

We currently have separate Tenancy Agreements 
for ‘Introductory Tenants’ and ‘Secure Tenants’.  
It is now good practice to have a single Tenancy 
Agreement for all tenancies as they both contain 
the same core terms and conditions. Having a 
single Tenancy Agreement will negate the need 
to send a new ‘Secure Tenancy Agreement’ at 
the end of the introductory period. The tenancy 
agreement sets out which rights and 
responsibilities apply to both Introductory Tenants 
and Secure Tenants or just Secure Tenants.

Clarification 

We have removed some of the 
guidance in the Tenancy 
Agreement that is better suited 

A separate Tenants’ Handbook is given to 
tenants along with the Tenancy Agreement.  The 
handbook is to be used for guidance only and 
cannot contain any conditions of tenancy.  The 

40



to being in the Tenants’ 
Handbook 

handbook will be updated to only provide 
guidance.

Joint Tenancies 

We have clarified the 
responsibilities of joint tenants. 

The previous agreement was not clear in 
emphasising that joint tenants are ‘jointly and 
severally’ liable for adhering to the Tenancy 
Agreement.

Repairs and Improvements 

We have made clearer the 
requirements around allowing 
access to the property.  

The proposed changes clarifies the rules and 
reasons under which tenants must allow access 
to their property.

Clarified the rules around 
damage and improvements to 
the property and tenants 
responsibilities.

We have also emphasised how we will enforce 
the sanctions if tenants damage their homes or 
do not obtain permission to carry out 
improvements. 

Emphasised the tenant’s 
responsibilities for minor 
repairs.

The previous agreement was unclear on the 
tenant’s responsibilities for minor repairs.  

Clarified the rules under 
disclaimers for improvements 
taken on by a new tenant.

We have included the condition that where a 
tenant chooses not to sign a disclaimer, the 
Council will either replace the item with the 
Council standard equivalent or take on the repair 
responsibility.

Animals/Pets

We have clarified the 
conditions under which pets 
may be kept and made it 
easier to enforce the 
agreement where this is 
breached.

The previous agreement was very prescriptive on 
the pets tenants could keep and their 
management, which made it difficult to enforce. 
The proposed changes allow a more flexible 
approach, providing more discretion on how we 
manage and enforce this. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
2.1 Under Section 102 and 103 of the Housing Act 1985, the Council is required to consult with 

all its tenants on any proposed changes to the Tenancy Agreement and invite feedback.  
The proposed varied Tenancy Agreement was posted to all Council tenants and the 
consultation period was for the legal minimum period of 4 weeks during September.  The 
letter and table of changes were also translated into Polish and Lithuanian and sent to 
tenants who had requested this.  The tenancy agreement was also sent to key partner 
agencies who work with our tenants.

41



2.2 We received a good response from the consultation, both in terms of the amount of feedback 
forms received and the comments, which were mostly either positive about the proposed 
changes, or constructive changes were recommended.

2.3 We received responses from approximately 440 people, 300 (c.5% of c.6000 tenants) of 
which had no comments on and 140 with comments on.  Of these, 60 (c.1% of total 
tenants) were in relation to the tenancy agreement and 80 were in relation to other issues.  
Although 300 of the feedback forms had no comments on and just completed the 
demographic information, this indicates that they do not have any complaints with the 
proposed varied tenancy agreement.

2.4 Around 60% of the responses were from people 65 and over; 67% were from tenants in 
general needs housing and 61% came from Grantham, Bourne and Stamford.

2.5 The main comments we received back were as follows:

 No smoking in shared communal areas needs to be inserted
 Information regarding the ending of a tenancy upon death needed
 Assistance needed if someone cannot do minor repairs themselves
 The size of the text throughout needs to be larger and the two pages in orange at the 

start of the tenancy agreement needs changing to a different colour as they are hard 
to read

 The right to compensation for repairs if not completed within reasonable time or is 
unfit to live in due to poor conditions, needs to be inserted

 The right to make a complaint needs to be inserted
 The number of pets tenants are allowed to keep should be stated
 Information on Right to Buy needed

2.6 The tenancy agreement has been revised to incorporate most of these recommended 
changes.  However, the section on pets has not been changed because the number of 
pets a tenant keeps does not necessarily mean it will cause a nuisance to the neighbours.  
Instead, where a tenant’s pet is dangerous or causing a nuisance, then this issue will be 
enforced.  Information on Right to Buy will be in the tenant’s handbook.

2.7 The main significant changes to the tenancy agreement, following the consultation version 
(see Appendix 2), can be found in the following sections:

 The size of the text throughout is larger and the two pages in orange at the start of the 
tenancy agreement have been changed to black and white.

 The right to compensation for repairs if not completed within reasonable time or is unfit to 
live in due to poor conditions – section 5 (page 10).

 Assistance needed if someone cannot do minor repairs themselves - section 5 (page 12)
 No smoking in shared communal areas – section 8 (page 16)
 Information regarding the ending of a tenancy upon death – section 14 (page 23)
 The right to make a complaint – section 17 (page 26)

2.8 We have decided that, on reflection, the plan of the garden area a tenant is responsible 
for, which we were intending to include with the tenancy agreement, will not work in 
practice and so will not include this.  Instead, if an issue arises, this will be dealt with on a 
case by case basis.

42



2.9 Members of the Rural & Communities Overview & Scrutiny committee recommended to 
cabinet to approve the Tenancy Agreement subject to:

 Change an errant “they” to a “you” (page 4 of the tenancy agreement)

 Clarification of Clause 13 as per page 18 of the agreement.  This is an error 
and the word “Clause 13” has now been deleted.

 Include the support provided by the council to prevent eviction.  This has 
been inserted into the rent arrears paragraph in section 4.

2.10 The document was checked again for legal accuracy.  There were not any significant 
changes needed.  The following has been changed:

 Further explanation of what a ‘tenant’ and ‘address’ means (page 2).

 Explanation to tenants that they must use the premises as their only or main private 
home (section 3. a. page 7)

 Insertion explaining that access is required to annually inspect gas 
supply/appliances (section 3. a. page 7)

 Insertion explaining that a tenant may lose their home if they do not pay ‘other 
charges’ as well as rent (section 4. e. page 9)

 Explanation that where a tenant fails to settle all outgoings for their home, upon the 
termination of a tenancy or where we have secured an order for possession, we 
will, if requested, forward their details to any creditors they owe money to (section 
4. f. page 9)

 Removal of the sentence ‘this can result in a court order being granted to the 
Council, for instance for possession, an injunction or an anti-social behaviour order’ 
after the sentence ‘we may enforce the tenancy agreement by using all legal 
remedies available to us’ (section 6. b. page 13)

 The sentence ‘we may provide less notice where we consider it appropriate to do 
so for example in the case of an emergency has been inserted into (section 6. f. 
page 14)

3 Available Options Considered
3.1 The alternative option would be to not update the tenancy agreement.

4 Preferred Option
4.1 The preferred option is for this varied tenancy agreement to receive Cabinet approval and 

for all South Kesteven District Council tenants to receive it.

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
5.1 The reason for the recommendation is because the consequence of Cabinet not approving 

the varied tenancy agreement impacts on our ability to effectively enforce the tenancy 
agreement conditions.

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision

43



6.1 All South Kesteven District Council tenants will receive communication of the decision by 
receiving the varied tenancy agreement. The decision is implemented and takes effect 
once the varied tenancy agreement has been served on the tenant and at least four weeks 
or the rental period, has passed.

6.2 The notice of variation will include information, which will inform tenants, of the nature and 
effect of the variation.

7 Financial Implications 
7.1 There will be a cost incurred for the printing and postage of the varied Tenancy 

Agreement, which will be met from existing resources.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 
Legal and Governance Implications 

7.2 S102 of the Housing Act 1985 sets out ways a secure tenancy can be varied.  The Council 
are seeking to vary its terms in accordance with S103 of the Housing Act 1985.   The 
Council must serve a Notice of Variation on each tenant before the changes can take 
effect, and prior to this, the Council must serve on each tenant a Preliminary Notice.  The 
Preliminary Notice informs the tenant of the Council’s intention to serve a Notice of 
Variation in addition to specifying the proposed variation, its effect and invite the tenant to 
comment on the proposed.  When the consultation process has been completed, the 
Council must give a minimum notice period of 4 weeks’ notice of any change.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shelley Hardy, Legal Executive

8 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
8.1 Yes.  For tenants who cannot read or write; cannot read or write in English; or who are 

visually impaired, will either not be able or will have difficulty with reading the tenancy 
agreement.  This will be mitigated through alternative forms of communication being used.  
This may include; telephone or face to face contact; letters in the person’s first language; 
braille or large print. (see Appendix 3).

9 Risk and Mitigation
9.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are included in 

the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls

An out dated tenancy agreement 
can pose a risk to the Council if 
matters such as rent arrears and 
anti-social behaviour cannot be 
enforced effectively.

This varied tenancy agreement will assist 
with effectively managing our tenancies.

10 Community Safety Implications 
10.1 The additional and amended clauses contained in the proposed Tenancy Agreement will 

assist officers to deal with breaches of the Tenancy Agreement in a more proactive way.

11 Background Papers

44



11.1 The Cabinet report, dated 9th July 2019, which sought approval to consult tenants on the 
proposed varied tenancy agreement and the associated appendices: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23210/Cabinet%20Report%20for%2
0Tenancy%20Strategy.pdf 

11.2 The Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee report, dated 21st 
November 2019: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=665&MId=3805&Ver=
4 

12 Appendices
12.1 Appendix 1 Tenancy Agreement (proposed varied version)

12.2 Appendix 2 Tenancy Agreement (consultation version)

12.3 Appendix 3 Equality Impact Assessment on Tenancy Agreement

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

11 November 2019

Previously Considered by: Rural and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

21 November 2019

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  11 December 2018

45

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23210/Cabinet%20Report%20for%20Tenancy%20Strategy.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23210/Cabinet%20Report%20for%20Tenancy%20Strategy.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=665&MId=3805&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=665&MId=3805&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



Tenancy  
Agreement

47

Appendix 1



2  Tenancy agreement

Tenancy agreement
This agreement forms a binding legal contract between you and us. It sets out our 
responsibilities as your landlord and your rights and responsibilities as a tenant.

This agreement is made between:

The landlord: South Kesteven District Council, St. Peter’s Hill, Grantham, Lincolnshire, 
NG31 6PZ (“the Council/we”)

The tenant(s):

The address of the property rented in this tenancy agreement is:

In this tenancy the words ‘property’, ‘premises’ and ‘home’ refer to the whole of the 
property, including all fixtures and fittings, the garden(s), any outbuildings, paths, hedges, 
trees, fences and communal areas, if the property is in a block of flats. 
(“Your home/property”)

Persons residing at the property other than the tenant(s):

Name/relationship/DOB

In the case of joint tenants, the term “tenant” or “you” applies to each of you. Each tenant 
individually has the full responsibilities and rights set out in this tenancy agreement.

Photograph(s) of tenant(s)

The words ‘you’ and ’your’ refer to the tenant(s). In the case of joint tenants the term ‘tenant’ 
or ‘you’ applies to each of you. Each tenant individually has the full responsibilities and rights 
set out in this tenancy agreement.

48



  Tenancy agreement  3

This tenancy starts on: 

This tenancy is a weekly periodic commencing on the above date and is for an initial term 
of one week and continuing weekly thereafter until determined.
Rent and other charges

Your liability to pay rent begins on: 

The full rent of the property is: 

The service charge is:

(the rent and charges may change each year, but you will be notified before the changes 
come into effect)

The total amount payable is:

Tenancy Type

An Introductory Tenancy

A Secure Tenancy

Tenant Signature

Tenant Signature

Name Signature

Date:

Your rent and charges will be reviewed annually to take effect from the first Monday in April.
Permited number of occupants

Under overcrowding legislation, the maximum number of people allowed to live at your home 
is ………….  You must not allow more than this number to live at your home.

If there is anything you do not understand, please contact us. You can also get help  
and advice from a Citizens’ Advice, Solicitor or Shelter.

You have (one of the boxes below should be ticked)

Issue of keys

You have been issued with       set(s) of keys for doors and        set(s) of keys for windows.  
You are responsible for the safe keeping and replacement of all keys for the doors and  
windows.

I confirm that I have read, understood and now agree to follow the terms and conditions in 
this Tenancy Agreement.

Authorised Officer on behalf of the Council: 

49



a This Agreement sets out (on page 2) the 
type of tenancy you have. The information 
in this section tells you more about each 
type of tenancy.

b An Introductory Tenancy

 For the first 12 months of your tenancy, 
you are an Introductory Tenant and not a 
Secure Tenant.  An Introductory Tenancy is 
a trial tenancy with exclusive possession 
(the tenant occupies the property on his/
her own or with just his/her household. 
This non secure period may be extended 
in certain circumstances. Should it be 
considered necessary to extend the 
introductory period, notice will be provided 
to you in writing.

 If you do not breach any conditions of 
the tenancy in the first 12 months of 
your tenancy, then you will automatically 
become a Secure Tenant. However, if you 
breach any term of this agreement, then 
we can apply to the Court for a possession 
order. You have the right to appeal against 
a Notice of Proceeding of Possession.

 You will become a secure tenant on:

 Upon becoming a Secure Tenant, after the 
date in the above box, you will have all 
the legal rights of a Secure Tenant.  Your 
tenancy will automatically change and you 
will not have to sign a further agreement.

c A Secure Tenancy

 This tenancy is given when a property is 
let with exclusive possession (the tenant 
occupies the property on his/her own 
or with just his/her household) and the 
tenancy is not specified as an exception 
(e.g. an introductory tenancy).

 However, if you breach any term of this 
agreement, then we can apply to the Court 
for a possession order.  

 
d Legal rights of each tenancy type

 As an Introductory Tenant, you have fewer 
legal rights than a Secure Tenant. The legal 
rights of Secure Tenants are set out in this 
Tenancy Agreement.  The rights that do not 
apply to Introductory Tenants are clearly 
marked.

e A summary of rights to each  
tenancy type:

 Introductory and Secure Tenants have the 
following legal rights:

• The right to occupy
• The right to information
• The right to be consulted
• The right of repair
• The right to succeed to a tenancy

 Secure Tenants (and Introductory Tenants 
in exceptional circumstances, where we 
have used our discretion and given written 
permission) have the following legal rights:

• The right to improve
• The right to claim compensation for 

improvements to the property
• The right to assign

 Introductory Tenants do not have the 
following legal rights:

• The right to buy the property (although the 
first 12 months as an Introductory Tenant 
will count towards the discount awarded off 
the sale price for Secure Tenants)

4  Tenancy agreement 50



• The right to take in lodgers (A lodger is 
someone who pays money to you to live 
in your home but does not have exclusive 
right to any one part of it). 

• The right to sub-let part of the property
• The right to mutually exchange the property 

with another tenant

f We can apply to Court to repossess your 
home if you, or someone acting for you, 
has given us false information to get the 
tenancy.

g You must tell us if you will be away from 
your home for more than four weeks. 
We will then know that you have not 
abandoned it.  We need to know if your job 
(or other circumstances) means that you 

are often away from your home or if you are 
away for long periods of time.

h The people who can live at the property 
are those you told us about when you 
applied for the tenancy. You must get our 
permission before anyone comes to live 
with you for more than 4 weeks, including 
family members.  If you are in receipt of 
welfare benefits, you must declare any 
changes in your circumstances.  We will 
refuse you permission to let them live at the 
property if we think that they may break the 
conditions in this agreement or if we have 
already evicted the occupant from another 
property because of their behaviour. We will 
write to you giving our reasons.

  Tenancy agreement  551



6  Tenancy agreement

Any notice we give under this Tenancy Agreement may be served on you:

• in person or by leaving it for you with someone at the property

• by leaving it at the property or at your last known address;

• by handing to you in person; or

• by sending it first class post, second class post and / or recorded delivery to your property  
or last known address

For the purpose of section 48 of the 
Landlord and Tenant Act (1987), the 

landlord’s address for service is:
South Kesteven District Council, 
Council Offices, St. Peter’s Hill, 

Grantham, Lincolnshire, NG31 6PZ

Telephone: 01476 406080  
(main switchboard)

www.southkesteven.gov.uk

52



  Tenancy agreement  7

Your rights
The Right to Occupy

a This tenancy agreement gives you the right 
to live in your home. You must use these 
premises as your only or main private 
home. We will not interfere with this right 
unless any of the following apply:

• Access is required, subject to reasonable 
notice, which shall be no less than 24 hours 
(other than in an emergency), to inspect 
the condition of your home or to carry 
out repairs, annually inspect gas supply/
appliances or other works to your home or 
adjoining property.

• We are entitled to possession at the end of 
the tenancy.

• You break any of the conditions in this 
agreement. If you do, we may take legal 
action to force you to meet the conditions 
or we will apply to the Court for an order to 
evict you.

• We built or adapted the property for a 
person with physical disabilities and

 you no longer need that type of home 
• We need to carry out redevelopment or 

major repairs to the property which we 
cannot do unless you move out (we will not 
end your tenancy and will accommodate 
you elsewhere on a temporary basis).

• You stop using the property as your main 
home.

• There is any other reason under the 
Housing Act 1985, the Housing Act 1996, 
the Localism Act 2011 or any future 
legislation. 

The Right to take in Lodgers

b You have the right to take in a lodger if 
you are a secure tenant (as long as you 
do not grant a sub-tenancy or exceed 
the number of people allowed to live in 

your home). If you do take in a lodger, you 
must tell us immediately and inform us of 
their name, age, gender and details of the 
accommodation they will occupy.

Introductory Tenants do not have this right.

Subletting

c You have the right to sublet part of 
your home. You need our prior written 
permission to do this but we will not refuse 
permission without good reason.  You 
cannot lawfully sublet all of your home. If 
you do, you lose your status as a secure 
tenant and we can evict you. 

 Subletting is when you rent out a self-
contained part of your home.  A subtenant 
may share your facilities but they can stop 
you from going into the parts of your home 
that they live in.

Introductory Tenants do not have this right.

Right to buy

d If you are a secure tenant and have lived in 
council accommodation for at least 3 years 
(or any subsequent revision to this time 
period) and qualify under the Housing Act 
1985 legislation, you have the right to buy 
your home.  

 If you die, the person who takes over the 
tenancy under the succession rights will 
also take over the right to buy. However, 
they must still have held a secure tenancy 
in their own right for a period of at least 3 
years (or any subsequent revision to this 
time period) before they are entitled to rely 
on the right to buy.

 

53



8  Tenancy agreement

 You will not have the right to buy your home 
if you live in certain sheltered housing, or 
other accommodation excluded from the 
legislation.

Your Responsibilities

a. You, your friends and relatives, and any 
other person living in or visiting your home 
(including children) must not use your home 
other than as a private home.

b You, your friends and relatives, and any 
other person living in or visiting your home 
(including children and pets) must not 
damage, vandalise or remove any part of 
the property.

c. You must make yourself available to the 
Council, upon receiving  notice, at either 
your home or an agreed venue to discuss 
issues relating to your tenancy.

d. You must inform the Council, prior to 
leaving, if you are away from your property 
for a period more than four weeks.

e. You must, upon being given reasonable 
notice, allow our employees and/or 
contractors access to your property to 
inspect it and/or carry out any repairs, 
servicing or improvement works to 
the property.  All our employees and 
contractors will wear identification.

f. You must not run a business from your 
home without our written permission.  We 
will not refuse permission unreasonably 
unless we feel that the business is likely 
to cause a nuisance to other people or 
damage your home.  If, after we have given 
our permission, the business causes a 
nuisance, we will give you written notice 
that we withdraw our permission.

 Examples of businesses that could cause 
nuisance or annoyance to your neighbours* 
and we may not allow you to run from your 
home include (but not limited to):

• car sales, repair and maintenance 
businesses

• any business where you would have to 
use hydraulic equipment, industrial sewing 
machines or controlled substances such as 
chemicals

• shops or wholesale businesses where 
customers would have to visit your home

• childcare business where customers would 
have to visit your home

• any business that would mean more than 
your own vehicle being parked outside 
your home, for example, a taxi company or 
vehicle hire company

• animal boarding or breeding business

 *Your neighbours include everyone who 
lives in the local area, including people 
who own their own homes, private rented 
tenants and private registered provider 
(housing association) tenants.

g You must not sublet the entire property or 
assign your tenancy except as permitted 
by section 91 of the Housing Act 1985 
and you must not, in any circumstances, 
assign the tenancy without the prior written 
permission of the landlord.

 *Your neighbours include everyone who 
lives in the local area, including people 
who own their own homes, private rented 
tenants and private registered provider 
(housing association) tenants.

54



Whether you are a sole or joint tenant, you are 
responsible and liable for all of the rent.
 
The weekly rent for your home (and any applicable 
charges) is shown at the start of the tenancy on page 
2. These will be subject to change on an annual basis.

a Your rent 

 You must pay your rent every week, in 
advance, or at any other interval that we 
agree to.  There are a set number of “rent free 
weeks” per year when no rent is due (although 
people with rent arrears must continue to pay 
in these weeks). You will be advised annually 
when these free weeks will be. 

 If you are a joint tenant, you are both 
responsible (jointly and severally liable) for 
paying all the rent, rent arrears and all other 
charges for your home when they are due.  
So, if one joint tenant leaves the property, 
we will still recover the rent (including any 
arrears) from both tenants.

Whether you are a sole or joint tenant, you are 
responsible and liable for all of the rent. The weekly 
rent for your home (and any applicable charges) is 
shown at the start of the tenancy on page 3. These 
will be subject to change on an annual basis.

b Changes to your rent
 
 If there is any change to your rent, we will tell 

you at least four (4) weeks before the change. 

c Service charge (where applicable)

 In certain properties a charge may be made 
for services provided. Examples of possible 
service charges are maintenance and 
replacement of septic tanks and treatment 
plants (where the service is currently 
provided by the Council and not by Anglian 
Water or other Water Authority), access 
to communal rooms, water and heating in 
sheltered housing schemes etc. We will give 
you a summary of what is included in your 
service charge.

d Changes to service charge

 We may, after consulting the tenants affected, 

increase, add to, remove, reduce, or vary the 
services provided or introduce new services. 
Any such changes may either require you to 
pay a new service charge or affect the amount 
of service charge you pay.

 Notice of any change in the amounts charged 
for services will be given to you at least four (4) 
weeks before any change is made.

e Rent arrears

 If you fall into rent arrears, we will try to support 
you in resolving these. If the rent arrears 
continue, we may go to Court and ask for 
you to be evicted from the property. You will 
be liable for any Court costs incurred in being 
taken to court. When your tenancy ends, you 
must pay us any rent, charges or costs which 
you owe us.  A repayment plan can be set up 
for you to repay these rent arrears in regular 
instalments. You may lose your home if you do 
not pay your rent and/or other charges.

f Outgoings

 You agree to pay all outgoings applying 
to your home including council tax, 
water charges, drainage and electric and 
other costs whether metered or billed, 
independently of this agreement, except 
where these charges are included in your 
rent or service charges.

 Where you terminate the tenancy or where 
we have secured an order for possession 
and you have failed to settle all outgoings 
for your home we will if requested to do so 
forward your details to any creditors owed 
money by you.

g Welfare benefits to cover 
housing costs

 If there is a change in your circumstances, 
which alters your entitlement to Housing 
Benefit or Universal Credit, you must inform 
us or the Department of Work and Pensions 
(whichever is relevant) immediately.  We may 
recover from you any overpayment which 
is lawfully recoverable. You are still liable to 
pay your rent regardless of whether or not 
you are in receipt of any benefits.

  Tenancy agreement  955



10  Tenancy agreement

Our Responsibilities
We are responsible for: 

a We will keep the structure and exterior of 
your home in good repair including drains, 
gutters and external pipes.

b We will keep in proper working order the 
installations in the property for the supply 
of water, gas, electricity and for sanitation 
including basins, sinks, baths and sanitary 
conveniences. 

c We will keep in repair and proper working 
order the installation in the dwelling for 
heating and heating water.

d We will carry out repairs which we are 
responsible for, such as repairing or 
replacing the fixtures and fittings we own.

e We will carry out emergency repairs or 
where there is a health and safety issue.  
If these repairs are made by the tenant 
and are dangerous, the tenant will be 
recharged.

We are not responsible for:

f Repairs that arise as a result of deliberate, 
malicious, criminal or accidental damage 
caused by you, people living in your home 
or people visiting your home.

g Any works carried out by you at the 
property (after obtaining the appropriate 
permissions), or works carried out by a 
previous tenant which you have signed a 
disclaimer for (a written agreement that 
you accept responsibility for the repair and 
upkeep of fixtures in the property installed 
by a previous tenant) and chosen to adopt 
at the start of your tenancy. If you do not 
wish to adopt these works they will either 
be removed or replaced by the Council with 
their own standard or the Council may take 
over responsibility for these works.

Your rights
The Right of Repair

a You have the right for repairs (which are not 
as a result of any deliberate act, omission 
or neglect by you or your visitors, or those 
residing at the property) to be carried out 
as quickly as possible.

b When you report the repair work we will 
inform you of the work we will carry out, 
who will carry out the work and when the 
work will be completed. We will give you at 
least twenty four (24) hours notice and you 
must give access.

c Sometimes it may be necessary to move 
to another property so that major works 
can be carried out. The Council will 
offer you suitable alternative temporary 
accommodation. You will need to vacate 
the property for the period needed to 
complete the work and then move back to 
the original property.  Works can sometimes 
be done whilst you are still in the property.

d If we fail to carry out our responsibilities of 
repair under this Agreement then you may 
be able to take legal action against us. You 
should consult a Solicitor, a Law Centre, 
Shelter Housing Advice or the Citizens’ 
Advice.

The Right to Compensation 
for Repairs

You may be entitled for compensation if we fail to 
carry out repairs within a reasonable time once 
you’ve reported them.

You may also be entitled to compensation if 
your home is unfit to live in because of poor 
conditions. 

56



  Tenancy agreement  11

The Right to Make Improvements

e You may carry out certain alterations or 
improvements to your home but you must 
get written permission from us prior to 
starting any work (see section 15 on 

 page 27).

f We will not unreasonably withhold our 
consent. All works must adhere to current 
Planning and Building Regulations and 
Health and Safety standards.

g Failure to seek our consent or to comply 
with our terms and conditions shall be 
deemed a breach of your obligations under 
this tenancy. You will be responsible for the 
ongoing maintenance of any improvements 
you make.

For Introductory Tenants this right is at the
discretion of the Council.

The Right to Compensation  
for Improvements

h At the end of a Secure Tenancy you have 
the right to apply to us for compensation 
for certain improvements you have made 
to your home unless they were started 
before 1 April 1994. If you are buying your 
home you will not get compensation as 
these improvements are not included in the 
purchase price. You should ask the tenancy 
services team if you would like more details 
about this.

Introductory Tenants may also be eligible for
compensation at the discretion of SKDC.

Your responsibilities
a You must report immediately upon 

becoming aware any repairs that need 
carrying out to your home for which  
we are responsible.

b You are responsible for repairs which are 
necessary because you did not report 
another repair to us.

c You are responsible for the cost of any 
items in your property such as furniture, 
clothing, floor coverings etc. that are 
damaged as a result of a repair unless 
due to negligence of our contractors or 
employees.

d You must allow our employees and 
contractors to enter your home at 
reasonable times and at reasonable notice 
to inspect it, carry out repairs, service 
appliances and to carry out improvement 
works to your property.

e If there is a risk of damage to your home or 
to other properties, or of injury to people, 
we may need to give you twenty four (24) 
hours, or less notice in an emergency, 
that we need to  enter your home.  We will 
charge you the cost of getting into your 
home if you do not allow or try to prevent 
us from entering. 

f You are responsible for the cost of repairs 
that are the result of neglect or misuse, or 
deliberate, malicious, criminal or accidental 
damage by you, people residing in your  
home or people visiting your home. 

57



12  Tenancy agreement

 This includes the cost for putting right 
any improvements/alterations carried out 
by you, people residing in your home or 
people visiting your home without obtaining 
the correct permissions.

g Contact us immediately if the drains of 
your home become blocked.  If you have 
caused  the blockage by not using the 
drains properly, we will charge you for the 
work.

h We reserve the right to do any repairs that 
are your responsibility if they are not put 
right within a reasonable period of time 
and recover all our costs from you. We 
will tell you about this and give you an 
opportunity to get the repair completed to 
an acceptable standard.

i You are expected to do certain minor 
repairs yourself. Advice on this is in the 
handbook. Tenants who we consider are 
unable to carry out minor repairs, can 
report them as normal and we will do these 
as with any repair

j You must not make any structural or 
other significant change to your home 
without our written permission. If we refuse 
permission, we will give you our reasons 
in writing. If we give our permission, we 
may set certain conditions.  If you do not 
meet the conditions, we may take away our 
permission. Structural work includes (but 
is not limited to) alterations to or removing 

walls, floors, ceilings, roofs and water, 
electricity and gas services.

k All work that is undertaken at your 
home must be carried out by a qualified 
contractor to an acceptable standard and 
you must obtain any necessary permissions 
(for example planning permissions and 
building regulations consents).

 
l You must inform us once any work is 

complete. The Council reserves the right 
to inspect such improvement works. If the 
work is unsatisfactory we will either instruct 
you to carry out extra works or we will carry 
out any extra work required and you will be 
charged. 

m You must not fit a CB or Radio aerial or 
satellite dish  at your home without our 
written permission (you may also need 
planning permission).

n You are responsible for repairing and 
maintaining all improvements and fixtures 
and fittings you install at your home. These 
improvements will become our property 
when you move out.  If you take them with 
you when you move, you must put the 
property back to the way it was before you 
improved it. If you don’t, we will charge you 
for the work.

o You are responsible for insuring the 
contents of your home. We are only 
responsible for insuring the building.

58



Everyone has the right to enjoy life in their own 
way provided that it does not disturb others and
does not break the law.

Our Responsibilities
a If an anti-social behaviour or harassment 

problem continues (if you have first done 
all you can to resolve any issues that arise 
regarding your neighbours), we will take 
appropriate action

b We may enforce the tenancy agreement by 
using all legal remedies available to us. 

Your Responsibilities
a You and any joint tenant are responsible 

for your behaviour and the behaviour of 
your children (if relevant) and anyone else 
living with you or visiting you while they 
are in your home (including common areas 
such as landings, stairways, foyers, lifts, 
courtyards, gardens and parking areas). 

b You and any joint tenant, your friends and 
relatives, and any other person living in or 
visiting your home (including children) must 
not:

• do anything which causes or is likely to 
cause a nuisance or annoyance to anyone 
in the local area

• do anything which interferes with the 
peace, safety, comfort and/or convenience 
of other people living in, visiting or working 
in the local area

• use your home for any criminal, immoral or 
illegal purpose, including selling, producing 
or using any illegal drugs, or storing or 
handling stolen goods

• Cause any anti-social behaviour. This 
includes (but is not limited to):

• using or threatening to use violence
• excessive noise including loud music
• banging and slamming doors
• damaging property
• drug and alcohol related nuisance 

behaviour
• playing ball games close to properties other  

than on designated play areas
• skateboarding and cycling on footpaths 

and communal areas
• dumping rubbish
• persistent dog barking and/or not keeping  

your pets under control
• criminal activity in properties
• spraying graffiti
• domestic abuse

  Tenancy agreement  1359



14  Tenancy agreement

• throwing things out of windows
• prostitution
• dealing in pornography
• breaking shared security, for example,  

allowing strangers to get into the building
• not keeping your children under control
• regular car repairs or car repairs at   

unreasonable hours
• DIY at unreasonable hours
• verbal abuse
• harassment (see clause 6d below).

d You, your friends and relatives, and any
 other person living in or visiting your home 

(including children) must not commit any 
form of harassment, or threat of 
harassment, on the grounds of race, colour, 
religion, gender, sexual orientation, age 
or disability which may interfere with the 
peace and comfort of, or cause offence to, 
other persons in the neighbourhood or to 
any of our tenants, employees, agents or 
contractors. This includes (but is not  
limited to):

• Racist behaviour or language
• Using, or threatening to use, violence
• Using abusive or insulting words or 

behaviour
• Damaging or threatening to damage 

another person’s home or possessions
• Writing threatening, abusive or insulting 

graffiti.

e We may ask you to enter into an acceptable 
behaviour contract which says that you 
will not continue or allow to continue, any 
antisocial behaviour.

f You must make yourself available at your 
home for an interview, if requested to do so 
given reasonable notice of at least twenty 
four (24) hours. We may provide less notice 
where we consider it appropriate to do so 
for example in the case of an emergency.

g We may take legal action to evict you if 
you, your friends and relatives and any 
other person (including children) living in or 
visiting your home behave anti-socially and 
we may  not find you a new home if you are 
evicted because of antisocial behaviour.

h We may apply to the Court for a Demotion 
Order.  This is an order that changes the 
nature and security of your tenancy for 
twelve months. We may serve a Notice 
before Proceedings for Demotion on you 
in the event of anti-social behaviour and 
thereafter apply to court for an order.

60



  Tenancy agreement  15

Your Responsibilities
a You, your friends and relatives, and any 

other person living in or visiting your home 
(including children) must:

• Keep your home free from fleas, vermin  
and other pests.

• Keep your home clean and tidy.  If you 
don’t, we will charge you for any work 
we need to do because of this, such as 
removing rubbish, dealing with pests etc.

• Keep all shared stairways, halls and 
landings clean.  You must not leave any 
personal belongings or rubbish in these 
areas.  We may remove and dispose of 
anything you leave in these areas and 
charge you for the work.

• Keep any communal bin areas around the 
bins free from rubbish (rubbish should not 
be placed next to the bins).  Anyone found 
to be in breach of this condition could 
be subject to a penalty notice which may 
result in a fine.

• Keep your home free from bad smells (e.g. 
rotting food; human/animal faeces and 
urine etc.).

• Keep your home free from an excessive 
amount of clutter which amounts to 
hoarding.

b You must act immediately to deal with any 
infestation of fleas, vermin or other pests in 
your home or garden.

c You must store your refuse hygienically 
at your home or in the designated refuse 
storage area and ensure that it is presented 
correctly and available for collection in 
accordance with the local authority’s 
instructions.

d If we have to move items stored or 
abandoned in communal areas, we will not 
be responsible for any loss you may suffer 
and may charge you for the costs incurred.

61



Your Responsibilities
You, your friends and relatives, and any other 
person living in or visiting your home (including 
children) must not:

• use portable oil, paraffin or gas cylinder 
heaters in your home without our written 
permission

• store inflammable materials or gas 
anywhere at your home without our written 
permission

• store any vehicles which are powered by 
petrol, diesel, paraffin, electricity or gas 
in your home or in shared areas (except 
electric wheelchairs).

• store any appliances which are powered by 
petrol, diesel or paraffin in your home;

• leave any item in passage ways, corridors, 
stairwells, entrances or exits used as fire 
escape routes in shared areas

• interfere with the correct use of fire or 
security doors

• interfere with any equipment for detecting 
or putting out fires in your home

• interfere with any equipment for detecting 
carbon monoxide in your home

• prevent us and/or our representatives from 
servicing appliances in your home

• prevent us and/or our representatives 

from carrying out necessary repairs and/or 
improvement works to your home

• do anything in your home which could 
cause a danger to anyone in your home or 
in the local area

• throw anything through the windows of 
your home or off balconies

• leave syringes/needles in areas where 
people in the local area may come into 
contact with them. They must be properly 
and safely stored in purpose-made sharps 
containers and disposed of in the correct 
manner

• let anyone you don’t know into the shared 
areas without appropriate identification

• put anything on a window ledge or balcony 
which could be a danger to anyone living in 
or visiting your home or the local area

• shake mats or carpets from the windows  
or balconies

• withhold information from the police about 
any criminal act at your home  

• delay telling us about any damage to  
your home

• you must inform us if you use/store 
medical oxygen at your home. You must 
also display appropriate chemical hazard 
warning signs outside your home

• smoke in shared or communal areas

16  Tenancy agreement 62



Pets are allowed in our Council properties, as
long as each pet and the number of pets you
have, are suitable for the size and type of the
property you livein. They must also not be
intimidating, aggressive, dangerous or cause a
nuisance. Nuisance includes:

• excessive and persistent dog barking
• allowing your dog to roam
• your pet fouling inside your home or in  

common areas
• your pet damaging the property (either 

inside or outside)
• not vaccinating your pet (causing a health 

hazard)

You must not keep any animal that has been
classified as dangerous under the Dangerous
Wild Animals Act 1976 or keep any breeds
(including cross breeds) named under section

1(1) of the Dangerous Dogs Act 1991.

Due to the rural nature of the district, small
livestock eg. chickens may be suited to a country
location but would not be appropriate in a built
up urban area. Please seek written permission
before keeping any livestock.

Prior to signing this new tenancy agreement you
must advise us of any animals/pets that you
already have so that we can advise on their
suitability.

Your Responsibilities
a If the pet is deemed to be intimidating, 

aggressive, dangerous or causes a 
nuisance and/or the number; type or size 
of pets are considered to be unsuitable, 
we reserve the right to ask you to remove 
your pet(s).  If you do not remove your pets 
when asked, we may ask you to re-home 
your pet and/or take legal action to evict 
you.

b You must get our written permission to 
build an animal or bird enclosure.  If we 
give our permission, we may set conditions 
that you must keep to. If you do not meet 
the conditions, we may take away our 
permission.  We may also withdraw our 
permission if the animals or birds are 
intimidating, aggressive, dangerous or 
causes a nuisance.

c Any dogs you own are required, by law, to 
be microchipped and registered.

d Under the Control of Dogs Order 1992, all 
dogs in public places must wear a collar 
with their owner’s surname, address and 
contact details.

e Under the Animal Welfare Act 2006, owners 
have a duty of care to meet the needs of 
their pets. Our Housing Officers will report 
any welfare concerns to the appropriate 
agencies.

f You are responsible for any animals visiting 
your home.  They are not to cause a 
nuisance, intimidation, aggression, danger, 
detriment to the property or a health hazard.

  Tenancy agreement  17

For sheltered housing 
tenants and tenants with a

shared entrance, permission 
needs to be sought
before keeping (or 

continuing to keep) a pet.

63



18  Tenancy agreement

Your Responsibilities
a You must keep all garden areas neat and 

tidy. If you do not, we may do it for you 
and charge you for the work. In exceptional 
circumstances, we may take legal action to 
force you to meet the conditions or we may 
ask the court for permission to evict you.

b You must not put a greenhouse, garage, 
shed or animal/bird enclosure in your 
garden without getting our prior written 
permission. Even if we give our consent, 
you may still need to get planning 
permission and meet building regulations.  
We may withdraw our permission if the 
greenhouse, garage, shed or animal/bird 
enclosure causes a nuisance.

c You must not remove, add or alter a fence, 
hedge, tree or boundary line at your home 
without getting our written permission.

d You must not store rubbish, furniture, 
vehicles or appliances in the garden area. 
If you do, we may remove the items and 
charge you for doing this. We will give you 
24 hours’ notice that we will be removing 
the items.

e You must be considerate to your 
neighbours if you have a fire (eg. bonfire; 
garden heater; barbeque etc) in your 
garden.

f You must not park any vehicle in your 
garden unless a garage or hardstanding 
and a vehicular access path and dropped 
kerb is provided.

g You should clear up all hedge cuttings and 
other garden waste, litter and rubbish and 
dispose of it appropriately. 

64



Your Responsibilities
a You, your friends and relatives, and any 

other person living in or visiting your 
home (including children) must not do the 
following: 

• Park or store any vehicle (a car, bus, lorry, 
motorbike, boat, caravan, motorhome, 
motorised mobility scooters etc) anywhere 
on the property (including grass verges and 
boundaries owned by us) unless you are 
using a garage, parking area or a drive with 
a dropped kerb.  

• Park any vehicle on communal grassed 
areas or roadside verges owned by us.

• Build a parking space, garage or drive 
without our written permission.

• Park any motorhome, caravan, boat or 
excessively large business vehicle at your 
home without our written permission. If you 
do you will be asked to remove it.

• Repair or have for sale any vehicle not 
owned by yourself at your home or any 
other land owned by us.  If we suspect that 
you are repairing such a vehicle, we may 
ask you to prove that you own the vehicle.

• Park any vehicle which is illegal (e.g. not 
taxed)or is not roadworthy, on any land that 
belongs to us.  If you do, we may remove 
the vehicle and re-charge you for this.  We 
will give you twenty four (24) hours’ notice.

• Double park vehicles or park in a way 
which causes an obstruction to other 
road users, including emergency services’ 
vehicles.

• Sell, rent or give away a parking space or 
permit which we provide for you.

b If we give our permission to build a parking 
space, garage, dropped kerb or drive, it 
must be built to a Council standard design.  
We will withdraw our permission if the 
parking space, garage, dropped kerb or 
drive causes a nuisance. A dropped kerb 
may need planning permission and will 
need to be to a standard set by the relevant 
Highways Authority.

c We will not be responsible for damage to 
your vehicle if we have to remove it.

  Tenancy agreement  1965



20  Tenancy agreement

Your Responsibilities
We must consult with any tenant or group 
of tenants on matters which may affect their 
tenancies, homes and estates. Any views and 
comments expressed will be taken into account 
when making a decision.

Your Rights

Right to Information

You have the right to see certain information held 
by us in relation to your housing circumstances. 
If you would like to see this, you can speak with 
the Housing team.

We may charge reasonable administration costs 
for copies of these details if the information is 
excessive and/or you ask for additional copies.

Right to be consulted

We will consult you over any substantial changes 
in housing management and alterations to your 
tenancy agreement.  We will consult tenants 
individually or through tenant’s representatives/ 
tenants groups and consider your views before 
putting the changes into effect.

66



  Tenancy agreement  21

The Right of Succession 
to a Tenancy
Succession is the transfer of your tenancy to 
someone after you have died. The law states that 
only certain people can succeed to your tenancy. 
Succession can usually only take place once, so 
if you inherited your tenancy from a relative, no 
one can usually inherit your tenancy.  The person 
applying for succession needs our written consent.

The people who are legally entitled to succeed are:

Your spouse or civil partner with whom you live 
or if your tenancy started before 1st April 2012, 
your common law partner, a member of your 
family, for example child, parent, grandparent, 
grandchild, brother, sister, aunt, uncle, nephew 
or niece providing they have lived with you for at 
least twelve months.

Your husband, wife, partner or relative who 
succeeds you will become a Secure Tenant 
and will have the same rights as you under this 
Tenancy Agreement.

Where your home passes to someone other 
than your husband, wife or partner then we 
may consider whether your home is suitable for 
your relative. If we decide that your home is not 
suitable for your relative then we can serve a 
Notice within one year and can apply to the court 
for possession of your home. In these cases we 
will offer your relative a more suitable home.

If you do not have a husband, wife or partner and 
there is more than one relative asking to succeed 
to your tenancy and if they cannot agree who will 
succeed you, we will decide.

Further details are in our Succession Policy.

The Right to Assign  
your Tenancy
Assigning your tenancy is where your tenancy is 
legally passed on to someone else by you.

Where there has been a legal assignment then you 
will no longer be the tenant for that property. 

Assignment is only allowed in the following situations:

• Assigning the tenancy under the Right to 
Exchange but only with our written permission; 
or

• In the case of a relationship breakdown, where 
the Court assigns the tenancy from a tenant 
to the other occupant.  This type of order is 
known as a property adjustment order. If you 
would like to know more about this type of 
order then you should consult a Solicitor, the 
Citizen’s Advice, or a Law Centre; or

• Assigning your tenancy to a person who is 
legally entitled to succeed you. This includes 
your husband, wife, civil partner, partner or 
relative.  You must have our written permission 
for this type of assignment.

Further details are in our Assignment Policy.

The Right to Exchange 
your Tenancy
Secure Tenants have a legal right to swap 
(exchange) their home with another South 
Kesteven District Council tenant, another local 
authority tenant or a private registered provider 
(Housing Association) tenant. You must get our 
written permission first.

We may grant consent subject to certain 
conditions.  We may withhold consent in certain 
circumstances eg. where there are rent arrears.

Further details are in our Mutual Exchange Policy.

67



22  Tenancy agreement

How you may end  
your tenancy
a When you move out of your home, you 

must do the following:

• Give us four (4) weeks written notice stating 
that you want to end your tenancy.  The 
notice must give your name, address, be 
signed and dated.  Notice to end your 
tenancy must end on a Sunday.

• Give us all the keys including any door 
entry fobs to your home on the day you 
leave so that we can inspect the property.  
If you do not give us any of these items, 
we will charge you for the cost of replacing 
the keys and locks of the property and may 
charge you for any additional rent.

• Pay all the rent and other charges up to the 
date of the end of your tenancy.

• Remove all your furniture, and personal 
fittings and belongings from your home 
unless specified items have been 
authorised to be left on the pre-termination 
visit.  We will remove any items you leave 
behind and will charge you for the work  
necessary if no agreement has been made.

• Remove all rubbish from inside and outside 
your home.

• Remove any greenhouse, garage, shed or 
animal/bird enclosure you have put in the 
garden unless we agree in writing that you 
may leave it.

• Make sure all the fittings and fixtures 
you have installed and which have been 
authorised for you to leave in the property 
are in good working order.

• Replace or repair broken items which 
belong to us or you will be charged.

• Leave your home clean; tidy and in good 
decorative order.  We will charge you if we 
have to clean or repair any damage to the 
property.

• Allow our employees and contractors to 
enter your home at reasonable times to 
inspect it prior to you vacating the property.

• Allow our employees to show prospective 
tenants around your home prior to you 
leaving. We will give you notice of this

• If gas appliances are removed, make sure 
that all exposed pipes are capped off by 
Gas Safe registered gas fitters.

• Make sure that electricity, gas and water 
meters are read and the relevant suppliers 
informed.

• Give us your new address and contact 
details

 
b If you owe us money for rent or other 

charges when you leave your home, you 
must make arrangements with us to pay 
the debt.  If you do not do this, we will 
take legal action to recover the money.  
We may go to court and ask for a Money 
Judgement Order to recover the debt. This 
may affect your credit rating and any future 
housing applications.

c In the case of joint tenants, notice received 
from one tenant will end the tenancy for all 
tenants.  You will not have an automatic 
right to continue living in the property if a 
joint tenant has ended the tenancy.  If this 
happens, seek advice from us.

68



  Tenancy agreement  23

d You can only transfer your tenancy 
to someone else (rather than ending 
the tenancy) if we have agreed to this, 
in writing, through an ‘assignment of 
tenancy’.  Further details can be found 
in the Assignment Policy. If you do leave 
anyone in the property without our written 
permission, we may evict them through the 
Court as they may be living there illegally.  
We will charge you the cost of doing this.

e If you are away from your home for four (4) 
weeks or more without telling us, we may  
consider the property to be abandoned 
and serve you with a notice to  end your 
tenancy. You may not be entitled to another 
property with us and we may charge you 
the cost of all repairs that are needed 
because you abandoned the property.

f If you abandon your property, we will 
dispose of any perishable items that may 
become rotten, such as food.  We will store 
all other items for 28 days, from the date 
we gave you written notice. You will be 
responsible for the storage costs.  If the 
items are not collected at the end of the 28 
days, we will dispose of them.

How we may end  
your tenancy

Introductory Tenancy

We can end the tenancy if you break this Tenancy 
Agreement. We will serve you with a Notice of 
Proceedings for Possession. This gives you four 
weeks notice of our intention to apply
for an order of the Court for Possession. 
Introductory Tenants can be evicted more easily 
than Secure Tenants. You have a right of review 
of the decision to serve a Notice of Proceedings 
for Possession.

Secure Tenancy 

We may end your tenancy if you break a term of 
this agreement by serving on you the appropriate 
statutory notice and obtaining a court order for 
possession.

Death of a Tenant

How the tenancy can be ended

A tenancy does not automatically end when a 
tenant dies and no one has inherited it.

The landlord or the person looking after the 
affairs of the tenant who died can end the 
tenancy.

By the landlord

A landlord must serve a minimum of four weeks’ 
notice on those looking after the deceased 
tenant’s affairs or on the Public Trustee.

By the person looking after the affairs of the 

tenant who died

If you are looking after the affairs of the tenant 
who died you must:

serve a minimum of four weeks’ notice on the 
landlord, or agree a ‘surrender’ of the tenancy 
with the landlord

An agreed surrender will end the tenancy 
straightaway.

The landlord might not accept a surrender if you 
are still living in the property.

If you want to leave, check if the tenancy can 
be terminated by mutual consent between the 
landlord and those looking after the affairs of the 
tenant who died.

69



24  Tenancy agreement

a You must get our written permission  
before you:

• make improvements or carry out alterations 
to your home (see condition 4d)

• run a business from your home  
(see condition 7f)

• put a garage, greenhouse, conservatory, 
shed or bird/animal enclosure in the garden  
(see conditions 11d and 12b)

• lay laminate flooring if you live in a flat

• lay ceramic floor tiles if you live in a flat

• fit a CB aerial or satellite dish  
(see condition 8n)

• use portable oil, paraffin or gas cylinder 
heaters in your home without our written 
permission (see section 8)

• store inflammable materials or gas 
anywhere at your home without our written 
permission (see section 8)

• build a parking space, garage or drive (see 
condition 13a)

• remove, add, alter (other than repair or 
maintain) or replace any walls, hedges, 
fences or trees(see condition 12c)

• sublet any part of your home  
(see condition 4g)

• exchange your home (see condition 4f)

As well as getting our written 
permission, you may need to 
get planning permission and 

meet building regulations.  

We may withdraw our 
permission if you cause  

a nuisance.

Please Note

70



  Tenancy agreement  25

South Kesteven District Council processes 
personal data in compliance with the General 
Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and the Data 
Protection Act 2018. 
 
Our data protection policy and further information  
can be accessed on our website  
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk. 

Collecting and storing your data

By signing this agreement, you agree and 
acknowledge that we will hold and process any 
personal information (including special category 
personal data such as health information) 
about you or other family members, household 
members and visitors to the property that you 
provide or which has been or will be provided by 
third parties for the purposes of performing our 
functions as your landlord.
 

Sharing data 

This may include disclosure to other South 
Kesteven District Council departments or certain 
third parties as permitted by law such as other 
Local Authorities including Lincolnshire County 
Council, Central Government departments such 
as the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government, contractors processing your 
information on our behalf, Social Services, Police, 
Department of Work & Pensions, Home Office, 
Court Service, Probation, Private Registered 
Providers (Housing Associations), Health 
Authorities, Utility companies such as Anglian 
Water and Support Agencies. Your personal data 

will be processed in accordance with the law and 
no personal data will be sold to third parties. Your 
personal data will only be shared with others 
where this is permitted by law. 

Your rights

You have the right to see data which we hold 
about you. We are only allowed to refuse you 
access to your data in limited circumstances, for 
example where information may identify a third 
party who has not consented and the inclusion 
of their data is not permitted by law. You have 
the right to request that your data be rectified if 
incorrect, to object to or restrict data processing 
and the right to erasure of your data in certain 
circumstances. You also have rights relating 
to decisions made solely by computers where 
relevant. For further advice and information 
regarding access to personal information please 
see our privacy notice for customers at http://
www.southkesteven.gov.uk or contact our Data 
Protection Officer at dpo@southkesteven.gov.uk.

End of tenancy
 
If you leave your home owing rent or any other 
money, we may pass on information about you 
to any debt recovery or tracing agency that we 
instruct to recover that debt. If you leave your 
home owing money in respect of electricity, gas, 
water, telephone or other similar charges, we 
may confirm your contact details to the company 
to whom the money is owed or any agent acting 
on their behalf.

71



If you or someone acting on your behalf has 
made a statement relating to your housing 
application which you/they knew to be false or 
could be false or you/they deceived us regarding 
information supplied on your application, we 
may take action to repossess the property under 
schedule ground 5 of the Housing Act 1985.

We are required under section 6 of the Audit 
Commission Act 1998 to participate in the 
National Fraud Initiative data monitoring exercise.

We advise you that the data held by us in respect 
of your tenancy will be used for cross system 
and cross authority comparison purposes for the 
prevention and detection of fraud.

Complaints
If you have a problem with your council housing:

First speak with the Council about it, either:
by telephone on 01476 406080
via our website ww.southkesteven.gov.uk or in 
person

If the problem cannot be resolved with the 
Council, a complaint can be made to your MP or 
a local councillor

If the problem still cannot be resolved, contact 
can be made to the Housing Ombudsman 
(contact details are in the Tenants Handbook).

26  Tenancy agreement 72



  Tenancy agreement  27

South Kesteven has a rich and diverse culture - 
a community made up of people from different 
cultures with differing backgrounds, beliefs and 
experiences. This diversity is one of the things 
that make South Kesteven such a great place to 
live and work.

To ensure all residents of South Kesteven 
have access to our information, it is available 
in a range of different languages and formats, 
including large print, Braille, audio tape and 
computer disc.

To request a document in a specific language or 
format, you can ring us or e-mail us:
'	 01476 40 60 80                                           
* communications@southkesteven.gov.uk       

Large print, Braille, audio  
tape or computer disc
This information can be made 
available in large print, Braille,  
on audio tape or computer disc.  
If you, or someone you know, 
might benefit from this service, 
please contact us.
Česky / Czech
Tato informace může být dostupná i v češtině. 
Pokud byste Vy, a nebo někdo koho znáte, mohl 
využít tohoto servisu, obraťte se prosím na nás.

Magyar / Hungarian
Ezeket az információkat magyar nyelven is tudjuk 
biztosítani. Ha Ön, vagy valaki, akit Ön ismer 
igényt tart erre a szolgáltatásra, kérem, keressen 
fel minket.

Latviski / Latvian
Šo informāciju var iegūt arī latviešu valodā. Ja 
Jums vai kādai no Jūsu paziņai šādi pakalpojumi 
nāktu par labu, lūdzu kontaktējiet mūs. 

Lietuviškai / Lithuanian
Šią informaciją galite gauti lietuvių kalba. 
Prašome kreiptis į mus, jei jums arba jūsų 
pažįstamiems ši paslauga galėtų būti naudinga.

Polski / Polish
Informacja ta może być dostępna w języku 
polskim. Jeżeli Pańswo albo ktoś kogo Państwo 
znają, może z tej usługi skorzystać, proszę nas 
kontaktować. 

Português / Portuguese
Esta informação pode ser disponibilizada em 
português. Se você, ou alguém que conhecer, 
beneficiar com este serviço, por favor contacte-
nos.

Русский / Russian 
Данная информация может быть 
предоставлена на русском языке. Если Вы 
или Ваши знакомые посчитаете такую услугу 
необходимой, пожалуйста, свяжитесь с нами. 

Türkçe / Turkish
Bu bilgiler Türkçe dilinde mevcuttur.  Siz veya 
bir tanıdığınızın bu hizmetden faydalanacağını 
düşünüyorsanız lütfen bizi arayınız.

73



South Kesteven District Council  
St. Peter’s Hill
Grantham
Lincolnshire
NG31 6PZ

01476 406080
www.southkesteven.gov.uk

74



Tenancy 
Agreement

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   1 07/08/2019   14:04
75

Appendix 2



2  Tenancy agreement

Tenancy agreement
This agreement forms a binding legal contract between you and us. It sets out our 
responsibilities as your landlord and your rights and responsibilities as a tenant.

This agreement is made between:

The landlord: South Kesteven District Council, St. Peter’s Hill, Grantham, Lincolnshire, 
NG31 6PZ (“the Council/we”)

The tenant(s):

The address of the property rented in this tenancy agreement is (and shown edged 
red on the attached plan):

(“your home/the property”)

Persons residing at the property other than the tenant(s):

In the case of joint tenants, the term “tenant” or “you” applies to each of you. Each tenant 
individually has the full responsibilities and rights set out in this tenancy agreement.

Photograph(s) of tenant(s)

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   2 07/08/2019   14:04
76



  Tenancy agreement  3

This tenancy starts on: 

This tenancy is a weekly periodic commencing on the above date and is for an initial term 
of one week and continuing weekly thereafter until determined.
Rent and other charges

This weekly tenancy starts on:

The weekly rent for the property is: £

(the rent may change each year, but you will be notified before the changes come  
into effect)

The weekly charges for the property are:

(the charges may change each year, but you will be notified before the changes  
come into effect)

The first payment date for both the rent and charges is:

Tenancy Type

An Introductory Tenancy

A Secure Tenancy

Tenant Signature

Tenant Signature

Name Signature

Date:

Permited number of occupants

Under overcrowding legislation, the maximum number of people allowed to live at your home 
is ………….  You must not allow more than this number to live at your home.

If there is anything you do not understand, please contact us. You can also get help  
and advice from a Citizens’ Advice Bureau, Solicitor or Shelter.

You have (one of the boxes below should be ticked)

Issue of keys

You have been issued with       set(s) of keys for doors and        set(s) of keys for windows.  
You are responsible for the safe keeping and replacement of all keys for the doors and  
windows.

I confirm that I have read, understood and now agree to follow the terms and conditions in 
this Tenancy Agreement.

Authorised Officer on behalf of the Council: 

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   3 07/08/2019   14:04
77



a This Agreement sets out (on page 2) the type 
of tenancy you have. The information in this 
section tells you more about each type of 
tenancy.

b An Introductory Tenancy

 For the first 12 months of your tenancy, you are 
an Introductory Tenant and not a Secure Tenant.  
An Introductory Tenancy is a trial tenancy.  
This non secure period may be extended in 
certain circumstances.  Should it be considered 
necessary to extend the introductory period, 
notice will be provided to you in writing.

 If you do not breach any conditions of the 
tenancy in the first 12 months of your tenancy, 
then you will automatically become a Secure 
Tenant. However, if you breach any term of this 
agreement, then we can apply to the Court for 
a possession order.  You have a right of review 
against our decision to apply to evict you.

 You will become a secure tenant on:

 Upon becoming a Secure Tenant, after the date 
in the above box, you will have all the legal 
rights of a Secure Tenant.  Your tenancy will 
automatically change and you will not have to 
sign a further agreement.

c A Secure Tenancy

 This tenancy is given when a property is let 
with exclusive possession (the tenant occupies 
the property on his/her own or with just his/her 
household) and the tenancy is not specified as 
an exception (e.g. an introductory tenancy).

 However, if you breach any term of this 
agreement, then we can apply to the Court for a 
possession order.  

 

d Legal rights of each tenancy type

 As an Introductory Tenant, you have fewer legal 
rights than a Secure Tenant.  The legal rights 
of Secure Tenants are set out in this Tenancy 
Agreement.  The rights that do not apply to 
Introductory Tenants are clearly marked.

e A summary of rights to each tenancy type 
(further details are in section 4):

 Introductory and Secure Tenants have the 
following legal rights:

• The right to occupy
• The right to information
• The right to be consulted
• The right of repair
• The right to succeed to a tenancy
• The right to assign

 Secure Tenants (and Introductory Tenants 
in exceptional circumstances, where we 
have used our discretion and given written 
permission) have the following legal rights:

• The right to improve the property
• The right to claim compensation for 

improvements to the property

 
 Introductory Tenants do not have the following 

legal rights:

• The right to buy the property (although the first 
12 months as an Introductory Tenant will count 
towards the discount awarded off the sale price 
for Secure Tenants)

• The right to take in lodgers (A lodger is 
someone who pays money to you to live in your 
home but does not have exclusive right to any 
one part of it). 

• The right to sub-let part of the property
• The right to mutually exchange the property 

with another tenant

4  Tenancy agreement

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   4 07/08/2019   14:04
78



f We can apply to Court to repossess your home 
if you, or someone acting for you, has given us 
false information to get the tenancy.

h You must tell us if you will be away from your 
home for more than four weeks. We will then 
know that you have not abandoned it.  We need 
to know if your job (or other circumstances) 
means that you are often away from your home 
or if you are away for long periods of time.

i The people who can live at the property are 
those you told us about when you applied 
for the tenancy. You must get our permission 
before anyone comes to live with you for more 
than 4 weeks, including family members.  If 
you are in receipt of welfare benefits, you must 
declare any changes in your circumstances.  
We will refuse you permission to let them live 
at the property if we think that they may break 
the conditions in this agreement or if we have 
already evicted the occupant from another 
property because of their behaviour. We will 
write to you giving our reasons.

  Tenancy agreement  5

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   5 07/08/2019   14:04
79



6  Tenancy agreement

Any notice we give under this Tenancy Agreement may be served on you:

• in person or by leaving it for you with someone at the property

• by leaving it at the property or at your last known address;

• by handing to you in person; or

• by sending it first class post, second class post and / or recorded delivery to your property  
or last known address

For the purpose of section 48 of the 
Landlord and Tenant Act (1987), the 

landlord’s address for service is:
South Kesteven District Council, 
Council Offices, St. Peter’s Hill, 

Grantham, Lincolnshire, NG31 6PZ

Telephone: 01476 406080  
(main switchboard)

Web: www.southkesteven.gov.uk

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   6 07/08/2019   14:04
80



  Tenancy agreement  7

Your rights
The Right to Occupy

a This tenancy agreement gives you the right to 
live in your home.  We will not interfere with this 
right unless any of the following apply:

• Access is required, subject to reasonable 
notice, which shall be no less than 24 hours 
(other than in an emergency), to inspect the 
condition of your home or to carry out repairs or 
other works to your home or adjoining property.

• We are entitled to possession at the end of the 
tenancy.

• You break any of the conditions in this 
agreement. If you do, we may take legal action 
to force you to meet the conditions or we will 
apply to the Court for an order to evict you.

• We built or adapted the property for a person 
with physical disabilities and

1. You no longer need that type of home and/or
2. We need the property for someone else with 

special needs.
• We need to carry out redevelopment or major 

repairs to the property which we cannot do 
unless you move out (we will not end your 
tenancy and will accommodate you elsewhere 
on a temporary basis).

• You stop using the property as your main home.
• There is any other reason under the Housing 

Act 1985, the Housing Act 1996, the Localism 
Act 2011 or any future legislation. 

The Right to take in Lodgers

b You have the right to take in a lodger if you are 
a secure tenant (as long as you do not grant a 
sub-tenancy or exceed the number of people 
allowed to live in your home). If you do take in a 
lodger, you must tell us immediately and inform 
us of their name, age, gender and details of the 
accommodation they will occupy.

Introductory Tenants do not have this right.

Subletting

c You have the right to sublet part of your home. 
You need our prior written permission to do 
this but we will not refuse permission without 
good reason.  You cannot lawfully sublet all of 
your home. If you do, you lose your status as a 
secure tenant and we can evict you. 

 Subletting is when you rent out a self-contained 
part of your home.  A subtenant may share your 
facilities but they can stop you from going into 
the parts of your home that they live in.

Introductory Tenants do not have this right.

Right to buy

d If you are a secure tenant and have lived in 
council accommodation for at least 3 years (or 
any subsequent revision to this time period) and 
qualify under the Housing Act 1985 legislation, 
you have the right to buy your home.  

 If you die, the person who takes over the 
tenancy under the succession rights will also 
take over the right to buy. However, they must 
still have held a secure tenancy in their own 
right for a period of at least 3 years (or any 
subsequent revision to this time period) before 
they are entitled to rely on the right to buy.

 You will not have the right to buy your home if 
you live in certain sheltered housing, or other 
accommodation excluded from the legislation.

Your Responsibilities

a. You, your friends and relatives, and any other 
person living in or visiting your home (including 
children) must not use your home other than as 
a private home.

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   7 07/08/2019   14:04
81



8  Tenancy agreement

b You, your friends and relatives, and any other 
person living in or visiting your home (including 
children and pets) must not damage, vandalise 
or remove any part of the property.

c. You must make yourself available to the 
Council, upon receiving  notice, at either your 
home or an agreed venue to discuss issues 
relating to your tenancy.

d. You must inform the Council, prior to leaving, 
if you are away from your property for a period 
more than four weeks.

e. You must, upon being given reasonable notice, 
allow our employees and/or contractors access 
to your property to inspect it and/or carry out 
any repairs, servicing or improvement works to 
the property.  All our employees and contractors 
will wear identification.

f. You must not run a business from your home 
without our written permission.  We will not 
refuse permission unreasonably unless we feel 
that the business is likely to cause a nuisance to 
other people or damage your home.  If, after we 
have given our permission, the business causes 
a nuisance, we will give you written notice that 
we withdraw our permission.

 Examples of businesses that could cause 
nuisance or annoyance to your neighbours* and 
we may not allow you to run from your home 
include (but not limited to):

• car sales, repair and maintenance businesses

• any business where you would have to 
use hydraulic equipment, industrial sewing 
machines or controlled substances such as 
chemicals

• shops or wholesale businesses where 
customers would have to visit your home

• childcare business where customers would 
have to visit your home

• any business that would mean more than your 
own vehicle being parked outside your home, 
for example, a taxi company or vehicle hire 
company

• animal boarding business

g You must not sublet the entire property or 
assign your tenancy except as permitted by 
section 91 of the Housing Act 1985 and you 
must not, in any circumstances, assign the 
tenancy without the prior written permission of 
the landlord.

 *Your neighbours include everyone who lives 
in the local area, including people who own 
their own homes, and private and housing 
association tenants.

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   8 07/08/2019   14:04
82



Whether you are a sole or joint tenant, you are 
responsible and liable for all of the rent.
 
The weekly rent for your home (and any applicable 
charges) is shown at the start of the tenancy on page 
2. These will be subject to change on an annual basis.

a Your rent 

 You must pay your rent every week, in advance, 
or at any other interval that we agree to.  There 
are a set number of “rent free weeks” per year 
when no rent is due (although people with rent 
arrears must continue to pay in these weeks). 
You will be advised annually when these free 
weeks will be.

 If you are a joint tenant, you are both 
responsible (jointly and severally liable) for 
paying all the rent, rent arrears and all other 
charges for your home when they are due.  We 
can recover all rent arrears owed for your home 
from either joint tenant.  So, if one joint tenant 
leaves the property, we will still recover the rent 
(including any arrears) from both tenants until 
the tenancy has ended.

b Changes to your rent
 
 If there is any change to your rent, we will tell 

you at least four (4) weeks before the change. 

c Service charge (where 
applicable)

 In certain properties a charge may be made for 
services provided. Examples of possible service 
charges are maintenance and replacement of 
septic tanks and treatment plants (where the 
service is currently provided by the Council and 
not by Anglian Water or other Water Authority), 
access to communal rooms, water and heating 
in sheltered housing schemes etc. We will give 
you a summary of what is included in your 
service charge.

d Changes to service charge

 We may, after consulting the tenants affected, 
increase, add to, remove, reduce, or vary the 
services provided or introduce new services. 
Any such changes may either require you to pay 
a new service charge or affect the amount of 
service charge you pay.

 Notice of any change in the amounts charged 
for services will be given to you at least four (4) 
weeks before any change is made.

e Rent arrears

 If you do not pay your rent, we may go to Court 
and ask for you to be evicted from the property. 
You will be liable for any Court costs incurred in 
being taken to court.

 When your tenancy ends, you must pay us any 
rent, charges or costs which you owe us.  A 
repayment plan can be set up for you to repay 
these rent arrears in regular instalments.

 
 You may lose your home if you do not pay your rent.

f Outgoings

 You agree to pay all outgoings applying to your 
home including council tax, water charges, 
drainage and electric and other costs whether 
metered or billed, independently of this 
agreement, except where these charges are 
included in your rent or service charges.

g Welfare benefits to cover 
housing costs

 If there is a change in your circumstances, 
which alters your entitlement to Housing Benefit 
or Universal Credit, you must inform us or the 
Department of Work and Pensions (whichever 
is relevant) immediately.  We may recover 
from you any overpayment which is lawfully 
recoverable.

You are still liable to pay your rent regardless of 
whether or not you are in receipt of any benefits.

  Tenancy agreement  9

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   9 07/08/2019   14:04
83



10  Tenancy agreement

Our Responsibilities
We are responsible for: 

a We will keep the structure and exterior of your 
home in good repair including drains, gutters 
and external pipes.

b We will keep in proper working order the 
installations in the property for the supply 
of water, gas, electricity and for sanitation 
including basins, sinks, baths and sanitary 
conveniences. 

c We will keep in repair and proper working order 
the installation in the dwelling for heating and 
heating water.

d We will carry out repairs which we are 
responsible for, such as repairing or replacing 
the fixtures and fittings we own.

e We will carry out emergency repairs or where 
there is a health and safety issue.  If these 
repairs are made by the tenant and are 
dangerous, the tenant will be recharged.

 We are not responsible for:

f Repairs that arise as a result of deliberate, 
malicious, criminal or accidental damage 
caused by you, people living in your home or 
people visiting your home.

g Any works carried out by you at the property 
(after obtaining the appropriate permissions), or 
works carried out by a previous tenant which 
you have signed a disclaimer for (a written 
agreement that you accept responsibility for 
the repair and upkeep of fixtures in the property 
installed by a previous tenant) and chosen to 
adopt at the start of your tenancy. If you do 
not wish to adopt these works they will either 
be removed or replaced by the Council with 
their own standard or the Council will take over 
responsibility for these works.

Your rights
The Right of Repair

a You have the right for repairs (which are not 
as a result of any deliberate act, omission or 
neglect by you or your visitors, or those residing 
at the property) to be carried out as quickly as 
possible.

b When you report the repair work we will inform 
you of the work we will carry out, who will 
carry out the work and when the work will be 
completed. We will give you at least twenty four 
(24) hours notice and you must give access.

c Sometimes it may be necessary to move to 
another property so that major works can be 
carried out. The Council will offer you suitable 
alternative temporary property. You will need 
to vacate the property for the period needed 
to complete the work and then move back to 
the original property.  Works can sometimes be 
done whilst you are still in the property.

d If we fail to carry out our responsibilities of 
repair under this Agreement then you may 
be able to take legal action against us. You 
should consult a Solicitor, a Law Centre, Shelter 
Housing Advice or the Citizens’ Advice Bureau.

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   10 07/08/2019   14:04
84



  Tenancy agreement  11

The Right to Make Improvements

e You may carry out certain alterations or 
improvements to your home but you must get 
written permission from us prior to starting any 
work (see section 15 on page 27).

f We will not unreasonably withhold our consent. 
All works must adhere to current Planning and 
Building Regulations and Health and Safety 
standards.

g Failure to seek our consent or to comply with 
our terms and conditions shall be deemed a 
breach of your obligations under this tenancy. 
You will be responsible for the ongoing 
maintenance of any improvements you make.

For Introductory Tenants this right is at the
discretion of the Council.

The Right to Compensation  
for Improvements

h At the end of a Secure Tenancy you have the 
right to apply to us for compensation for certain 
improvements you have made to your home 
unless they were started before 1 April 1994. 
If you are buying your home you will not get 
compensation as these improvements are not 
included in the purchase price. You should ask 
the tenancy services team if you would like 
more details about this.

Introductory Tenants may also be eligible for
compensation at the discretion of SKDC.

Your responsibilities

a You must report immediately upon becoming 
aware any repairs that need carrying out to your 
home for which we are responsible.

b You are responsible for repairs which are 
necessary because you did not report another 
repair to us.

c You are responsible for the cost of any items in 
your property such as furniture, clothing, floor 
coverings etc. that are damaged as a result 
of a repair unless due to negligence of our 
contractors or employees.

d You must allow our employees and contractors 
to enter your home at reasonable times and 
at reasonable notice to inspect it, carry out 
repairs, service appliances and to carry out 
improvement works to your property.

e If there is a risk of damage to your home or to 
other properties, or of injury to people, we may 
need to give you twenty four (24 hours), or less 
notice in an emergency, that we need to  enter 
your home.  We will charge you the cost of 
getting into your home if you do not allow or try  
to prevent us from entering. 

f You are responsible for the cost of repairs that 
are the result of neglect or misuse, or  
deliberate, malicious, criminal or accidental 
damage by you,  people residing in your  home 
or people visiting your home. This includes the 
cost for putting right any  improvements/

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   11 07/08/2019   14:04
85



12  Tenancy agreement

alterations carried out by you, people residing in 
your home or people visiting your home without 
obtaining the correct permissions.

g Contact us immediately if the drains of your 
home become blocked.  If you have caused  
the blockage by not using the drains properly, 
we will charge you for the work.

h We reserve the right to do any repairs that are 
your responsibility if it is not put right within 
a reasonable period of time and recover all 
our costs from you. We will tell you about this 
and give you an opportunity to get the repair 
completed to an acceptable standard.

i You are expected to do certain minor repairs 
yourself. Advice on this is in the handbook.

j You must not make any structural or other 
significant change to your home without our 
written permission. If we refuse permission, we 
will give you our reasons in writing. If we give 
our permission, we may set certain conditions.  
If you do not meet the conditions, we may take 
away our permission. Structural work includes 
(but is not limited to) alterations to or removing 
walls, floors, ceilings, roofs and water, electricity 
and gas services.

k All work that is undertaken at your home must 
be carried out by a qualified contractor to an 

acceptable standard and you must obtain any 
necessary permissions (for example planning 
permissions and building regulations consents).

 
l You must inform us once any work is complete. 

The Council reserves the right to inspect 
such improvement works. If the work is 
unsatisfactory we will either instruct you to 
carry out extra works or we will carry out any 
extra work required and you will be charged. 

m You must not fit a CB or Radio aerial or 
satellite dish  at your home without our written 
permission (you may also need planning 
permission).

n You are responsible for repairing and 
maintaining all improvements and fixtures 
and fittings you install at your home. These 
improvements will become our property when 
you move out.  If you take them with you when 
you move, you must put the property back to 
the way it was before you improved it. If you 
don’t, we will charge you for the work.

o You are responsible for insuring the contents of 
your home. We are only responsible for insuring 
the building.

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   12 07/08/2019   14:04
86



Everyone has the right to enjoy life in their own way 
provided that it does not disturb others and
does not break the law.

Our Responsibilities
a In the first instance we expect you to do all 

that you can to resolve any issues that arise 
regarding your neighbours. However, if a 
problem persists we will take appropriate action 
and involve other agencies as necessary to 
bring matters to an end. We will investigate any 
anti-social behaviour and harassment cases.

b We will enforce the tenancy agreement by all 
legal means possible. This can result in a Court 
order being granted to the Council, for instance 
for possession, an injunction or anti-social 
behaviour order.

Your Responsibilities
a You and any joint tenant are responsible for 

your behaviour and the behaviour of your 
children (if relevant) and anyone else living with 
you or visiting you while they are in your home 

(including common areas such as landings, 
stairways, foyers, lifts, courtyards, gardens and 
parking areas). 

b You and any joint tenant, your friends and 
relatives, and any other person living in or 
visiting your home (including children) must not:

• do anything which causes or is likely to cause 
a nuisance or annoyance to anyone in the local 
area

• do anything which interferes with the peace, 
safety, comfort and/or convenience of other 
people living in, visiting or working in the local 
area

• use your home for any criminal, immoral or 
illegal purpose, including selling, producing or 
using any illegal drugs, or storing or handling 
stolen goods

c  Anti-social behaviour includes (but is not  
 limited to):

• using or threatening to use violence
• excessive noise including loud music
• banging and slamming doors
• damaging property

  Tenancy agreement  13

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   13 07/08/2019   14:04
87



14  Tenancy agreement

• drug and alcohol related nuisance behaviour
• playing ball games close to properties other  
 than on designated play areas
• skateboarding and cycling on footpaths and  
 communal areas
• dumping rubbish
• persistent dog barking and/or not keeping  
 your pets under control
• criminal activity in properties
• spraying graffiti
• domestic abuse
• throwing things out of windows
• prostitution
• dealing in pornography
• breaking shared security, for example,   
 allowing strangers to get into the building
• not keeping your children under control
• regular car repairs or car repairs at   
 unreasonable hours
• DIY at unreasonable hours
• verbal abuse
• harassment (see clause 6d below).

d You, your friends and relatives, and any
 other person living in or visiting your home 

(including children) must not commit any 
form of harassment, or threat of harassment,  
on the grounds of race, colour, religion,   
gender, sexual orientation, age or disability 
which may interfere with the peace and comfort 
of, or cause offence to, other persons in 
the neighbourhood or to any of our tenants, 
employees, agents or contractors. This includes 
(but is not limited to):

• Racist behaviour or language
• Using, or threatening to use, violence
• Using abusive or insulting words or behaviour
• Damaging or threatening to damage another  

person’s home or possessions
• Writing threatening, abusive or insulting graffiti.

e We may ask you to enter into an acceptable 
behaviour contract which says that you will not 
continue or allow to continue, any antisocial 
behaviour.

f You must make yourself available at your home 
for an interview, if requested to do so given 
reasonable notice of at least twenty four (24) 
hours.

g We may take legal action to evict you if you, 
your friends and relatives and any other person 
(including children) living in or visiting your 
home behave anti-socially and we may  not find 
you a new home if you are evicted because of 
antisocial behaviour.

h We may apply to the Court for a Demotion 
Order.  This is an order that changes the nature 
and security of your tenancy for twelve months. 
We may serve a Notice before Proceedings 
for Demotion on you in the event of anti-social 
behaviour and thereafter apply to court for an 
order.

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   14 07/08/2019   14:04
88



  Tenancy agreement  15

Your Responsibilities
a You, your friends and relatives, and any other 

person living in or visiting your home (including 
children) must:

• Keep your home free from fleas, vermin and 
other pests.

• Keep your home clean and tidy.  If you don’t, 
we will charge you for any work we need to 
do because of this, such as removing rubbish, 
dealing with pests etc.

• Keep all shared stairways, halls and landings 
clean.  You must not leave any personal 
belongings or rubbish in these areas.  We may 
remove and dispose of anything you leave in 
these areas and charge you for the work.

• Keep any communal bin areas around the bins 
free from rubbish (rubbish should not be placed 
next to the bins).  Anyone found to be in breach 
of this condition could be subject to a penalty 
notice which may result in a fine.

• Keep your home free from bad smells (e.g. 
rotting food; human/animal faeces and urine 
etc.).

• Keep your home free from an excessive amount 
of clutter which amounts to hoarding.

b You must act immediately to deal with any 
infestation of fleas, vermin or other pests in your 
home or garden.

c You must store your refuse hygienically at your 
home or in the designated refuse storage area 
and ensure that it is presented correctly and 
available for collection in accordance with the 
local authority’s instructions.

d If we have to move items stored or abandoned 
in communal areas, we will not be responsible 
for any loss you may suffer and may charge you 
for the costs incurred.

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   15 07/08/2019   14:04
89



Your Responsibilities
You, your friends and relatives, and any other person 
living in or visiting your home (including children) must 
not:

• use portable oil, paraffin or gas cylinder heaters 
in your home without our written permission

• store inflammable materials or gas anywhere at 
your home without our written permission

• store any vehicles which are powered by petrol, 
diesel, paraffin, electricity or gas in your home 
or in shared areas (except electric wheelchairs).

• store any appliances which are powered by 
petrol, diesel or paraffin in your home;

• leave any item in corridors, stairwells, entrances 
or exits used as fire escape routes in shared 
areas

• interfere with the correct use of fire or security 
doors

• interfere with any equipment for detecting or 
putting out fires in your home

• interfere with any equipment for detecting 
carbon monoxide in your home

• prevent us and/or our representatives from 
servicing appliances in your home

• prevent us and/or our representatives 

from carrying out necessary repairs and/or 
improvement works to your home

• do anything in your home which could cause a 
danger to anyone in your home or in the local 
area

• throw anything through the windows of your 
home or off balconies

• leave syringes/needles in areas where people in 
the local area may come into contact with them. 
They must be properly and safely stored in 
purpose-made sharps containers and disposed 
of in the correct manner

• let anyone you don’t know into the shared areas 
without appropriate identification

• put anything on a window ledge or balcony 
which could be a danger to anyone living in or 
visiting your home or the local area

• shake mats or carpets from the windows or 
balconies

• withhold information from the police about any 
criminal act at your home  

• delay telling us about any damage to your home

• you must inform us if you use/store medical 
oxygen at your home. You must also display 
appropriate chemical hazard warning signs 
outside your home.

16  Tenancy agreement

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   16 07/08/2019   14:04
90



Pets are allowed in our Council properties, as long as
each pet and the number of pets you have, are
suitable for the size and type of the property you live
in.  They must also not be intimidating, aggressive,
dangerous or cause a nuisance. Nuisance includes:

• excessive and persistent dog barking
• allowing your dog to roam
• your pet fouling inside your home or in  

common areas
• your pet damaging the property (either inside  

or outside)
• not vaccinating your pet (causing a health 

hazard)

You must not keep any animal that has been classified
as dangerous under the Dangerous Wild Animals
Act 1976 or keep any breeds (including cross breeds)
named under section 1(1) of the Dangerous Dogs Act
1991.

Due to the rural nature of the district, small livestock
eg. chickens may be suited to a country location but
would not be appropriate in a built up urban area. 
Please seek written permission before keeping any
livestock.

Prior to signing this new tenancy agreement you must
advise us of any animals/pets that you already have
so that we can advise on their suitability.

Your Responsibilities
a If the pet is deemed to be intimidating, 

aggressive, dangerous or causes a nuisance 
and/or the number; type or size of pets are 
considered to be unsuitable, we reserve the 
right to ask you to remove your pet(s).  If you 
do not remove your pets when asked, we may 
ask you to re-home your pet and/or take legal 
action to evict you.

b You must get our written permission to build 
an animal or bird enclosure.  If we give our 
permission, we may set conditions that you 
must keep to. If you do not meet the conditions, 
we may take away our permission.  We may 
also withdraw our permission if the animals or 
birds are intimidating, aggressive, dangerous or 
causes a nuisance.

c  Any dogs you own are required, by law, to be 
microchipped and registered.

d Under the Control of Dogs Order 1992, all dogs 
in public places must wear a collar with their 
owner’s surname, address and contact details.

e Under the Animal Welfare Act 2006, owners 
have a duty of care to meet the needs of their 
pets.

f You are responsible for any animals visiting 
your home.  They are not to cause a nuisance, 
intimidation, aggression, danger, detriment to 
the property or a health hazard.

  Tenancy agreement  17

For sheltered housing 
tenants and tenants with a

shared entrance, permission 
needs to be sought
before keeping (or 

continuing to keep) a pet.

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   17 07/08/2019   14:05
91



18  Tenancy agreement

Your Responsibilities
a You must keep all garden areas (shown 

coloured ** on the plan attached) neat and tidy.  
If you do not, we may do it for you and charge 
you for the work.  In exceptional circumstances, 
we may take legal action to force you to meet 
the conditions or we may ask the court for 
permission to evict you.

b You must not put a greenhouse, garage, shed 
or animal/bird enclosure in your garden without 
getting our prior written permission. Even if 
we give our consent, you may still need to 
get planning permission and meet building 
regulations.  We may withdraw our permission 
if the greenhouse, garage, shed or animal/bird 
enclosure causes a nuisance.

c You must not remove, add or alter a fence, 
hedge, tree or boundary line at your home 
without getting our written permission.

d You must not store rubbish, furniture, vehicles 
or appliances in the garden area. If you do, we 
may remove the items and charge you for doing 
this.  We will give you 24 hours’ notice that we 
will be removing the items.

e You must be considerate to your neighbours 
if you have a fire (eg. bonfire; garden heater; 
barbeque etc) in your garden.

f You must not park any vehicle in your garden 
unless a garage or hardstanding and a vehicular 
access path and dropped kerb is provided (see 
also Clause 13).

g You should clear up all hedge cuttings and 
other garden waste, litter and rubbish and 
dispose of it appropriately. 

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   18 07/08/2019   14:05
92



Your Responsibilities
a You, your friends and relatives, and any other 

person living in or visiting your home (including 
children) must not do the following: 

• Park or store any vehicle (a car, bus, lorry, 
motorbike, boat, caravan, motorhome, 
motorised mobility scooters etc) anywhere 
on the property (including grass verges and 
boundaries owned by us) unless you are using 
a garage, parking area or a drive with a dropped 
kerb.  

• Park any vehicle on communal grassed areas or 
roadside verges owned by us.

• Build a parking space, garage or drive without 
our written permission.

• Park any motorhome, caravan, boat or 
excessively large business vehicle at your home 
without our written permission. If you do you 
will be asked to remove it.

• Repair or have for sale any vehicle not owned 
by yourself at your home or any other land 
owned by us.  If we suspect that you are 
repairing such a vehicle, we may ask you to 
prove that you own the vehicle.

• Park any vehicle which is illegal (e.g. not taxed)
or is not roadworthy, on any land that belongs 
to us.  If you do, we may remove the vehicle 
and re-charge you for this.  We will give you 
twenty four (24) hours’ notice.

• Double park vehicles or park in a way which 
causes an obstruction to other road users, 
including emergency services’ vehicles.

• Sell, rent or give away a parking space or permit 
which we provide for you.

b If we give our permission to build a parking 
space, garage, dropped kerb or drive, it must 

be built to a Council standard design.  We 
will withdraw our permission if the parking 
space, garage, dropped kerb or drive causes a 
nuisance.  A dropped kerb may need planning 
permission and will need to be to a standard set 
by the relevant Highways Authority.

c We will not be responsible for damage to your 
vehicle if we have to remove it.

  Tenancy agreement  19

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   19 07/08/2019   14:05
93



20  Tenancy agreement

Your Responsibilities
We must consult with any tenant or group of tenants 
on matters which may affect their tenancies, homes 
and estates. Any views and comments expressed will 
be taken into account when making a decision.

Your Rights

Right to Information

You have the right to see certain information held by 
us in relation to your housing circumstances. If you 
would like to see this, you can speak with the Housing 
team.

We may charge reasonable administration costs for 
copies of these details if the information is excessive 
and/or you ask for additional copies.

Right to be consulted

We will consult you over any substantial changes in 
housing management and alterations to your tenancy 
agreement.  We will consult tenants individually or 
through tenant’s representatives/ tenants groups and 
consider your views before putting the changes into 
effect.

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   20 07/08/2019   14:05
94



  Tenancy agreement  21

The Right of Succession 
to a Tenancy
Succession is the transfer of your tenancy to someone 
after you have died. The law states that only certain 
people can succeed to your tenancy. Succession can 
usually only take place once, so if you inherited your 
tenancy from a relative, no one can usually inherit your 
tenancy.  The person applying for succession needs 
our written consent.

The people who are legally entitled to succeed are:

• your husband or wife or civil partner with whom 
you live, or

• your unmarried partner with whom you have 
lived for at least twelve months, or

• your same sex partner with whom you have 
lived with for at least twelve months, or

• if your tenancy started before 1st April 2012, 
a member of your family for example child, 
parent, grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, 
aunt, uncle, nephew or niece providing they 
have lived with you for at least twelve months.

Your husband, wife, partner or relative who succeeds 
you will become a Secure Tenant and will have the 
same rights as you under this Tenancy Agreement.

Where your home passes to someone other than 
your husband, wife or partner then we may consider 
whether your home is suitable for your relative. If we 
decide that your home is not suitable for your relative 
then we can serve a Notice within one year and can 
apply to the court for possession of your home. In 
these cases we will offer your relative a more suitable 
home.

If you do not have a husband, wife or partner and 
there is more than one relative asking to succeed 
to your tenancy and if they cannot agree who will 
succeed you, we will decide.

Further details are in our Succession Policy.

The Right to Assign  
your Tenancy
Assigning your tenancy is where your tenancy is 
legally passed on to someone else by you.

Where there has been a legal assignment then you will 
no longer be the tenant for that property. 

Assignment is only allowed in the following situations:

• Assigning the tenancy under the Right to 
Exchange but only with our written permission; 
or

• In the case of a relationship breakdown, where 
the Court assigns the tenancy from a tenant to 
the other occupant.  This type of order is known 
as a property adjustment order. If you would like 
to know more about this type of order then you 
should consult a Solicitor, the Citizen’s Advice 
Bureau, or a Law Centre; or

• Assigning your tenancy to a person who is 
legally entitled to succeed you. This includes 
your husband, wife, civil partner, partner or 
relative.  You must have our written permission 
for this type of assignment.

Further details are in our Assignment Policy.

The Right to Exchange 
your Tenancy
Secure Tenants have a legal right to swap (exchange) 
their home with another South Kesteven District 
Council tenant, another local authority tenant or a 
private registered provider (Housing Association) 
tenant. You must get our written permission first.

We may grant consent subject to certain conditions.  
We may withhold consent in certain circumstances eg. 
where there are rent arrears.

Further details are in our Mutual Exchange Policy.

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   21 07/08/2019   14:05
95



22  Tenancy agreement

How you may end  
your tenancy
a When you move out of your home, you must do 

the following:

• Give us four (4) weeks written notice stating 
that you want to end your tenancy.  The notice 
must give your name, address, be signed and 
dated.  Notice to end your tenancy must end on 
a Sunday.

• Give us all the keys including any door entry 
fobs to your home on the day you leave so that 
we can inspect the property.  If you do not give 
us any of these items, we will charge you for 
the cost of replacing the keys and locks of the 
property and may charge you for any additional 
rent.

• Pay all the rent and other charges up to the 
date of the end of your tenancy.

• Remove all your furniture, and personal 
fittings and belongings from your home unless 
specified items have been authorised to be left 
on the pre-termination visit.  We will remove any 
items you leave behind and will charge you for 
the work  necessary if no agreement has been 
made.

• Remove all rubbish from inside and outside 
your home.

• Remove any greenhouse, garage, shed or 
animal/bird enclosure you have put in the 
garden unless we agree in writing that you may 
leave it.

• Make sure all the fittings and fixtures you have 
installed and which have been authorised for 
you to leave in the property are in good working 
order.

• Replace or repair broken items which belong to 

us or you will be charged.

• Leave your home clean; tidy and in good 
decorative order.  We will charge you if we have 
to clean or repair any damage to the property.

• Allow our employees and contractors to enter 
your home at reasonable times to inspect it 
prior to you vacating the property.

• Allow our employees to show prospective 
tenants around your home prior to you leaving.

• If gas appliances are removed, make sure that 
all exposed pipes are capped off by Gas Safe 
registered gas fitters.

• Make sure that electricity, gas and water meters 
are read and the relevant suppliers informed.

• Give us your new address and contact details
 
b If you owe us money for rent or other charges 

when you leave your home, you must make 
arrangements with us to pay the debt.  If you do 
not do this, we will take legal action to recover 
the money.  We may go to court and ask for a 
Money Judgement Order to recover the debt. 
This may affect your credit rating and any future 
housing applications.

c In the case of joint tenants, notice received from 
one tenant will end the tenancy for all tenants.  
You will not have an automatic right to continue 
living in the property if a joint tenant has ended 
the tenancy.  If this happens, seek advice from 
us.

d You can only transfer your tenancy to someone 
else (rather than ending the tenancy) if we 
have agreed to this, in writing, through an 
‘assignment of tenancy’.  Further details can 
be found in the Assignment Policy. If you do 
leave anyone in the property without our written 
permission, we may evict them through the 
Court as they may be living there illegally.  We 

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   22 07/08/2019   14:05
96



  Tenancy agreement  23

will charge you the cost of doing this.

e If you are away from your home for four (4) 
weeks or more without telling us, we may  
consider the property to be abandoned and 
serve you with a notice to  end your tenancy. 
You may not be entitled to another property 
with us and we may charge you the cost 
of all repairs that are needed because you 
abandoned the property.

f If you abandon your property, we will dispose of 
any perishable items that may become rotten, 
such as food.  We will store all other items for 
28 days, from the date we gave you written 
notice. You will be responsible for the storage 
costs.  If the items are not collected at the end 
of the 28 days, we will dispose of them.

How we may end  
your tenancy

Introductory Tenancy

We can end the tenancy if you break this Tenancy 
Agreement. We will serve you with a Notice
of Intended Possession Proceedings.  This gives you 
six weeks notice of our intention to apply
for an order of the Court for Possession. Introductory 
Tenants can be evicted more easily than
Secure Tenants. You have a right of review of the 
decision to serve a Notice of Intended
proceedings.

Secure Tenancy 

We may end your tenancy if you break a term of this 
agreement by serving on you the appropriate statutory 
notice and obtaining a court order for possession.

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   23 07/08/2019   14:05
97



24  Tenancy agreement

a You must get our written permission before you:

• make improvements or carry out alterations to 
your home (see condition 4d)

• run a business from your home  
(see condition 7f)

• put a garage, greenhouse, conservatory, shed 
or bird/animal enclosure in the garden  
(see conditions 11d and 12b)

• lay laminate flooring if you live in a flat

• lay ceramic floor tiles if you live in a flat

• fit a CB aerial or satellite dish (see condition 8n)

• use portable oil, paraffin or gas cylinder heaters 
in your home without our written permission 
(see condition 10a)

• store inflammable materials or gas anywhere at 
your home without our written permission (see 
condition 10a)

• build a parking space, garage or drive (see 
condition 13a)

• remove, add, alter (other than repair or maintain) 
or replace any walls, hedges, fences or 
trees(see condition 12c)

• sublet any part of your home (see condition 4g)

• exchange your home (see condition 4f)

As well as getting our written 
permission, you may need to 
get planning permission and 

meet building regulations.  

We may withdraw our 
permission if you cause a 

nuisance.

Please Note

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   24 07/08/2019   14:05
98



  Tenancy agreement  25

South Kesteven District Council processes personal 
data in compliance with the General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) and the Data Protection Act 2018. 
 
Our data protection policy and further information  
can be accessed on our website  
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk. 

Collecting and storing your data

By signing this agreement, you agree and 
acknowledge that we will hold and process any 
personal information (including special category 
personal data such as health information) about you 
or other family members, household members and 
visitors to the property that you provide or which 
has been or will be provided by third parties for the 
purposes of performing our functions as your landlord.
 

Sharing data 

This may include disclosure to other South Kesteven 
District Council departments or certain third parties 
as permitted by law such as other Local Authorities 
including Lincolnshire County Council, Central 
Government departments such as the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government, 
contractors processing your information on our 
behalf, Social Services, Police, Department of Work 
& Pensions, Home Office, Court Service, Probation, 
Housing Associations, Health Authorities, Utility 
companies such as Anglian Water and Support 
Agencies. Your personal data will be processed in 

accordance with the law and no personal data will be 
sold to third parties. Your personal data will only be 
shared with others where this is permitted by law. 

Your rights

You have the right to see data which we hold about 
you. We are only allowed to refuse you access to 
your data in limited circumstances, for example 
where information may identify a third party who 
has not consented and the inclusion of their data is 
not permitted by law. You have the right to request 
that your data be rectified if incorrect, to object to 
or restrict data processing and the right to erasure 
of your data in certain circumstances. You also have 
rights relating to decisions made solely by computers 
where relevant. For further advice and information 
regarding access to personal information please 
see our privacy notice for customers at http://www.
southkesteven.gov.uk or contact our Data Protection 
Officer at dpo@southkesteven.gov.uk.

End of tenancy
 
If you leave your home owing rent or any other money, 
we may pass on information about you to any debt 
recovery or tracing agency that we instruct to recover 
that debt. If you leave your home owing money in 
respect of electricity, gas, water, telephone or other 
similar charges, we may confirm your contact details 
to the company to whom the money is owed or any 
agent acting on their behalf.

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   25 07/08/2019   14:05
99



If you or someone acting on your behalf has made a 
statement relating to your housing application which 
you/they knew to be false or could be false or you/
they deceived us regarding information supplied on 
your application, we may consider taking action to 
repossess the property under schedule ground 5 of 
the Housing Act 1985.

We are required under section 6 of the Audit 
Commission Act 1998 to participate in the National 
Fraud Initiative data monitoring exercise.

We advise you that the data held by us in respect of 
your tenancy will be used for cross system and cross 
authority comparison purposes for the prevention and 
detection of fraud.

26  Tenancy agreement

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   26 07/08/2019   14:05
100



  Tenancy agreement  27

South Kesteven has a rich and diverse culture - a 
community made up of people from different cultures 
with differing backgrounds, beliefs and experiences. 
This diversity is one of the things that make South 
Kesteven such a great place to live and work.

To ensure all residents of South Kesteven have access 
to our information, it is available in a range of different 
languages and formats, including large print, Braille, 
audio tape and computer disc.

To request a document in a specific language or 
format, you can ring us or e-mail us:
'	 01476 40 60 80                                           
* communications@southkesteven.gov.uk       

Large print, Braille, audio  
tape or computer disc
This information can be made 
available in large print, Braille,  
on audio tape or computer disc.  
If you, or someone you know, 
might benefit from this service, 
please contact us.
Česky / Czech
Tato informace může být dostupná i v češtině. Pokud 
byste Vy, a nebo někdo koho znáte, mohl využít 
tohoto servisu, obraťte se prosím na nás.

Magyar / Hungarian
Ezeket az információkat magyar nyelven is tudjuk 
biztosítani. Ha Ön, vagy valaki, akit Ön ismer igényt 
tart erre a szolgáltatásra, kérem, keressen fel minket.

Latviski / Latvian
Šo informāciju var iegūt arī latviešu valodā. Ja Jums 
vai kādai no Jūsu paziņai šādi pakalpojumi nāktu par 

labu, lūdzu kontaktējiet mūs. 

Lietuviškai / Lithuanian
Šią informaciją galite gauti lietuvių kalba. Prašome 
kreiptis į mus, jei jums arba jūsų pažįstamiems ši 
paslauga galėtų būti naudinga.

Polski / Polish
Informacja ta może być dostępna w języku polskim. 
Jeżeli Pańswo albo ktoś kogo Państwo znają, może z 
tej usługi skorzystać, proszę nas kontaktować. 

Português / Portuguese
Esta informação pode ser disponibilizada em 
português. Se você, ou alguém que conhecer, 
beneficiar com este serviço, por favor contacte-nos.

Русский / Russian 
Данная информация может быть предоставлена 
на русском языке. Если Вы или Ваши знакомые 
посчитаете такую услугу необходимой, 
пожалуйста, свяжитесь с нами. 

Türkçe / Turkish
Bu bilgiler Türkçe dilinde mevcuttur.  Siz veya 
bir tanıdığınızın bu hizmetden faydalanacağını 
düşünüyorsanız lütfen bizi arayınız.

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   27 07/08/2019   14:05
101



South Kesteven District Council  
St. Peter’s Hill
Grantham
Lincolnshire
NG31 6PZ

01476 406080

02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT.indd   28 07/08/2019   14:05
102



1

South Kesteven District Council

Equality Impact
(Initial Analysis)

Tenancy Agreement

Lead officer:
 Harrinder Rai
Assessors:
Celia Bown

Service Area:

Neutral Assessor:
Carol Drury

Date of Meeting 

21/01/19

103

Appendix 3



2

1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy

Tenancy Agreement

This is to revise the existing tenancy agreement, dated 2002.

Is this a new or existing policy? Existing

2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed 
policy/service/function/strategy could have any potential positive,  or 
negative impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) listed, using demographic data, user surveys, local 
consultations evaluation forms, comments and complaints etc.

Equality Group

Does this 
policy/service/function/strat
egy have a positive or 
negative impact on any of 
the equality groups? 

Please state which for each 
group

Please describe why the 
impact is positive or 
negative.
If you consider this policy 
etc is not relevant to a 
specific characteristic 
please explain why  

Age Neutral This protected characteristic 
would not be a determinant in the 
implementation of this tenancy 
agreement.

Disability Neutral This protected characteristic 
would not be a determinant in the 
implementation of this tenancy 
agreement.

Race Neutral This protected characteristic 
would not be a determinant in the 
implementation of this tenancy 
agreement.

Gender 
Reassignment

  

Neutral This protected characteristic 
would not be a determinant in the 
implementation of this tenancy 
agreement.

Religion or 
Belief  

Neutral This protected characteristic 
would not be a determinant in the 
implementation of this tenancy 
agreement.

Sex

  

Neutral This protected characteristic 
would not be a determinant in the 
implementation of this tenancy 
agreement.

104



3

Sexual 
Orientation

Neutral This protected characteristic 
would not be a determinant in the 
implementation of this tenancy 
agreement.

Pregnancy and 
Maternity

Neutral This protected characteristic 
would not be a determinant in the 
implementation of this tenancy 
agreement.

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership

Neutral This protected characteristic 
would not be a determinant in the 
implementation of this tenancy 
agreement.

Carers Neutral This protected characteristic 
would not be a determinant in the 
implementation of this tenancy 
agreement.

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past)

*(IMD = Indices 
of multiple 
deprivation)

General 
comments

For tenants who cannot read or write; cannot read or write in 
English; or who are visually impaired, alternative forms of 
communication will be used.  This may include; telephone or 
face to face contact; letters in the person’s first language; braille 
or large print.

3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 
the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings)

Demographic data

If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed?

105



4

N/A

4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 
required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 
Please check one of the options.   

a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any 
potential for discrimination or for negative impact and all 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken



If you have checked option a) you can now send this form to the Lead 
Officer and your Neutral Assessor for sign off

b) Adjust the proposal to remove barriers identified by equality 
analysis or to better promote equality. 

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 
and b.2 

c) Adverse impact but continue

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1

d Stop and remove the policy/function/service/strategy as equality 
analysis has shown actual or potential unlawful

b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 
policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts?

b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 
changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.  

If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis

c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 
justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy.

106



5

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact.

Signed (Lead Officer):  Harrinder Rai
(Name and title) Assistant Director - Housing

Date completed: Click here to enter a date. 

Signed (Neutral Assessor): Carol Drury
(Name and title) Community Engagement and Policy Development Officer

Date signed off:    21/01/19

107



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet
10 December 2019

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke
The Leader of the Council

        

Matters referred to Cabinet by the Council and 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees
This report highlights any matters referred to the Cabinet by the Council or the Council’s overview 
and scrutiny committees since the Cabinet’s last meeting on 12 November 2019, as set out in 
Appendix 1.

Report Author

Jo Toomey, Head of Governance

01476 406152

j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Interim Head of Legal 20 November 2019

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 22 November 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 2 December 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. It is recommended that the Cabinet notes the contents of the report and the 
matters referred to in Appendix 1.

109

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
Council

1.1 No matters have been referred to Cabinet by Council since the Cabinet’s last meeting on 
12 November 2019.

Overview and Scrutiny Committees
1.2 The Council operates Executive decision-making arrangements as set out in the Local 

Government Act 2000, which means it is required to have at least one scrutiny committee 
in place. The Council currently has four overview and scrutiny committees. The overview 
and scrutiny committees meet regularly and may hold additional meetings as necessary to 
discuss items within their remit.

1.3 Any recommendations made, or an overview of the topics discussed, by the Council’s 
overview and scrutiny committees since the last meeting of the Cabinet are contained in 
Appendix 1.

1.4 Where an overview and scrutiny committee meets after the publication of the Cabinet 
agenda, any outstanding recommendations to the Cabinet will be provided in an 
addendum to the Cabinet meeting if the matter relates to an item on the Cabinet’s agenda, 
or a synopsis provided with the agenda for the next Cabinet meeting. 

2 Available Options Considered
2.1 This report is a standing item on the agenda for the meetings of the Cabinet. No other 

options were considered. 

3 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
3.1 Where an item has been considered as part of pre-decision scrutiny, the 

recommendations of the relevant overview and scrutiny committee will either be captured 
within the Cabinet report, or, where the time does not permit, as part of a verbal update 
made during the Cabinet meeting or as a written note circulated at the meeting.

4 Financial Implications 
4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance

5 Legal and Governance Implications 
5.1 This report offers the Cabinet an opportunity to consider matters that have been raised by 

other Members at meetings of the Council and committees that operate within the 
Executive function of the Council.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Monitoring Officer

6 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
6.1 There are no equality or safeguarding implications arising from this report.

7 Risk and Mitigation
7.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks were identified in 

its production. 

8 Community Safety Implications 

110



8.1 There are no community safety implications arising from this report.

9 Background Papers
9.1 There are no background papers to this report.

10 Appendices
10.1 Appendix 1: Matters referred from Council (Part A) and overview and scrutiny committees 

(Part B)

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by: Cabinet 12 November 2019

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  10 December 2019

111



This page is intentionally left blank



MATTERS REFERRED FROM COUNCIL AND 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

PART A: MATTERS REFERRED FROM COUNCIL

There are no matters referred by the Council to the Cabinet on this occasion.

PART B: MATTERS REFERRED FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEES

CULTURE AND VISITOR ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of meeting: 5 November 2019
Chairman of the Committee: Councillor Judy Stevens

Cultural Strategy update

Considerations

 A report from the InvestSK Head of Arts giving an update on the development 
of the draft Cultural Strategy, together with a presentation delivered at the 
meeting

 Feedback from the online Cultural Strategy survey
 Work that was underway to create the outside draft of a simple, easy to read 

document highlighting key findings and priorities for the delivery of a new 
Cultural Strategy for South Kesteven

 Further consultation with participants in the Cultural Conversation
 Priorities identified by residents
 The timeline of next steps

Recommendations

 The Cultural Strategy to include a communications and promotions strategy, with 
the potential of a cultural events portal provision to be investigated

 Networking events for local artists, societies and community groups to be 
facilitated and promoted by the Council and InvestSK, with consideration to be 
given to time and location to encourage maximum community engagement

 Ensure that the Cultural Strategy gives consideration to rate relief and sets out 
the criteria by which it will be considered for creative enterprises

113

Appendix 1



Link to relevant papers

 Cultural strategy draft document update: 
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s24218/Cover%20sheet%20and%20repo
rt%20-%20cultural%20strategy.pdf 

 Cultural strategy update presentation: 
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s24224/Cultural%20Strategy%20Present
ation.pdf 

Overview of Festivals

Considerations

Stamford Georgian Festival

 A presentation from the Head of Arts on Stamford Georgian Festival
 The quantity of events during the four days of the festival, including both ticketed 

and free events
 Community engagement prior to the festival including engagement with schools 

and local artists
 The success of the costume ball
 Linking the festival with the South Lincolnshire Walking Festival
 Members views on the promotional coverage of the event, the value of economic 

impact surveys in comparison with their cost and the future of the Stamford 
Georgian Festival

Bourne CiCLE Festival

 A presentation given by the InvestSK Head of Visitor Economy on the Bourne 
CiCLE Festival

 The intention of the event to bring economic benefit to the town of Bourne as well 
as building community engagement and encouraging local schools’ involvement

 The number of volunteers who had supported the event
 The levels of sponsorship received for the event, both in cash and kind
 The economic impact assessment of the festival
 Suggestions made by committee members to engage more children in the festival 

and extend the festival programme into the evening

Recommendations 

 The Committee expressed their thanks for the work put into the festivals by 
officers of SKDC and InvestSK, as well as local groups and charities 

 That a workshop be held to discuss the Bourne CiCLE financial details as soon 
as practicable. The Committee delegated authority to the workshop to make 
recommendations to Cabinet as necessary in relation to the future of the Bourne 
CiCLE Festival

 To support the theme of the Stamford Georgian Festival remaining Georgian, but 
to investigate the viability of a district-wide heritage festival and a Charles Worth 
festival in Bourne, based on the community-based Deepings Literary Festival 
model

114

http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s24218/Cover%20sheet%20and%20report%20-%20cultural%20strategy.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s24218/Cover%20sheet%20and%20report%20-%20cultural%20strategy.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s24224/Cultural%20Strategy%20Presentation.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s24224/Cultural%20Strategy%20Presentation.pdf


 Investigate more financially viable alternatives to the Economic Impact 
Assessment for future festivals

Recommendations from the Bourne CiCLE Workshop (delegated authority from 
Culture and Visitor Economy to make recommendations to Cabinet)

 To support the CiCLE Festival being held in 2020, subject to stronger budgetary 
controls and greater community and business involvement

Community Asset Toolkit

Considerations

 A presentation on the Bourne Town Hall restoration project to create a small 
community arts centre and to restore the aesthetics and structure of the original 
building

 The experiences of a representative from Deepings Youth Group on how her 
interaction with the Council through InvestSK had supported the group

Outcomes

 The guest speakers were thanked for their contributions
 The acknowledgement of positive work and support being offered by local 

councils, SKDC officers and InvestSK to provide support for the community 
initiatives that were discussed

 To encourage co-operation and support between community groups, including 
joint working to provide support for new groups

FINANCE, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND CORPORATE SERVICES OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of meeting: 19 November 2019
Chairman of the Committee: Councillor Graham Jeal

Finance update report – Quarter 2 2019/20

Considerations

 The report of the Cabinet Member for Finance outlining the Council’s forecast 
financial position as at the end of quarter 2 of 2019/20

 The forecast variance of £250k in relation to corporate procurement savings
 The recruitment of a Procurement Officer in order to review current corporate 

procurement arrangements
 Changes in market trends and other external factors exposing budgets to 

volatility
 Some of the 2019/20 budgets and savings targets had been very ambitious, 

resulting in significant variances
 2020/21 budget proposals would be undertaken in a realistic approach

115



 Any changes made to create more realistic budgets would need to be offset in 
order for the Council to achieve a balanced position overall

 Agency worker costs were not a budgeted item; service areas needed to work 
within the budget for the existing vacancy, or realign budgets elsewhere to meet 
additional costs

 The exercise currently being undertaken to review pay structure within the 
Council

 The significant variance in relation to the assumed budget increases for the car 
parks in Grantham

Outcomes

 The Committee supported the principle of incorporating more realistic targets 
and savings in the 2020/21 budget setting process

Recommendations

 The Committee to see a more in-depth explanation of unmet targets at the end 
of quarter 3  

Link to relevant papers 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24305/Budget%20Monitor
ing%20Qtr%202%20Report%20FINAL.pdf 

Quarter 2 performance

Considerations

 The report of the Leader of the Council, giving an update on performance 
reporting for quarter 2 of 2019/20

 Most key performance indicators were meeting targets, with three achieving 
marginally below their targets

 The two examples of the new performance reporting dashboards appended to 
the report

 The performance indicator in relation to the percentage of Council Tax collected, 
which was at amber status

 An increase in Universal Credit claims in the district, which had caused Council 
Tax payment dates to be pushed back after claimants’ Council Tax Support 
claims had been recalculated

 Performance profiling was set at the beginning of the year based on historical 
trends

 The performance indicator measuring the percentage on Non-domestic rates 
collected, which was at red status

 The increase in Non-domestic rates payers choosing the option to pay over 
twelve months rather than ten, affecting the profiling of payments over the course 
of the year

 The breakdown of occupancy rates of retail units by town centre, as shown in 
Appendix 2

116

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24305/Budget%20Monitoring%20Qtr%202%20Report%20FINAL.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24305/Budget%20Monitoring%20Qtr%202%20Report%20FINAL.pdf


 Business engagement schemes being undertaken by InvestSK to encourage 
new businesses to Grantham town centre

 The reduction in the number of households on the top four priority bands of the 
Housing Register

 The increase in the number of fly tipping incidents in the District
 The 2.25% variance level by which a performance measure could be considered 

sufficient to meet its target

Outcomes

 Grantham town centre business occupancy and survival rates to be added to the 
Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services OSC work programme

 Figures for the number of households in bands 4 and 5 of the Housing Register 
to be provided to the Committee

 Figures for the number of households on the Council’s Housing Register to be 
provided for 2018 in order for comparison to be made

 Officers to provide figures stating the number of prosecutions made regarding fly 
tipping in the current financial year 

 Further information outlining how food hygiene ratings are measured to be 
circulated to the Committee

Recommendations

 Figures from previous years to be included in future performance measure 
reports, to provide context and comparison for the information provided

Link to relevant papers

 Report of the Leader of the Council:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24304/OSC%20report%2
0Nov%2019.pdf

 Appendix 1:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24300/Appendix%201%2
0Q2%202019.pdf

 Appendix 2:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24301/Appendix%202%2
0Occupancy%20rates%20of%20retail%20units.pdf

 Appendix 3:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24345/Appendix%203%2
0Rents%20revised.pdf

 Appendix 4:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24303/Appendix%204%2
0Planning%20dashboard.pdf

Fees and Charges – Charging Policy

Considerations

 The report of the Cabinet Member for Finance on the Charging Policy

117

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24304/OSC%20report%20Nov%2019.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24304/OSC%20report%20Nov%2019.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24300/Appendix%201%20Q2%202019.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24300/Appendix%201%20Q2%202019.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24301/Appendix%202%20Occupancy%20rates%20of%20retail%20units.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24301/Appendix%202%20Occupancy%20rates%20of%20retail%20units.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24345/Appendix%203%20Rents%20revised.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24345/Appendix%203%20Rents%20revised.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24303/Appendix%204%20Planning%20dashboard.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24303/Appendix%204%20Planning%20dashboard.pdf


 The key principles outlined in the policy to be considered during the fees and 
charges setting process

 Specific requirement would be unique for each Service Area
 The importance of fees and charges as a means of securing Council funding
 The review of current fees and charges which was being undertaken
 The full cost recovery principle advised as standard procedure
 Scope within the policy for subsidised services to be provided as appropriate
 The 30% overhead recovery rate figure as outlined in the policy 

Recommendations

 That the Charging Policy be presented to Cabinet for consideration
 Evidence supporting the 30% overhead rate figure to be provided to the 

Committee
 Officers to consider whether the policy could be expanded upon to give more 

specific guidance
 Further information to be provided to Members outlining which services were 

currently subsidised  

Link to relevant papers

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24306/Charging%20Policy
%20-%20Scrutiny%20v2.3.pdf 

RURAL AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of meeting: 21 November 2019
Chairman of the Committee: Councillor Ray Wooten

Turnaround on void properties

Considerations

 A presentation delivered by the Head of Repairs and Improvements on the 
turnaround of void properties

 The impact of the turnaround of void properties on rental income
 An increase in major voids in the past two to three years
 Possible causes for the current void turnaround time
 The formation of a review group to address the voids situation
 A review of all void-related roles and responsibilities across the Housing and 

Repairs teams
 Revision of key performance indicators to offer properties within five days of 

notice being received
 Re-evaluation of what constituted a “priority” void and those in popular locations 

that would be occupied quickly
 Housemark data that identified authorities that achieved good turnaround figures 

and contact made with those authorities 
 Use of choice-based lettings

118

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24306/Charging%20Policy%20-%20Scrutiny%20v2.3.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24306/Charging%20Policy%20-%20Scrutiny%20v2.3.pdf


 Using the Northgate Housing System to improve linkage between assets and 
housing management

 Reasons that were given when properties were refused
 The process for communication between tenants and the Council
 Undertaking cost-recovery activity wherever possible when a property was left in 

a poor or damaged condition
 Opportunities to use a portal to advertise properties through which tenants could 

register their interest

Outcomes

 Members to be provided with up-to-date housing register figures
 An update on void turnarounds to be provided at a later date

Tenancy Agreement

Considerations

 The report of the Deputy Leader of the Council on the proposed Tenancy 
Agreement

 The Council’s current tenancy agreements no longer reflected the needs of the 
housing services or the context in which social housing operated

 Proposed changes relating to introductory and secure tenancy agreements
 Clarification around joint tenancies and the responsibilities of joint tenants
 Arrangements for accessing properties to carry out gas servicing or health and 

safety checks
 The rules around damage and improvements to the property
 Responsibilities of tenants around minor repairs
 Clarification on conditions relating to animals and pets
 Responses received as a result of consultation with tenants
 Once adopted by Cabinet, the document would come into effect from 1 April 2020
 Support provided to those tenants who were evicted and the turnover rate for 

evictions
 Discussion around sub-letting and its definition
 Charging arrangements for mobility scooters and electric wheelchairs
 End of tenancy arrangements 

Recommendations

 The Committee recommends the proposed draft Tenancy Agreement to Cabinet 
for adoption and for it to be sent as a ‘notice of variation’ to all tenants of South 
Kesteven District Council in accordance wit Section 103 of the Housing Act 1985 
subject to the following:

o Further clarification is given about what is meant by “immoral behaviour”
o That page 20 (b) second paragraph of the draft Tenancy Agreement be 

changed from “they” to “you”
o That the reference to Clause 13, page 34 is clarified
o That information on support available to tenants is included in the section 

on rent arrears

119



Link to relevant papers

 Report of the Deputy Leader of the Council: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24337/OSC%20Report%2
0-%20Tenancy%20Agreement.pdf  

 Draft Tenancy Agreement: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24334/02844RT_TENANC
Y%20AGREEMENT.pdf%20version%20of%204th%20Nov%202019.pdf 

 Equality analysis: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24335/Tenancy%20Agree
ment%20-%20EIA.pdf 

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of meeting: 26 November 2019
Chairman of the Committee: Councillor Chris Benn

Position Statement on the Intentional Release of Sky (Chinese) Lanterns and 
Balloons

Considerations

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations regarding the 
Council’s position statement on the intentional release of sky (Chinese) lanterns 
and balloons and the appended draft position statement

 National environmental concerns regarding the release of sky lanterns and 
balloons and lack of control over where they land

 The aim of the position statement was to prevent the release of sky lanterns 
and balloons on council-owned land

 The position statement would not be legally enforceable
 84 other local authorities had already adopted position statements around the 

intentional release of sky lanterns and balloons
 An equality analysis of the draft positions statement

Recommendations

 That the position statement on the intentional release of sky (Chinese) lanterns 
and balloons is considered by Cabinet for adoption

 That the minority groups potentially affected by the adoption of the position 
statement be consulted when the final document has been agreed

Link to relevant papers

 Position statement on the intentional release of sky (Chinese) lanterns and 
balloons: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24101/ENV729%20report.
pdf 

 Appendix 1 – draft position statement: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24102/Appendix%201.pdf 

120

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24337/OSC%20Report%20-%20Tenancy%20Agreement.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24337/OSC%20Report%20-%20Tenancy%20Agreement.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24334/02844RT_TENANCY%20AGREEMENT.pdf%20version%20of%204th%20Nov%202019.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24334/02844RT_TENANCY%20AGREEMENT.pdf%20version%20of%204th%20Nov%202019.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24335/Tenancy%20Agreement%20-%20EIA.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24335/Tenancy%20Agreement%20-%20EIA.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24101/ENV729%20report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24101/ENV729%20report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24102/Appendix%201.pdf


 Appendix 2 – equality analysis: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24103/Appendix%202.pdf 

Scrap Metal Dealers

Considerations

 The report of the Cabinet Member for Commercial Operations providing an 
update on the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013

Recommendations

 That consideration be given to including an article in SK Today, informing 
householders of their responsibilities surrounding scrap metal disposal, and of 
the options available

Link to relevant papers

 Scrap metal dealers: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24349/ENV734%20Scrap
%20Metal%20Dealers.pdf 

Grounds Maintenance Update

Considerations

 Presentation from the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
regarding Grounds Maintenance in the District

 Environment SK have held the contract since March 2019, on the same basis 
as the previous providers

 The specification requires refreshing, simplifying and streamlining for 2020/21, 
with potential opportunities for both budgetary savings and increased 
environmentally beneficial initiatives

 Councillors considered biodiversity opportunities and risks

Recommendations

 Encourage the principal of more tree planting and managed wildflower / nature 
areas to be included in future Grounds Maintenance service specifications

 Request a paper exercise from Officers determining the potential costs and 
benefits of a number of managed biodiversity areas

Link to relevant papers

 Grounds maintenance update: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24361/grounds%20mainte
nance%20pack%20version.pdf 

121

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24103/Appendix%202.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24349/ENV734%20Scrap%20Metal%20Dealers.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24349/ENV734%20Scrap%20Metal%20Dealers.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24361/grounds%20maintenance%20pack%20version.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24361/grounds%20maintenance%20pack%20version.pdf


Climate Change

Considerations

 Presentation from the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
detailing discussion and recommendations from the Chief Executive’s Climate 
Change Task and Finish Group and the Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Climate Change Workshop

 The process for scutinising or approving spend against a Climate Change 
reserve

 The need to move quickly and start on initiatives to reduce the Council’s carbon 
footprint as soon as possible

Recommendations

 To recommend to Cabinet that in addition to the initial £50,000 allocated to the 
climate change emergency as agreed at Council, a further £20,000 reserve be 
established from the 2020/21 budget, for climate change action quick wins, 
smalls works and carbon efficiencies; this reserve could be drawn down as 
specific initiatives are identified during the course of the Task and Finish 
Group’s work

 To recommend to Cabinet that the Council’s decision-making and report 
templates are changed to include a ‘carbon and climate change impact 
assessment’ and that budget bids within the 2020/21 process are required to 
identify whether they are carbon positive, neutral or negative.

Textile banks / recycling

Considerations

 Options presented by the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations
 Whether a trial should take place with the placing of one textile bank in each 

town for a period of six months
 Whether a trial of textile collection bags from SKDC to households should take 

place
 The pros and cons of textile recycling banks, and the percentage of recycled 

textiles that end up being shipped abroad

Outcomes 

 Members voted against placing a textile bank in each town
 Members voted against a trial of collection of textiles from households

Performance Indicators

Considerations

 Presentation from the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
 How performance is currently measured and the indicators that are currently 

used

122



 The potential frequency for reporting to Committee on performance in future

Outcomes 

 Members to suggest to the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
any further areas for Environment performance monitoring for discussion with 
the Chairman as to suitability and feasibility

 That performance be reported to Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee every six months from the next meeting

Link to relevant papers

 Performance indicators presentation:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24362/waste%20p.is%20p
ack%20version.pdf

FINANCE, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND CORPORATE SERVICES OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of meeting: 27 November 2019
Chairman of the Committee: Councillor Graham Jeal

Future leisure management options

Considerations

 Exempt report of the Cabinet Member for Growth on options for the 
management of leisure centers across the district.

Recommendations

 The Committee recommends that Cabinet approves an extension to the 
Council’s current leisure management contract arrangement for a term of 15-
months with no reduction in the service level provided, the extension to end on 
3 April 2022

 The Committee agrees with the result of the long-term management option 
appraisal and recommends that Cabinet approve the proposal to procure a new 
contract arrangement as detailed in section 3.13 of the exempt report of the 
Cabinet Member for Growth

 The Committee agrees and recommends to Cabinet that a Procurement 
Strategy to determine the optimum length of contract and ideal route to market 
should be developed

Link to relevant papers

 The report that related to this item is exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) because it contains 
information that relates to the financial or business affairs of an individual or 
organisation, including the Council

123



124



Cabinet
10 December 2019

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke
The Leader of the Council

        

Decisions taken by individual Cabinet Members
This report provides an overview of decisions taken by individual Cabinet Members since the last 
meeting of the Cabinet on 12 November 2019.

Report Author

Jo Toomey, Head of Governance

01476 406152

j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Interim Head of Legal 20 November 2019

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 22 November 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 2 December 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. It is recommended that the Cabinet notes the decisions taken by individual Cabinet 
Members in the period since the last Cabinet meeting was held on 12 November 
2019.

125

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 Under the Leader and Cabinet model of governance, the Leader can allocate decision-

making power to individual Cabinet Members. While decisions of the Cabinet will be made 
during Cabinet meetings, individual Cabinet Members may make decisions at any time in 
accordance with the relevant Regulations.

1.2 All of the decisions made by individual Cabinet members since the Cabinet last met are 
attached as appendices to this report. Both the report on which the decision was based, 
and the decision notice are attached.

1.3 Since the Cabinet met on 12 November 2019, the following decisions have been made: 

 CrowdfundSK
Non-key decision taken by the Cabinet Member for Communities and HR on 14 
November 2019
Date decision effective: 23 November 2019
Report and decision notice attached as Appendix 1

1.4 Any decision made after the publication of the agenda will be reported at the next meeting 
of the Cabinet. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
2.1  The report that is presented to the decision-maker includes information on consultation 

and feedback received in respect of the matters to which the decisions listed in this report 
relate.

3 Available Options Considered
3.1 This report is a standing item on the agenda for meetings of the Cabinet. No other options 

were considered. 

4 Financial Implications 
4.1 The financial implications are set out within each decision.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles Director of Finance

5 Legal and Governance Implications 
5.1 The provisions relating to the Cabinet, it’s Members and delegations by the Leader are set 

out at Article 8 of the Constitution. The Council’s Executive arrangements were adopted in 
accordance with the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Interim Head of Legal

6 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
6.1 This report provides an overview of decisions that have been taken. Each individual report 

on which a decision is based will consider any equality or safeguarding implications. 

7 Risk and Mitigation
7.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no high risks were identified.

8 Community Safety Implications 
8.1 There are no community safety implications arising from this report. 

126



9 Background Papers
9.1 None; relevant background papers are referred to in the report for each decision.

10 Appendices
10.1 Appendix 1: CrowdfundSK

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by: Cabinet 12 November 2019

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  10 December 2019

127



This page is intentionally left blank



NON KEY DECISION:
REPORT TO CABINET MEMBER

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY: Councillor Robert Reid
Cabinet Member for Communities and 
HR

REPORT AUTHOR: Carol Drury
Community Engagement and Policy 
Development Officer

REPORT NO. CE&R001

DATE: 28th October 2019

SUBJECT OF
NON KEY
DECISION:

CrowdfundSK 

CABINET 
MEMBER REMIT: Councillor Robert Reid – Cabinet Member for Communities 

and HR

CRIME AND 
DISORDER 
IMPLICATIONS:

None

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION 
ACT 
IMPLICATIONS:

This report is publicly available on the Council’s website 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk via your Council and Democracy 
link

INITIAL EQUALITY 
IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT

Carried out and appended 
to report?

Yes

Full impact assessment 
required?

No
BACKGROUND 
PAPERS: Report to Governance and Audit Committee  

Report to Rural and Communities OSC

129

Appendix 1

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s23133/Outturn%20Report%202018-19%20Final.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=665&MID=3753


(1) PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out the principles for application to the 
Council’s funding platform, CrowdfundSK; the criteria by which applications 
will be assessed to determine financial pledges from SKDC and to agree the 
make-up of the determining panel.

1.2 Campaigns for funding can be made through CrowdfundSK by constituted 
community groups, charities, social enterprises, community interest 
companies and by individuals.  

1.3 Organisations pitching a campaign must have their own constitution/articles of 
association and individuals must provide an independent testimonial/reference 
to prove their capability and capacity to deliver a project.

1.4 CrowdfundSK will operate two rounds per year for groups and individuals to 
upload campaigns that show community support and seek community funding.

1.5 Projects must show how they will enhance our communities and 
neighbourhoods and must capture and deliver under at least one of the 
following headings:

 Culture – giving people a platform to participate in leisure and cultural 
activity and promoting opportunities in the use of new and emerging 
technologies 

 Communities – projects that encourage safe and cohesive 
communities, celebrating similarities and differences 

 Environment – projects that enhance and ensure the sustainability of 
local areas – encouraging the use of parks, woodlands, recreation 
grounds, community orchards etc

 Partnering – local people working together to develop and deliver 
projects that make a real difference to the communities and the areas 
where we live

 Growth – developing and delivering projects that promote inclusive and 
sustainable economic growth that could potentially provide employment 
for and within our communities

 Wellbeing – delivering projects that encourage healthy lifestyles, 
promote good mental wellbeing and help people to live independent 
lives

1.6 CrowdfundSK has been allocated £70,000 by the Council to be utilised for 
financial pledges to projects delivering community impact.  All projects must be 
located within South Kesteven and be for the benefit of South Kesteven’s 
communities.

1.7 Campaigns could be eligible for a pledge from South Kesteven District Council 
of up to 50% of their target or up to a maximum of £10,000 for projects 
delivered by constituted groups and £2,500 for projects delivered by 
individuals.

130



1.8 Pledges will be determined by a panel of five people.  It is proposed that the 
panel will include three members of the CrowdfundSK Project Team, the 
Cabinet Member for Communities and HR and one further member of SKDC 
staff chosen at random following a call for volunteers. 

1.9 Campaigns will be scored using the CrowdfundSK project scoring sheet 
attached at Appendix A.  This exercise will determine whether a project could 
be eligible for a financial pledge from SKDC and to what value – for example, 
for campaigns from constituted groups pledges could be made using the 
following guide:

 5/10 = 25% of project value or max £5,000 
 6/10 = 30% of project value or max £6,000 
 7/10 = 35% of project value or max £7,000 
 8/10 = 40% of project value or max £8,000 
 9/10 = 45% of project value or max £9,000 
 10/10 = 50% of project value or max £10,000 

1.10 The above represents the maximum pledge possible rather than a guarantee 
of funding. Simply achieving the scores above will not secure a pledge from 
SKDC. Each project must show community support through the financial 
pledges it receives.  How well the project is supported by the ‘crowd’ will make 
up 50% of its score.  This will be evidenced through the results of the question 
2 in the CrowdfundSK Project Scoring sheet.  The remaining 50% will be 
determined through the remaining criteria as set out in the scoring sheet. 

1.11 A successfully run campaign could achieve most, or all, of its required funding 
through crowd support. A financial pledge from SKDC would then either not be 
required or would only be needed to make up the last minute shortfall prior to 
the campaign closing for pledges to ensure its success. 

1.12 Projects that have received funding through the South Kesteven Community   
Fund are permitted to run campaigns through CrowdfundSK but will not be 
eligible for a financial pledge from SKDC.

1.13 Campaigns can seek both revenue and capital costs of the project however: 

 Projects cannot be for personal gain
 Projects or activities of a mainly political or religious nature will not be 

accepted
 We will not support project proposals from lobbying groups
 CrowdfundSK cannot be used to campaign for funding to support 

ongoing costs, general business expenditure, contingency funds, 
income deficits, bridging loans or security against a loan

 We reserve the right to remove any project posted to CrowdfundSK 
where it is ascertained that it is illegal, outrages public decency, 
promotes hate and intolerance or damages the reputation of the 
Council or South Kesteven as a whole

131



(2) RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Communities and HR 
approves the criteria and the composition of the determining panel that will be 
used when considering financial pledges for CrowdfundSK campaigns.

(3) REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)
(including any alternative options considered and rejected)

3.1 This recommendation will provide the delegated authority for the determining 
panel to make decisions in relation to the awarding of funding pledges through 
the application of clear criteria.  This methodology will allow for robust, 
objective and transparent decision making.

(4) COMMENTS FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES 

4.1 It is important to ensure there is robust governance and clear criteria when 
determining and allocating funding support to projects.  The allocated £70k 
referred to in the report is currently a one-off funding allocation so it is 
important to ensure value for money is achieved to maximise the contribution 
the Council has approved. 

(5) COMMENTS FROM LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

5.1 The criteria set must be reasonable and suitable to applications at all levels of
funding, capable of being applied to deliver a consistent approach to
determination. The panel which will determine applications must operate 
within appropriate terms of reference and have the authority to make decisions 
on behalf of the Council. That Panel should be provided with suitable 
administrative support and advice.

(6) OFFICER CONTACT

6.1 Lee Sirdifield
Strategic Director – Transformation and Change
Tel: 01476 40 65 24
Email: l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk

(7) DATE DECISION EFFECTIVE:
If decision taken on 14 November date decision effective will be 23 
November subject to no call-in being received.

132



Appendix A                                                                                                                                                

Project Scoring Sheet
Name: Project:

Criteria Scoring Notes

Some people who could benefit will 
be excluded
The project will be open to all who 
could benefit.

The project will actively seek to 
involve a wide range of 
beneficiaries.
The project will have a significant, 
physical impact on the local area
The project shows clear and 
sustainable environmental benefit

Delivering wide community and/or 
environmental benefits

   0      1        2        3        4        5        6        7        8        9        10
Little or no evidence

Evidence of need supplied.

Significant level of funding from 
community (the ‘crowd’) 

Clearly identified need shown and 
contribution to local priorities.

   0     1       2        3        4        5        6        7        8        9        10
Little evidence, weak or no 
contribution to CrowdfundSK 
priorities
Contributes to one or more of 
CrowdfundSK priorities
Strong evidence of contribution to 
CrowdfundSK priorities

Contributes to CrowdfundSK’s 
priorities:

 Communities
 Culture
 Environment
 Growth
 Partnering
 Wellbeing    0     1        2      3        4        5        6        7        8        9        10

No quotations received, 
incomplete, or do not match 
application.
Quotations received which match 
the application.

Demonstrate Value for money

    0    1        2        3        4        5        6        7        8        9        10
No evidence of a project plan or 
completion of project milestones.

Project Plan, milestones complete 
and realistic.

Project Planning

   0     1       2        3        4        5        6        7        8        9        10

133



Appendix A                                                                                                                                                

No demonstration that the event or 
project will have a measured 
success.
Group has demonstrated how the 
success of the project or event will 
be measured.

Measure success of event or 
project.

    0     1        2        3        4        5        6        7        8        9        10
None suppliedGoverning Document

(Constituted Groups)
OR Signed, governing document 

supplied.
None suppliedCharitable Status confirmed

(Registered Charities)
OR Charity number supplied

None supplied
Supplied on officially marked paper 
(e.g. letterhead)

Testimonial/reference
(Individuals and non-constituted 

groups)

 
   0     1        2        3        4        5        6        7        8        9        10
None supplied

Evidence of bank account supplied 
matching group/project bank 
account

Bank Account

 
   0      1        2        3        4        5        6        7        8        9        10
None supplied

Appropriate up to date policies 
supplied

Appropriate policies/evidence of 
suitability supplied

(H & S, E & D, Safeguarding, 
DBS)

   0     1        2        3        4        5        6        7        8        9        10

The project has received funding 
from SKCGS 

The project has not received 
funding from SKCGS 

Has the project received funding 
from SKCGS?

 
   Yes = 0     No = 10

Projects that have received SK Community Funding can pitch to CrowdfundSK but will not be eligible for a pledge from 
SKDC.  Any project scoring less than 50/100 will not be considered for a pledge from SKDC.

Total Score                /100

134



1

South Kesteven District Council

Equality Impact
(Initial Analysis)

CrowdfundSK – Criteria and 
Determining Panel

Lead officer:
 Lee Sirdifield
Assessors:
Heather Green
Jack Perry

Service Area:

Corporate

Neutral Assessor:
Carol Drury

Date of Meeting 

16/10/19

135



2

1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy

CrowdfundSK Criteria and Determining Panel:  The non-key decision 
relating to CrowdfundSK sets out the principles for application to the 
Council’s funding platform, the criteria by which applications will be 
assessed to determine financial pledges from SKDC and the make-up of 
the determining panel.
CrowdfundSK is a platform through which constituted groups and 
individuals can run crowd funding campaigns to raise money for the 
delivery of projects of community benefit within, and for the benefit of 
South Kesteven.

Is this a new or existing policy? New

2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed 
policy/service/function/strategy could have any potential positive, or 
negative impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) listed, using demographic data, user surveys, local 
consultations evaluation forms, comments and complaints etc.

Equality Group

Does this 
policy/service/function/strat
egy have a positive or 
negative impact on any of 
the equality groups? 

Please state which for each 
group

Please describe why the 
impact is positive or 
negative.
If you consider this policy 
etc is not relevant to a 
specific characteristic 
please explain why  

Age Positive Campaigns can be run by 
groups and individuals.  
Individuals must be aged 18 
and above in order to run their 
own campaign, however, 
people younger than 18 can 
put forward project ideas with 
the support of an adult 
sponsor.
All projects receiving funding 
pledges from SKDC as part of 
their CrowdfundSK campaign 
will be required to show 
community benefit, community 
support, equitable access and 
inclusion.  Groups will be 
required to evidence equality 
policy in relation to their 
project.

136



3

The determining panel will be 
a diverse mix including, but not 
limited to: gender, age and 
disability.

Disability Positive

Potential negative

All projects receiving funding 
pledges from SKDC as part of 
their CrowdfundSK campaign 
will be required to show 
community benefit, community 
support, equitable access and 
inclusion.  Groups will be 
required to evidence equality 
policy in relation to their 
project.
Groups or individuals requiring 
additional assistance in the 
development of a 
CrowdfundSK campaign will 
be supported on request.
The determining panel will be 
a diverse mix including, but not 
limited to: gender, age and 
disability.
The Spacehive - CrowdfundSK 
website is simple and easy to 
use however it does not 
contain any assistance tools 
such as BrowseAloud.  
Spacehive have provided 
assurance that people having 
difficulty accessing the website 
as a direct consequence of a 
disability will be provided with 
assistance. 

Race Positive All projects receiving funding 
pledges from SKDC as part of 
their CrowdfundSK campaign 
will be required to show 
community benefit, community 
support, equitable access and 
inclusion.  Groups will be 
required to evidence equality 
policy in relation to their 
project.
Groups or individuals requiring 
additional assistance in the 
development of a 
CrowdfundSK campaign will 
be supported on request.

137



4

The determining panel will be 
a diverse mix including, but not 
limited to: gender, age and 
disability.

Gender 
Reassignment

  

Positive All projects receiving funding 
pledges from SKDC as part of 
their CrowdfundSK campaign 
will be required to show 
community benefit, community 
support, equitable access and 
inclusion.  Groups will be 
required to evidence equality 
policy in relation to their 
project.
Groups or individuals requiring 
additional assistance in the 
development of a 
CrowdfundSK campaign will 
be supported on request.
The determining panel will be 
a diverse mix including, but not 
limited to: gender, age and 
disability.

Religion or 
Belief  

Positive All projects receiving funding 
pledges from SKDC as part of 
their CrowdfundSK campaign 
will be required to show 
community benefit, community 
support, equitable access and 
inclusion.  Groups will be 
required to evidence equality 
policy in relation to their 
project.
Groups or individuals requiring 
additional assistance in the 
development of a 
CrowdfundSK campaign will 
be supported on request.
The determining panel will be 
a diverse mix including, but not 
limited to: gender, age and 
disability.

Sex

  

Positive All projects receiving funding 
pledges from SKDC as part of 
their CrowdfundSK campaign 
will be required to show 
community benefit, community 
support, equitable access and 
inclusion.  Groups will be 
required to evidence equality 

138



5

policy in relation to their 
project.
Groups or individuals requiring 
additional assistance in the 
development of a 
CrowdfundSK campaign will 
be supported on request.
The determining panel will be 
a diverse mix including, but not 
limited to: gender, age and 
disability.

Sexual 
Orientation

Positive All projects receiving funding 
pledges from SKDC as part of 
their CrowdfundSK campaign 
will be required to show 
community benefit, community 
support, equitable access and 
inclusion.  Groups will be 
required to evidence equality 
policy in relation to their 
project.
Groups or individuals requiring 
additional assistance in the 
development of a 
CrowdfundSK campaign will 
be supported on request.
The determining panel will be 
a diverse mix including, but not 
limited to: gender, age and 
disability.

Pregnancy and 
Maternity

Positive All projects receiving funding 
pledges from SKDC as part of 
their CrowdfundSK campaign 
will be required to show 
community benefit, community 
support, equitable access and 
inclusion.  Groups will be 
required to evidence equality 
policy in relation to their 
project.
Groups or individuals requiring 
additional assistance in the 
development of a 
CrowdfundSK campaign will 
be supported on request.
The determining panel will be 
a diverse mix including, but not 
limited to: gender, age and 
disability.

139



6

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership

Positive All projects receiving funding 
pledges from SKDC as part of 
their CrowdfundSK campaign 
will be required to show 
community benefit, community 
support, equitable access and 
inclusion.  Groups will be 
required to evidence equality 
policy in relation to their 
project.
Groups or individuals requiring 
additional assistance in the 
development of a 
CrowdfundSK campaign will 
be supported on request.
The determining panel will be 
a diverse mix including, but not 
limited to: gender, age and 
disability.

Carers Positive All projects receiving funding 
pledges from SKDC as part of 
their CrowdfundSK campaign 
will be required to show 
community benefit, community 
support, equitable access and 
inclusion.  Groups will be 
required to evidence equality 
policy in relation to their 
project.
Groups or individuals requiring 
additional assistance in the 
development of a 
CrowdfundSK campaign will 
be supported on request.
The determining panel will be 
a diverse mix including, but not 
limited to: gender, age and 
disability.

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past)

*(IMD = Indices 
of multiple 
deprivation)

Positive All projects receiving funding 
pledges from SKDC as part of 
their CrowdfundSK campaign 
will be required to show 
community benefit, community 
support, equitable access and 
inclusion.  Groups will be 
required to evidence equality 
policy in relation to their 
project.
Groups or individuals requiring 
additional assistance in the 

140



7

development of a 
CrowdfundSK campaign will 
be supported on request.

General 
comments

CrowdfundSK is an exciting new way for people to unite and 
make bright ideas become a reality in their communities.
CrowdfundSK is a way of providing the tools our communities 
need to tackle local issues.

Groups and individuals from across South Kesteven can run 
campaigns for crowd funded projects through CrowdfundSK.  
The validity of groups and the viability of projects will be 
checked and tested prior to any funding being released.  Any 
project posted to CrowdfundSK where it is ascertained that it is 
illegal, outrages public decency, promotes hate and intolerance 
will be removed from the site.

3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 
the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings)

The criteria for determination of funding from CrowdfundSK have followed 
the previously agreed principles of the South Kesteven Community. The 
offer has however been extended to include groups and individuals 
allowing for increased access to a funding platform of the District Council.

If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed?

4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 
required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 
Please check one of the options.   

a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any 
potential for discrimination or for negative impact and all 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken

If you have checked option a) you can now send this form to the Lead 
Officer and your Neutral Assessor for sign off

141



8

b) Adjust the proposal to remove barriers identified by equality 
analysis or to better promote equality. 

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 
and b.2 

c) Adverse impact but continue

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1

d Stop and remove the policy/function/service/strategy as equality 
analysis has shown actual or potential unlawful

b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 
policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts?

b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 
changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.  

If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis

c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 
justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy.

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact.

Signed (Lead Officer):  Lee Sirdifield
(Name and title) Assistant Director – Transformation and Change

Date completed: 18/10/19 

142



9

Signed (Neutral Assessor): Carol Drury
(Name and title) Community Engagement and Policy Development Officer

Date signed off:    18/10/19

143



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET MEMBER 
DECISION

Decision:   

That the Cabinet Member for Communities and HR approves the 
criteria and the composition of the determining panel that will be 
used when considering financial pledges for Crowdfunding 
campaigns.

(1) Details of Decision

To seek approval for the criteria and the composition of the determining panel 
that will be used when considering financial pledges for CrowdfundSK 
campaigns.

(2) Considerations/Evidence

Campaigns for funding can be made through CrowdfundSK by constituted 
community groups, charities, social enterprises, community interest 
companies and by individuals.  

Organisations pitching a campaign must have their own constitution/articles 
of association and individuals must provide an independent 
testimonial/reference to prove their capability and capacity to deliver a 
project.

CrowdfundSK will operate two rounds per year for groups and individuals to 
upload campaigns that show community support and seek community 
funding.

Projects must show how they will enhance our communities and 
neighborhoods and must capture and deliver under at least one of the 
following headings:

 Culture – giving people a platform to participate in leisure and cultural 
activity and promoting opportunities in the use of new and emerging 
technologies 

 Communities – projects that encourage safe and cohesive 
communities, celebrating similarities and differences 

145



 Environment – projects that enhance and ensure the sustainability of 
local areas – encouraging the use of parks, woodlands, recreation 
grounds, community orchards etc

 Partnering – local people working together to develop and deliver 
projects that make a real difference to the communities and the areas 
where we live

 Growth – developing and delivering projects that promote inclusive and 
sustainable economic growth that could potentially provide employment 
for and within our communities

 Wellbeing – delivering projects that encourage healthy lifestyles, 
promote good mental wellbeing and help people to live independent 
lives

CrowdfundSK has been allocated £70,000 by the Council to be utilised for 
financial pledges to projects delivering community impact.  All projects must 
be located within South Kesteven and be for the benefit of South Kesteven’s 
communities.

Campaigns could be eligible for a pledge from South Kesteven District 
Council of up to 50% of their target or up to a maximum of £10,000 for 
projects delivered by constituted groups and £2,500 for projects delivered by 
individuals.

Pledges will be determined by a panel of five people.  It is proposed that the 
panel will include three members of the CrowdfundSK Project Team, the 
Cabinet Member for Communities and HR and one further member of SKDC 
staff chosen at random following a call for volunteers. 

Campaigns will be scored using the CrowdfundSK project scoring sheet 
attached at Appendix A to report CE&R001.  This exercise will determine 
whether a project could be eligible for a financial pledge from SKDC and to 
what value – for example, for campaigns from constituted groups pledges 
could be made using the following guide:

 5/10 = 25% of project value or max £5,000 
 6/10 = 30% of project value or max £6,000 
 7/10 = 35% of project value or max £7,000 
 8/10 = 40% of project value or max £8,000 
 9/10 = 45% of project value or max £9,000 
 10/10 = 50% of project value or max £10,000 

The above represents the maximum pledge possible rather than a guarantee 
of funding. Simply achieving the scores above will not secure a pledge from 
SKDC. Each project must show community support through the financial 
pledges it receives.  How well the project is supported by the ‘crowd’ will 
make up 50% of its score.  This will be evidenced through the results of the 
question 2 in the CrowdfundSK Project Scoring sheet.  The remaining 50% 

146



will be determined through the remaining criteria as set out in the scoring 
sheet. 

A successfully run campaign could achieve most, or all, of its required 
funding through crowd support. A financial pledge from SKDC would then 
either not be required or would only be needed to make up the last minute 
shortfall prior to the campaign closing for pledges to ensure its success. 

Projects that have received funding through the South Kesteven Community   
Fund are permitted to run campaigns through CrowdfundSK but will not be 
eligible for a financial pledge from SKDC.

Campaigns can seek both revenue and capital costs of the project however: 

 Projects cannot be for personal gain
 Projects or activities of a mainly political or religious nature will not be 

accepted
 We will not support project proposals from lobbying groups
 CrowdfundSK cannot be used to campaign for funding to support 

ongoing costs, general business expenditure, contingency funds, 
income deficits, bridging loans or security against a loan

 We reserve the right to remove any project posted to CrowdfundSK 
where it is ascertained that it is illegal, outrages public decency, 
promotes hate and intolerance or damages the reputation of the Council 
or South Kesteven as a whole

(3) Reasons for Decision:

To provide the delegated authority for the determining panel to make 
decisions in relation to the awarding of funding pledges through the 
application of clear criteria.  This methodology will allow for robust, objective 
and transparent decision making.

Conflicts of Interest

(Any conflict of interest declared by any other Cabinet Member consulted in 
relation to the decision to be recorded).

NONE

Dispensations

(Any dispensation granted by the Monitoring Officer in respect of any declared 
conflict of interest to be noted).

NONE

147



Decision taken by:

Name: Councillor Robert Reid
Cabinet Member for Communities & HR

Date of Decision: 14 November 2019

Date of Publication of Record of Decision: 15 November 2019

Date decision effective (i.e. 5 days after the date of publication of record of 
decision unless subject to call-in by the Chairman of an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee or any 5 members of the Council from any political groups):

23 November 2019

148



Cabinet
10 December 2019

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke
The Leader of the Council

        

Cabinet Forward Plan for the period 1 January 2020 to 
31 December 2020
This report highlights matters on the Cabinet’s Forward Plan for the period 1 January 2020 to 31 
December 2020.

Report Author

Jo Toomey, Head of Governance

01476 406152

j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Interim Head of Legal 20 November 2019

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 22 November 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 2 December 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. It is recommended that the Cabinet notes the contents of the report.

149

Agenda Item 10

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 

(England) Regulations 20112 sets out minimum requirements for publicity in connection 
with Key decisions. The Council meets these legislative requirements through the monthly 
publication of its Forward Plan.

1.2 Cabinet may also receive reports on which it is asked to make recommendations to 
Council or review the contents and take necessary actions. Whilst it is not a requirement 
to publish this information in the Forward Plan, it is the Council’s practice to do so.

1.3 To help the Cabinet understand what issues will be put before it in the longer-term, items 
for consideration have been included in the Cabinet’s Forward Plan (attached as Appendix 
1 to this report). The Forward Plan also includes details of items scheduled for each of the 
Council meetings due to be held within the plan period.

2 Available Options Considered
2.1 This report is a standing item on the agenda for meetings of the Cabinet. No other options 

have been considered.

3 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
3.1 The Forward Plan is published each month of the Council’s website. Cabinet Members will 

work with their officers to direct the timeline for each matter, taking account of 
opportunities to consult with the Council’s overview and scrutiny committees where 
appropriate. 

4 Financial Implications 
4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance

5 Legal and Governance Implications 
5.1 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 

(England) Regulations 2012 set out the minimum requirement to which the Council must 
adhere. Councils may use their discretion to publish information that exceeds the 
minimum requirements. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Interim Head of Legal

6 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
6.1 This report provides an overview of the work that the Cabinet will be undertaking. Where 

appropriate, analyses in respect of equalities and safeguarding relevant to its decisions 
will be presented to cabinet as individual issues come forward.

7 Risk and Mitigation
7.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks have been 

identified.

8 Community Safety Implications 
8.1 There are no community safety implications arising from this report. 

9 Background Papers

150



9.1 Section 9 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012: 
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2089/contents/made  

10 Appendices
10.1 Appendix 1: Cabinet Forward Plan, 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by: Cabinet 12 November 2019

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  10 December 2019

151

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2089/contents/made


This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET FORWARD PLAN
 Notice of decisions to be made by Cabinet 

1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020

At its meetings, the Cabinet may make key decisions and non-key decisions. They may also make recommendations to Council on 
matters relating to the Council’s budget or its policy framework.

A key decision is a Cabinet decision that is likely:

1. To result in the District Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to 
the District Council’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or

2. To be significant in terms of its effects on communities that live or work in an area comprising two or more wards.

A non-key decision is one that is not a key decision.

The Forward Plan

The Cabinet Forward Plan is a rolling, 12-month plan that will be updated on a regular basis. It includes those matters that are 
scheduled to be considered by Cabinet during the plan period. This plan also includes details of those decisions that are due to be 
made by the full Council.

153

A
ppendix 1



Notice of future Cabinet decisions and recommendations to Council 

Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Cabinet – 21 January 2019

Draft Budget proposals (Budget Framework)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the Draft Budget 
proposals for 2020/21

10 Dec 
2019

To agree the draft budget 
proposals for 2020/21 for 
consultation 

Budget
14 January 2020

Richard Wyles
Tel: 01476 40 62 10
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk

Grant of an option to sell land and assets and enter into an agreement (Key Decision)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the 
Council

Cabinet to consider whether 
to grant an option to sell land 
and assets and enter into an 
agreement

21 Jan 
2020

To agree whether to grant an 
option to sell land and assets 
and enter into an agreement

Not applicable – 
Companies 
Committee 19 
November 2019

It is anticipated that information within this report will be exempt under para 3 of Sched 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) because it may contain information that relates to 
the financial or business affairs of an individual or organisation

Jane McDaid
Tel: 01476 40 61 77
E-mail: jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk

Housing Delivery Strategy (Key Decision)
Councillor Barry Dobson, the Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet Member for Housing

To consider the Council’s 
strategy to address the need 
for the provision of new 
social and affordable homes

21 Jan 
2020

To approve a Housing Delivery 
Strategy for the Council and 
approach to the provision of 
new social and affordable 
homes within the district

Rural and 
Communities

Ken Lyon
Tel: 01476 40 60 52
E-mail: ken.lyon@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Housing Strategy (Key Decision)
Councillor Barry Dobson, the Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet Member for Housing

To consider the Council’s 
Housing Strategy 

21 Jan 
2020

To approve the Council’s 
Housing Strategy 

Rural and 
Communities
16 Jan 2020 Harry Rai

Tel: 01476 40 62 99
E-mail: harry.rai@southkesteven.gov.uk 

154

mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:ken.lyon@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:harry.rai@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Customer Experience Strategy (Key Decision)
Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for 
Communities and HR

To consider the updated 
Customer Experience 
Strategy

21 Jan 
2020

To approve the Customer 
Experience Strategy

Rural and 
Communities
16 Jan 2020 Nova Roberts

Tel: 01476 40 65 06
E-mail: n.roberts@southkesteven.gov.uk

Tenancy Strategy
Councillor Barry Dobson, the Deputy Leader 
of the Council

To consider the draft 
Tenancy Strategy

21 Jan 
2020

To approve an updated 
Tenancy Strategy

Rural and 
Communities
16 Jan 2020 Harry Rai

Tel: 01476 40 62 99
E-mail: harry.rai@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Council – 30 January 2020

Local Plan (Policy Framework)
Councillor Nick Robins, the Cabinet Member 
for Planning

Consideration of the revised 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
following examination and 
notice of modifications

30 Jan 
2020 

To adopt the revised Local 
Plan for South Kesteven

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services Roger Ranson

Tel: 01476 40 64 38
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Cabinet – 18 February 2020

Budget proposals 2020/21 (Budget framework – recommendation to Council)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the final Budget 
Proposals for 2020/21

18 Feb 
2020

To approve the Cabinet’s 
budget proposals and 
recommend them to Council

Budget
14 January 2020

Richard Wyles
Tel: 01476 40 62 10
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk

155

mailto:n.roberts@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:harry.rai@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Leisure Centre Business Plans (Key Decision)
Councillor Helen Goral, the Cabinet Member 
for Growth

To consider the detailed 
business plans for the 
delivery of the programme to 
enhance leisure 
opportunities for all.

18 Feb 
2020

To agree the approach to 
delivering the programme to 
enhance leisure opportunities 
for everyone

Culture and Visitor 
Economy
Finance, Eco Dev & 
Corporate Services
4 February 2020

Harry Rai
Tel: 01476 40 62 99
E-mail: harry.rai@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Design Guide SPD (Key Decision)
Councillor Nick Robins, the Cabinet Member 
for Planning

The document will provide 
guidance to applicants and 
decision-makers in order to 
improve the design quality of 
new development proposals 
as a supplement to the Local 
Plan policies

18 Feb 
2020

To approve the SPD for 
consultation

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services Roger Ranson

Tel: 01476 40 64 38
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Proposed development brief for land at Stamford North (Key Decision)
Councillor Nick Robins, the Cabinet Member 
for Planning

To consider the proposed 
development brief for land at 
Stamford North prior to 
consultation 

18 Feb 
2020

To approve the draft 
Supplementary Planning 
Document in respect of land at 
Stamford North for consultation

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services Roger Ranson

Tel: 01476 40 64 38
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk

Local Government Mutual (Key Decision)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the 
Council

To consider whether to join 
the Local Government 
Mutual

18 Feb 
2020

To make a decision on joining 
the Local Government Mutual

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services Richard Wyles

Tel: 01476 40 62 10
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Council – 27 February 2020

Budget 2020/21 (Budget Framework)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the Cabinet’s 
Budget Proposals for 
2020/21

27 Feb 
2020

To approve a Budget for 
2020/21

Budget
14 January 2020

Richard Wyles
Tel: 01476 40 62 10
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 

156

mailto:harry.rai@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Cabinet – December 2020

Council tax base 2021/22 (Recommendation to Council)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To agree the Council Tax 
base for 2021/22, which will 
form the basis of the Budget 
proposals for the year

Dec 
2020

To determine the Council Tax 
Base to form the basis of the 
2021/22 Budget proposals to 
be recommended to Council

Budget
January 2021

Richard Wyles
Tel: 01476 40 62 10
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk

Draft Budget proposals (Budget Framework)
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance

To consider the draft Budget 
proposals for 2021/22

Dec 
2020

To agree the draft Budget 
proposals for 2021/22 for 
consultation 

Budget
January 2021

Richard Wyles
Tel: 01476 40 62 10
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk

Other items – dates pending

St. Peter’s Hill Re-development – office remodelling (Key Decision and recommendation to Council)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the 
Council 

To consider proposals for the 
refurbishment of the offices 
at St. Peter’s Hill, following 
the first phase of works to 
provide high quality public 
realm through to the new 
cinema 

Not 
before 
1 Feb 
2020

To approve proposals and 
seek budget approval from 
Council

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services Jane McDaid

Tel: 01476 40 61 77
E-mail: jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk

Strategic Regeneration Acquisitions (Key Decision)
To make strategic 
regeneration acquisitions

Not 
before 
1 Feb 
2020

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services

Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the 
Council 

Information relating to this decision is exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 as amended because it contains information which relates to the financial 
or business affairs of an individual or organisation

Paul Thomas
Tel: 01476 40 61 62
E-mail: p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk  

157

mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Relevant Overview 
& Scrutiny 

Committee and 
date if applicable

Contact

Rectory Farm Supplementary Planning Document (Key Decision)
Councillor Nick Robins, the Cabinet Member 
for Planning

To consider the Rectory 
Farm Supplementary 
Planning Document following 
consultation on a draft 
document

Not 
before 
1 Feb 
2020

To approve a Supplementary 
Planning Document in respect 
of Rectory Farm 

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services Sylvia Bland

Tel: 01476 40 63 88
E-mail: s.bland@southkesteven.gov.uk

Cultural Strategy (Key Decision)
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, 
Cabinet Member for Culture

To consider the draft Cultural 
Strategy for South Kesteven

Not 
before 
1 Feb 
2020

To adopt a Cultural Strategy 
for South Kesteven

Culture & Visitor 
Economy
12 July 2018 Michael Cross

Tel: 01476 40 61 29
E-mail: 
michael.cross@southkesteven.gov.uk  

Asset Management Strategy (Key Decision)
Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the 
Council 

To consider the draft Asset 
Management Strategy

Not 
before 
1 Feb 
2020 

To adopt an Asset 
Management Strategy

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services Jane McDaid

Tel: 01476 40 61 77
E-mail: jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk

158

mailto:s.bland@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:michael.cross@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:jane.mcdaid@southkesteven.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

159

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

169

Appendix 1
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Council Tax Base for the financial year 2020/21 (Budget Framework)
	Council Tax base reportAppA

	5 Finance update report - Quarter 2 2019/20
	6 Tenancy Agreement (Key Decision)
	TENANCY AGREEMENT FINAL
	02844RT_TENANCY AGREEMENT PRE CONSULTATION VERSION
	Tenancy Agreement - EIA

	7 Matters Referred to Cabinet by the Council or Overview & Scrutiny Committees
	OSC_App1

	8 Items raised by Cabinet Members including reports on Key and Non Key Decisions taken under Delegated Powers.
	NKD CrowdfundSK
	CrowdfundSK Project Scoring Sheet
	EIA CrowdfundSK Criteria and Panel
	RR CE&R001 14.11.19

	10 Cabinet Forward Plan
	1 Jan 2020 to 31 Dec 2020

	12 Leisure Service – Future Management Options (Key Decision)
	Appendix One OSC Report reviewed (002)


